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TRIGENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT SERVICE PLAN
FOR WATER AND SEWER SERVICE

I INTRODUCTION

This modified Service Plan ("Service Plan") has been prepared pursuant to NRS Chapter 308, the
Special District Control Law. Pursuant to NRS on 308.080(3) the Board of Trustees of TRI
General Improvement District approved this Service Plan by Resolution on August 24, 2020 and
petitioned the Storey County Board of County Commissioners to approve it. After the public
hearing required by NRS 308.070, the Storey County Board of County Commissioners approved
this Service Plan on September 15, 2020 pursuant to Resolution 20-590.

This Service Plan describes the current and future plan f or waterservice and sanitary s ewer service,
which are the basic powers of TRI General Improvement District (“TRIGID” or the “District™)
approved by the county and authorized by NRS Chapter 318. The service territory of TRIGID
encompasses a tract of land ("service area") known generally as the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center,
including also the Patrick Business Park, the Western 102 Ranch and the Storey County portion
of the McCarran Ranch (all collectively referred to as “TRI Center”). All portions of the service
area are located in Storey County, Nevada (“County”). Maps and a legal description of the entire
service area and the developable portion of the service area for which water and sewer service are
planned are shown in Attachments “A-1" and “A-2" of the Appendix to this Service Plan,
respectively.

TRI Center is an area of partially developed land planned by the Storey County Master Plan to be
a large industrial business park located in the northern portion of the County, which requires water
and sewer service. The developable portion of TRI Center is zoned for industrial and commercial
uses (see Attachment “A-2").

General improvement districts are authorized under state law, NRS Chapter 318, to supply water
and sanitary sewerage facilities (among other allowed basic powers) to customers. Storey County
must approve a service plan, and material modifications thereof, pursuant to NRS Chapter 308.
As stated below, on June 5, 2001 the Storey County Board of County Commissioners (“BCC”)
approved an amended Service Plan for TRIGID (“2001 Service Plan”). This Service Plan is a
material modification of the 2001 Service Plan authorized by NRS 308.080(3). It amends,
modifies and restates the 2001 Service Plan, which is superseded in its entirety by this Service
Plan.

A general improvement district offers an economical and functional method of providing water
and sewer services to the service area. This Service Plan demonstrates the public convenience and
necessity requiring the creation and continuation of the District. This Service Plan is economically
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sound and feasible, conforms to all requirements of law, and doesnot contravene any of the criteria
of NRS 308.060.

II HISTORICAL BACKGROUND

TRIGID was formed on February 1, 2000, pursuant to Ordinance #164 passed by the BCC, in
order to furnish the two basic powers of electric power and natural gas facilities. On the same date
a service plan for TRIGID was approved by passage of Resolution 00-50.

On February 1, 2000 a Development Agreement was entered into between Storey County, Tahoe-
Reno Industrial Center, LLC and DP Operating Partnership, L.P. (“Development Agreement”).
The Development Agreement contains provisions for infrastructure construction and utility
services, including water and sewer service now provided by TRIGID.

On August 1, 2000, Resolution 00-85 was approved, modifying the TRIGID service plan to add
water and sewer service. On August 8, 2001 Ordinance #171 was passed to add the basic powers
of water and sewer service.

On June 5, 2001, Ordinance #176 was passed, dissolving and terminating the basic powers of
furnishing electric power and natural gas (space heating) facilities pursuant to NRS 318.490-510.
The ordinance also approved the expansion of service area to include the Western 102 Ranch and
the Patrick Business Park. On the same date Resolution 01-97 was approved, modifying the
service plan to delete electric power and natural gas facilities and to add the above-referenced
additional service territory for water and sewer service. Thereafter, the remaining services and
facilities of TRIGID described in the 2001 Service Plan have been for water and sanitary sewer
only. Since TRIGID did not commence operation until May 2001, it never provided gas or electric
services.

Prior to May 2001 water and sewer service in the service area for TRI Center was supplied by a
private company, TRI Water And Sewer Company, a Delaware corporation, controlled by the
master developer, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC, (“Master Developer”). A water tank, wells
and water distribution lines, as well as sewer distribution lines and temporary sewer disposal
systems were constructed to serve the small number of existing industrial customers at that time.
All designs and facilities were approved and permitted by the Nevada Division of Environmental
Protection (“NDEP”) pursuant to state law. TRIGID took over these existing water and sewer
facilities and services in May 2001, although TRI Water And Sewer Company remained active in
operating the water and sewer facilities for TRIGID as the “Operating Company”.

Pursuant to NRS 318.080, after the formation ordinance was adopted, and prior to appointing the

first Board of Trustees, the BCC was considered the ex officio Board of Trustees for the District.
In that capacity, the BCC was required by NRS 318.080 to establish accounting practices and
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procedures for the District, auditing practices and procedures to be used by the District, a bud get
for the District, and management standards for the District. The BCC also was required under the
same statute to appoint the first Board of Trustees (the “Trustees”). On December 19, 2000 the
BCC performed these tasks. Thereafter, the elected Trustees have governed the District.

Since June 2001, the water and sewer facilities of TRIGID have grown dramatically as areas of
TRI Center have developed. Industrial and commercial facilities on approximately 3,000 acres
have been built in TRI Center. While the TRIGID service area is over 85,000 acres, the
developable portion in TRI Center is estimated to be approximately 8,191 acres. The remaining
land is constrained by mountainous topography and not generally anticipated to require water and
sewer service by TRIGID (see Attachments “A-1" and “A-2" of the Appendix).

I CURRENT FACILITIES

Over the last 19 years, the Master Developer has built and dedicated to TRIGID fully-functional
community water and sewer systems. The water system uses groundwater to supply domestic and
irrigation water service. As of July 1, 2020, there are seven commercial wells providing water
production, including an Arsenic Treatment Plant. Two more wells are under construction. One
will be operational by December 2020 and the final well is scheduled to be operational by
December 2021. TRIGID currently operates four water zones, with storage tanks, distribution
lines and pump stations, to provide domestic and fire flow capacity.

Water, sewer and reclaimed water lines are installed under almost all streets. The reclaimed water
lines are currently dry, but some may be used when the process water system described below is
completed. Pump stations boost water and sewage as necessary to operate the system.

The TRIGID wastewater treatment plant (“WWTP”) is located on Britain Drive. It currently
processes an average of about 700,000 gallons per day of domestic sewage and industrial
discharge, with a total capacity of 1.2 million gallons. The WWTP was designed to be sufficient
for full buildout of TRI Center, although total capacity required for full buildout of TRI Center
can only be estimated at this time. Effluent fromthe WWTP is pumped into the TRIGID reclaimed
water storage reservoir (“Reservoir”). The Reservoir currently has sufficient capacity for existing
needs and an expansion is currently under construction as part of the future process water system.
No effluent will be discharged into the Truckee River.

NDEP establishes regulations and procedures for TRIGID’s water and sewer facilities. NDEP
permits are required to build and operate the systems. Farr West Engineering is the District
Engineer. TRIGID has hired certified operations personnel in order to bring operations and
maintenance responsibilities in house, while continuing to meet state operating standards.

S://Main/TRI/GID/Service Plan/Service Plan Amended 2020 (10).doc



-4-

Attachment “A-3" of the Appendix includes 3 maps showing the existing water, sewer and
reclaimed water facilities of TRIGID, and some future facilities.

v CONTRACT WITH OPERATING COMPANY AND
GENERAL OPERATING PLAN

Prior to commencement of water and sewer service by TRIGID, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center,
LLC, as the Master Developer of TRI Center, had the responsibility to construct and dedicate, at
no charge to TRIGID, water and sewer utility facilities. The Master Developer has continued to
carry out this mission. On March 7, 2001 the Trustees entered into an Operating Agreement with
TRI Water And Sewer Company (“Operating Company”), a Master Developer-controlled entity.
In doing so, the Trustees retained the services of an operating company to oversee and supervise
all District activities, and to actually operate and maintain District facilities and services. This
arrangement assured delivery of services in the areas of engineering, design, planning,
construction, operation and maintenance of the systems and customer service activities for nearly
20 years. Historically, the Operating Company subsidized operating costs and expenses of the
District until revenues created positive cash flow. In recent years revenues have exceeded
expenses and are expected to continue to do so.

In July 2019, the District hired its first employee and now has a full-time staff of four employees.
Effective June 30, 2020, the Operating Agreement between the Operating Company and TRIGID
was terminated. Effective July 1, 2020, the District is performing all financial, management, and
operational responsibilities independent of the Operating Company. TRIGID staff includes
certified operations personnel and a licensed professional engineer. The hiring of TRIGID staff
and the termination of the Operating Agreement effectively ends the phase of TRIGID operation
by a Master Developer-controlled entity. Along with the phasing out of the Operating Company,
the BCC may elect to assume governance of the District as ex officio trustees pursuant to NRS
318.0953. The District owns all facilities and water rights necessary to provide services to
customers. The District has its own legal counsel, collects its own revenues, and has no debt,
thereby avoiding any burden on the Storey County District Attorney, Storey County Treasurer’s
office or other County departments.

The rules, rates and regulations forwater and sewer service (the “Rules”) approved by the Trustees,
which are currently in effect in the service area, are attached to the Appendix as Attachments “B-
1”7 and “B-2”, respectively. The Rules establish rates, fees, charges and service connection
provisions. Connection fees are designed to create funding and reserves for infrastructure
maintenance, repair and replacement and when sufficient funds from connection fees have been
accumulated, in the discretion of the Trustees, the District may construct some facilities for new
development. In 2019, revised rates and fees were approved and are attached in Attachment “B-
3", superseding the rates and fees stated in the Rules.
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As stated above, NDEP is required by state statute and Nevada Administrative Code, NAC 445A,
to regulate, approve and permit the design, construction and operation of water and sewer facilities
in community systems like those to be operated under this Service Plan by TRIGID. The
specifications and requirements for design and operation of water and sewer systems are provided
in detail in NAC 445A, and the industry standards incorporated in those regulations are
incorporated into this Service Plan by reference.

\% FACILITIES TO BE CONSTRUCTED

Beginning in 2014, a number of companies have purchased land in TRI Center based, in part, on
the future ability of TRIGID to supply water for processing and manufacturing needs (e.g., cooling,
washing and as a component in manufacturing processes) (‘“Process Water”). The Master
Developer and TRIGID have assembled 10,000 acre feet of water rights for use by these customers
as Process Water (see Attachment “B-5"). Inorder for the Process Water system to be functional,
major infrastructure projects are planned or underway to be built and dedicated to TRIGID by the
Master Developer and other developers in the next two years, including: a 16-mile effluent pipeline
from the Truckee Meadows Water Reclamation Facility (“TMWREF”’) to TRI Center; an expansion
of the Reservoir to have a storage capacity of 2,000 acre feet; storage tanks, pump stations and
additional Process Water lines; and induction wells and additional groundwater production wells.
Estimated costs of this Process Water infrastructure are in the range of $85,000,000. A description
and cost breakdown of the Process Water system (not including treatment facilities) is listed in the
Appendix as Attachment “C".

As of June 30, 2020, the potable water system, existing components of the reclaimed water system
and the sanitary sewer system facilities to serve TRI Center customers have been constructed and
dedicated at no charge to TRIGID by the Master Developer. In the future, with limited exceptions,
the Master Developer will not be constructing new potable water and sewer facilities. Water and
sewer line extensions, primarily in the Comstock Meadows, Eagle Valley, Patrick and Peru Shelf
areas of TRI Center, will be built by developers of those areas and dedicated at no charge to
TRIGID. TRIGID will continue to have no debt for these capital improvements. Upgrades to the
WWTP will be made by TRIGID from its reserve funds to expand capacity as needed due to
continued growth in TRI Center. Repairs, maintenance and replacement costs will be paid to the
extent possible by operating revenues and supplemented by reserve funds accumulated from
connection fees or components of usage fees.
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While the District currently has no debt and developers will continue to build and dedicate new
capital improvements, TRIGID may incur debt in the future, as authorized by NRS Chapter 318,
or otherwise finance improvements as allowed by state law.

VI WATER RIGHTS

Water rights for domestic water service and some process water uses in the community water
system come from groundwater permits issued by the Nevada State Engineer. These permits
currently comprise approximately 5,290 acre feet of groundwater currently owned by TRIGID,
which can be pumped from well fields within the service area and used for new growth as it occurs.
All water rights owned by TRIGID as of June 30, 2020 are inventoried in Attachment “B-4" and
“B-5”, including water rights held for use in the process water system described herein. Permit
applications are also on file with the Nevada State Engineer for storage and use of effluent from
TRIGID’s sewer plant for nonpotable uses (e.g., irrigation and industrial applications).

On March 7, 2001 a certain Utility Facilities And Dedication Agreement, as amended, (“Banking
Agreement”) was entered into by and between the Master Developer and TRIGID. One of the
purposes of this agreement was to provide for the Master Developer to dedicate water rights to be
held by TRIGID for the use of landowners in the District service area. These water rights are
inventoried in Attachments “B-4".

For domestic use, 2,290 a.f. of groundwater rights have been set aside pursuant to the following
assumptions. All interest in this groundwater has been (or will be) quitclaimed by the Master
Developer to TRIGID to fulfill will-serve commitments of domestic needs of its customers.

Current domestic budget 2,290
Less high water users on domestic system -655.3269
Net domestic holdback 1634.6731
8,200 buildable acres at .104 a.f. per acre (per 2017 water audit) 853
System loss and hydrant use 200
50% variance 527
Domestic budget needed 1580 a.f.
Surplus uncommitted groundwater 54.6731

The domestic water requirements in the District service area are based on the following land use
assumptions.
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Land Inventory Still Owned by Master Developer 386.74!
Grading of Master Developer land to Create Developability 100.00?
Developable Land Sold to Others 6,616.85°
South Valley Acquisition Parcels 1,087.00*
Full Buildout Acreage 8,190.59
Notes
1. From maps and APNs of land still owned by Master Developer as of 1/2019
2. Assumes Master Developer will grade and fill currently undevelopable parcels to create
pads
3. From TRI Owners Association 1/2019 membership list

4. South Valley not in Development Agreement yet, but sold with up to .5 a.f.a. for 1,087
acres. Itisin TRIGID’s service territory.

For process water, the allocation of groundwater resources between the domestic water budget and
the process water budget is 2290/3000 acre feet, respectively. All component resources of the
process water budget are:

Source AFA
Groundwater 3,000
TRIGID WWTP 2,000
Truckee River 1,000
TWREF Pipeline 4,000
Total 10,000

Currently, all process water resources are fully committed to process water customers pursuant to
the following agreements, copies of which are on record with TRIGID.

Water Rights Use Agreement (Nonpotable) between TRI, TRIGID and Supernap Reno, LLC,
dated August 7,2015.

Water Rights Use and Service Agreement For Process Water between TRI, TRIGID and Silver
Slate LLC, dated April 10, 2017.

Water Rights Use and Service Agreement For Process Water between TRI, TRIGID and Tesla,
Inc., dated October 8, 2018.
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Water Rights Use And Service Agreement For Process Water between TRI, TRIGID and
Comstock TRIC Associates, LLC, dated August 18,2017, as amended.

Water Rights Purchase And Use Agreement between TRI, TRIGID and MNCA District LLC,
dated March 26, 2018, as amended.

Water Rights Purchase And Use Agreement between TRI, TRIGID and MNCA District LLC,
dated August 23,2018, as amended.

Water Rights Purchase And Use Agreement between TRI, TRIGID and Blockchains, LLC dated
January 18, 2018.

Water Rights Purchase And Use Agreement between TRI, TRIGID and Ryze Renewables Reno,
LLC, dated August 10, 2018.

When a landowner in TRI Center purchases the use of process water from the Master Developer
held by TRIGID, an assignment of the beneifical interest in favor of the landowner in that water
is executed and retained in the records of TRIGID. Ofthe 10,000 a.f. of process water resources,
assignments have been made for 5,166.66 a.f., leaving 4,833.34 a.f. still controlled by the Master
Developer, pending completion of the purchase price payments with landowners pursuant to
certain of the agreements listed above.

VII.  SERVICE PLAN COMPONENTS REQUIRED BY NRS 308.030

1. Financial Survey (NRS 308.030(1)(a)). Since the District has not, issued bonds or
otherwise financed the construction of infrastructure, the financing components of a financial
survey have not been applicable. Either the Master Developer or other developers have
constructed and dedicated capital infrastructure to the District. The District has created a five-year
Capital Improvement Plan, which has been approved by the Trustees. This plan includes funding
near-term capital improvements with existing reserves.. Within three years, the District anticipates
that major projects requiring financing may be required; however, it is the District’s goal to obtain
State Revolving Fund Principal Forgiveness Loans to finance most of these projects. The District
has commenced work on the necessary steps to position the District to obtain this funding within
the required timeframe of the approved Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan. The audited
financial statements for FY 2018/2019 and FY 2017/2018 are included in Attachments “D-1" and
“D-2", respectively. The revenue and expense statement for the first six months of FY2019/2020
is attached as Attachment “D-3".
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2. Preliminary Engineering Survey And Architectural Survey (NRS 308.030(1)(a)).
Maps showing existing facilities are attached as Attachment “A-3"" to the Appendix. The
description of facilities to be constructed, including engineering specifications, and information

on water and sewer facilities design is described in Section V and included in Attachment “C", or
specified in NAC 445A.

3. Map Of  Service Area/Population Information/Assessed  Valuation
(NRS 308.030(1)(b). The maps of the service area are shown on Attachments “A-1" and “A-2" to
the Appendix. The service area may expand by annexation pursuant to the provisions of NRS
Chapter 318.

Since the District customers will be industrial and commercial owners and occupants of
the TRI Center, there will be few or no residential service connections (watchmen/security
personnel and families, and possibly future residences on large parcels on forestry-zoned or
agricultural-zoned land). Thousands of employees, workers, and visitors will use services of the
District, however, as part of the daily business center activities and uses. The estimate of future
residential population ranges from zero to twenty-five (25).

Assessed valuation of parcels in the District can be obtained from review of Assessor’s
parcels in the Storey County Assessor’s office. Assessed valuation is increasing significantly each
year due to growth and development in TRI Center. The best information at any time will be the
current assessed values of the County Assessor, primarily contained in its Book 5.

4. Facilities To Be Constructed (NRS 308.030(1)(c)). Except as stated otherwise in
this Service Plan, developers will construct and dedicate to TRIGID, as necessary, the capital
improvements for providing water and sewer services for the service area. The District shall
approve design of all capital improvements. NDEP must also approve and permit facilities prior
to construction. As stated above, there is not at this time anticipated to be bonding or other debt
financing for which the District is liable, although the Trustees retain the discretion to consider
debt financing of capital improvements. Therefore, at this time there are no planned interest rates
for financing to charge back to District customers. The District may construct buildings for its use
or lease buildings in lieu of construction and may expend funds to purchase easements, as
necessary.

Section V describes, and Attachment “C” are a partial list of, facilities to be constructed in
the future for the Process Water system.

5. Standards Of Construction (NRS 308.030(1)(¢)). Standards of construction for all
facilities in the District will meet or exceed industry norms, specifically the standards provided in
Nevada Administrative Code Chapter 445A.
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6. Services To Be Provided By District (NRS 308.030(1)(c)) - The District provides
the following services to customers in the service area:

° design, operate and maintain the water, sewer and process water systems;

° meter reading for water meters (potable and nonpotable);

° billing and remittance processing for water, sewer and process water;

° funding for a limited number of capital improvements, primarily for upgrades of

the water, sewer and process water systems;
° rate schedules, line extension rules and rights-of-way policies; and

° production, treatment and supply of water resources and collection, treatment and
disposal of sanitary sewage.

District water, sewer and process water operations functions include the necessary design,
operations, maintenance, and customer care services to support delivery of services. The District
utilizes distribution design services, including material specifications. It performs all routine and
emergency operations and maintenance on all of its transmission, production, storage and
distribution facilities.

7. Estimate Of Costs (NRS 308.030(1)(c)). The estimated costs as of June 30, 2020
of future facility construction are described in Section V and summarized in Attachment “C”,
including the cost of engineering services and legal services, but excepting Process Water
treatment facilities, which are still in the planning stage. There will be no cost of acquiring land
in TRI Center since the title to real property and easements required will be acquired from
developers and dedicated without charge to the District. The cost of right of way for the TMWRF
pipeline is itemized in Attachment “C".

8. Indebtedness (NRS 308.030(1)(c)) The District does not currently carry any debt.
However, the District will develop a plan to incorporate debt as a mechanism to fund the Capital
Improvement Plan. Information on debt financing, information relating to interest, discounts,
bondsand securities will be presented to the Trustees for approval prior to incurring debt for capital
projects. The District Engineer is currently working on an update to the 2019 Rate Study, which
includes a capital funding plan.
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9. Annual Operation, Maintenance And Other Expenses (NRS 308.030(1)(c)). The
financial information in Attachments “D-17, “D-2" and “D-3" provide annual operation and
maintenance expenses. Revenue and expenses are expected to grow dramatically as growth occurs
in TRI Center.

10. Contracts With Cities Or Towns (NRS 308.030(1)(d). Except as specified below,
there are no cities or towns in the District, and there are no proposed arrangements or agreements
for the performance of services with a city or town. There are currently no adjacent municipalities
and special districts to the District which provide water or sewer service.

However, if the BCC should approve in the future a town, city or special district in the
service area, TRIGID may provide water and sewer service to it. In addition, the District may

provide wholesale wateror sewer service to a future special district outside the current service area
(e.g., the Painted Rock area) or within TRI Center.

In addition, TRIGID has entered into two agreements: (i) a certain Effluent Use A greement
with the City of Reno and the City of Sparks dated September 13, 2017 for the transportation by
pipeline and the use in TRI Center of up to 4,000 acre feet annually of effluent from TMWRF; and
(ii) a certain Return Flow Management A greement dated June 25,2018 with the City of Reno, the
City of Sparks and the Truckee Meadows Water Authority (“TMWA”) for the management of
effluent flow supplied to TRIGID by TMWREF and the provision of replacement water to the
Truckee River to make up for water transported to TRI Center to supply TRIGID customers with
Process Water. These contracts are not attached to this Service Plan due to their bulk, but are
available on request from TRIGID.
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Attachment

Al Map of Service Area and Legal Description
A s Map of Developable Area
AL Maps of Existing Facilities
B-lo Rules, Regulations And Rates For Water Service
B2, Rules, Regulations And Rates For Sewer Service
B3 2019 Revised Rates and Fees
Bdhoooeeeeeeee e ———————- Water Rights Inventory
B Water Rights Budgets
Coen, Description and Projected Costs of Off-site and On-site Projects
Dl FY 2018/2019 Audited Financials
D2 FY 2017/2018 Audited Financials
D=3, Revenue and Expense Statement 1/2020 —6/2020
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Exhibit "A-1"

Legal Description of TRIGID Service Territory

(Storey County)

Township 19 North, Range 21 East, M.D.B.&M.

Section I: . Southeast ; South ¥ Southwest ¥%4; Northeast % Southwest Y
Section 12: - All ' . '
Section 13:  All

Section24:  All .

Section 25: All

Township 20 North, Range 22 East, M.D.B.&M.

Section 24:  Southeast ¥ Southeast %4 o T :
Section 25: All that portion lying Easterly and S outherly of the Truckes River ..
Section32:  South ¥ Southeast ¥; all that portion of the Southwest ¥% lying Sourk of e Southern
Pacific Railrcad right-of-way .
EXCEPTING THEREFROM that portion of Parcel 1 of Amended Division of Map, filed
in the Office of the County Recorder of Storey County, State of Nevzcz oa February 24,
1986, as File No. 57613 of Official Records, lying Westerly of the Weszzrly line of that
certzin document entitled:

"Quitclaim Desd of Dedicztion”, recorded August 29, 1996, in Book 111, Page 5, as File.
No. 078479 of Official Records. )

EXCEPTING THEREFROM that portion of Parcel I of Amended Division of Map, filed
in the Office of the County Recorder of torey County, State of Nevacz on February 24,
1986, es File No. 57613 of Official Records, lying Southwesterly of thzt certzin
document entitled: '

"Quitclaim De_'ed‘of Dedication”, recorded August 29, 1996, in Book 111, Page 5 as File
No. 078479.0f Official Records.

AND EXCEPTING THEREFROM Lot 98-1 of the 1st Parcel Map for Asamera Minerals
(U.S.), Inc., filed in the Office of the County Recorder of Storey County, Nevadaon
September 25, 1998, as File No. 083401 of Official Records.

AND FURTHER EXCEPTING Watham Way as described in that certzin document
entitled: : i

"Quitclaim Deed of Dedication", recorded August 29, 1996, in Book 111, Page 5, as File
No. 078479 of Official Records. i n i :

- Section33: . South %
EXCEPTING THEREFROM Lot 98-4 of the 3rd Parcel Map fér Asarnera Minerals

(U.S.), Inc,, filed in the Office of the County Recorder of Storey Codnty, State oftNevé.da-
on September 25, 1998, as File No. 083403 of Official Records. P
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Section 34:

Section 36:

- No. 078479 of Official Records.

AND FURTHER EXCEPTING Watham Way as described in that certain document
entitled: )

"Quitclaim Deed of Dedication", recorded August 29, 1996, in Book 111, Page 5 as File

South Y4 to-gether with an easement for roadway purposes as granted to Asamera Minerals
(U.S.), Inc., by Lincoln "Nick" Mansfield by instrument recorded November 16, 1993, in
Book 97, Page 919 as Document No. 72801, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada.

All

Township 19 North, Range 22 East, M.D.B.&M.

Section I:
.« Section 2:
-Section 3:
. Section 4:
- Section 5:

F.9ection 6: ¢ .
i-Section 7:
:: Section 8"
£ Section 9: -
“=Section'10:

Z.Section-11:~

=Section’12:.
i Séction:13;
% Section:14: .
#Section 15:

.-Section 16: =~

t Section 17:

S
Eare Y

ceer ey,

Section 18: . -

All

All

All

All

EXCEPTING TZEREFROM that portion of Section 5 Township 19 Norss, Range 22
East, M.D.B.&M., lying Northerly of the Northerly line of Watham Wzy as described in
that certein document entitled: 2

"Quitcleim Deed of Dedication”, recorded August 29, 1996, in Book 111, Pzge 5 as File
No. 078479 of OFcial Records. :

AND FURTEHER EXCEPTING THERFROM Lot 98-3 of the 2nd Pasce! Mep for
Asamera Minezls (U.S.), Inc., filed in the Office of the County Recordar of Storey
County, Nevadz on September 25, 1998, as File No. 083402 of Officizl Records.

AND FURTHER EXCEPTING Watham Way as described in that certzin document
entitled:

"Quitclaim Deed of Dedication", recorded August 29, 1996, in Book 111, Page 5 as File

s

7 No. 078479 of Official Records. -

Southeast ¥%; Southeast Vi Southwest Vi; Lot 7
All :
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= Scctwn 24:
,'.. Scctlcn 26:

Y;'-'?Séfﬁon 35:
Sectlcn 36

&3 S;:uon L
# Section 2:
Secuon 3:
Sectzon 0.

i ‘Sc'cuon 11

# Sectlon23

fSCCtlon 24: -

Secnon 25:
Sechon 26
3 Sccuon 27.

Section 28: )
Scchon29: :
- Section 30:
£ SectmnSl:’-' ;
- Section 32:.
Secnon 33

Sectwn 34:

i Section 35: -
: Soctlon 36:,

Z{SﬁcﬁonZl .

‘::éazazaazaaza:aagggtzaza:

vSechon 2:" :

s _’r 4_...

B
&
8
&
.
=8

. s.[‘ s
Township % th, Range 22 East M.D.B.&M.
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EEERRE

hip 19 North, Range 24 East, M.D.B.&M.

North % Southeast ; Lots 4, 5, 6, & 7, excepting therefrom all that portion thereof, lying
below the natural ordinary high water line of the Truckee River and any portion thereof
lying in Washoe County. .

Lots 1,2, 3, & 4; the Northwest % Southeast % except that portion lying Northerly of the
Truckee Canal; 2]l that portion of the Southeast ¥ Northwest 4 lying Southeriy of the
truckee Canal; the Southwest % Northwest Y Excepting therefrom all that portion
theredf, lying below the natural ordinary high water line of the Truckee River and any
portion thereof lying in Washoe County; North % Southwest V.

South ¥; South ¥ Northeast %, excepting therefrom any portion thereof Iying North of
the South line of the Truckes Canal; Northeast % Northezst Y.

EEEEREREEE

s é‘g.”
B
e
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.- All
All
All
All that portion lying within Storey County
All that portion lying within Storey County
- All that portion lying within Storey County

EEREEEER

All that portion lying within Storey County

* All that pordon lying within Storey County
All that porion lying within Storey County
All

BB

All that portien lyizg within Storey County

All that portion lying within Storey County
illi that portion lying within Storey County

All
- All

All : _
spoectiond: . All that portion lying within Storey County
g:cczogg ﬁll g:t porticn lying within Storey County
moecaon 172 . t portion lying within Sto
= Sectiog 18: . All lymg ' S
" Section 197 Al
-Section 20:" * All ion lying withi
et that portion lying vnthm Storey County

' 13‘720 North, Range 24 East, M.D.B&M.

’: .. All that portion lying within Storey County
< Aﬂthatportionlyingwimi:nStorcyCounty
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) Assessor's Parcel Nos.

04-011-03, 04-041-21, 04-091-16, 04-091-21, 04-091-37, 04-091-39, 04-111-06, 04-131-02, 04-15 1-(59,
04-171-02, 04-181-01, 04-201-04, 04-291-01 ' ; :

EXCEPT THEREFROM THE FOLLOWING:

(A
®)

©

®)

®

All that real property as conveyed to Jim Stevens and Launa Steve

* All that real property as conveyed to Eagle-Pitcher Minerals, Inc.,

All that real property as conveyed to King Tolles and Lois Tolles by Deed dated January 14,1992
and recorded January 21, 1992, at Book 89, Page 64, Document No. 68841, Official Records of

Storey County, Nevada. (04-041-10)

as by Deed dated August 27,

1992 and recorded September 4, 1992, at Book 9 1, Page 972, Document No. 701 87, Official
Records of Storey County, Nevada. (04-041-24, 04-041-25, and 04-041-26) g

All that real property as conveyed to Five Star Land and Livestock, Inc., a Nevada corporation,
by Deed dated August 20, 1992 and recorded Septemnber 4, 1992, at Book 91, Pzga 977,
Document No. 70189, Oficial Records of Storey County, Nevada. (04-041-27, 04-041-28, 04-

041-29 and 04-041-30)

All that real property as conveyed to Lincoln "Nick" Mansfield by Deed dated November 9,
1993, and recorded November 16, 1993, in Book 97, Page 916, Document No. 72800, Official
Records of Storey County, Nevada, (04-091-18) :

by Deed dated February 17,

1994 and recorded February 22, 1994, in Book 99, Page 344, as Document No. - 3440, Official
Records of Storey County, Nevada, (04-041-23 and 04-171-03) .
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| EXCEPTING THE FOLLOWING PARCEL

" EAGLE PITCHER PARCELS "
ALL PROPERTY WITHIN -
PARCEL '99-13' oF THE MAP OF DiVISION F ILED IN THE OFFICE

OF THE STOREY COUNTY RECCRDERS OFFICE, oN 5-28-1999

BY TRISTATE SURVEYING FOR EAGLE PICHER, FILE NUMBER B5087.
SAID PARCEL KNOWN AS THE POR OF SEC 32 W PARCEL

—

R WY Y S R |

3]
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PLUS THE FOLLOWING PARCELS
" EAGLE PITCHER PARCELS "

ALL PROPERTY WJTHJN

PARCEL '99-4," oF THE PARCEL MAP FILED 1N THE OFFICE

OF THE STOREY COUNTY RECORDERS OFFICE, ON 5-28-1999

BY TRISTATE SURVEYING FOR EAGLE PICHER, FILE NUMBER 85088.
SAID PARCEL KNOWN AS THE FREEWAY WEST PARCEL

INCLUDING ALL.PROPERTY WITHIN __
PARCEL '04-I0I-05" OF THE PARCEL MAP FILED IN THE OFFICE

OF THE STOREY COUNTY RECORDERS OFFICE, ON 5-28-1999

BY TRISTATE SURVEYING FOR EAGLE PICHER, FiLE NUMBER 85088,
SAID PARCEL KNOWN AS THE FREEWAY EAST/WEST PARCEL

JINCLUDING ALL PROPERTY WITHIN

PARCEL '99-21' OF THE PARCEL MAP FILED IN THE OFFICE
OF THE STOREY COUNTY RECORDERS OFFICE, ON 8- l8-r9g¢g

BY CFA FOR WESTERN 102 RANCH, INC., FILE NUMBER 85847
SAID PARCEL KNOWN AS THE WWTP PARCEL

INCLUDING ALL PROPERTY WITHIN
PARCEL '99-9' OF THE PARCEL MAP FILED IN THE OFFICE

OF THE STOREY COUNTY RECORDERS OFFICE, ON 5-28-1999

BY TRISTATE SURVEYING FOR “EAGLE PICHER, FILE NUMBER 85090,

SAID PARCEL KNOWN AS THE EP2 TRI PARCEL

INCLUDING ALL PROFERTY WITHIN
PARCEL '99-7' OF THE PARCEL MAP FILED IN THE OFFICE

OF THE STOREY COUNTY RECORDERS OFFICE, ON 5-28-1999

- BY TRISTATE SURVEYING FOR EAGLE PICHER, FILE NUMBER 85089,

SAID PARCEL KNOWN AS THE EP 2 TRI PARCEL
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McCARRAN RANCH PARCELS

PARCEL ONE:

Situated in the County of Storey, the State of Nevada and being

a portion of Sections 1 and 2, Township 19 North, Range 21

East, M.D.B.& M.; Section 6, Township 19 North, Range 22 East,
M.D.B.&M.; Section 31, Township 20 North, Range 22 East,
M.D.B.&M., being more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at the Section corner, Sections, 2, 3, 10 and 11,
Township 19 North, Range 21 East, M.D.B. & M., thence North
0°34'57" East, 1320.00 feet to the point of beginning; thence
North 0°34'57" East, 1350.50 feet to the West one-quarter
corner of Section 2, Township 19 North, Range 21 East; thence
North 06°06'48" East 2647.77 feet to the northwest corner of
Section 2, Township 19 North, Range 21 East, thence North
89°57'49" East 502.58 feet to the southeast corner of Section

34, Township 20 North, Range 21 East; thence North 88°57'02"
East 2276.91 feet to the North one-quarter corner of Section 2,
Township 19 North, Range 21 East; thence North 87°33'33" East
370.66 feet to the South one-quarter corner of Section 35,
Township 20 North, Range 21 East; thence South 89°42'47" East
2289.71 feet to the northeast corner of Section 2, Township 19
North, Range 21 East; thence North 89°48'16" East 316.27 feet
to the southeast corner of Section 35, Township 20 North, Range
21 East; thence North 89°49'37" East to the one-quarter corner
between Section 36, Township 20 North, Range 21 East, and
Section 1, Township 19 North, Range 21 East; thence North
02°41'52" East 1291.40 feet to the south one-sixteenth corner

on the north-south center line of Section 36, Township 20

North, Range 21 East; thence North 89°55'18" East 2718.60 feet
to the south one-sixteenth corner between Section 36, Township
20 North, Range 21 East, and Section 31, Township 20 North,
Range 22 East; thence North 06°08'59" East 1301.06 feet to the
one-quarter corner between Section 36, Township 20 North, Range
21 East, and Section 31, Township 20 North, Range 22 East;
thence South 02°01'48" West 1676.21 feet to the northerly
right-of-way line of Interstate 80 freeway; thence along the
northerly right-of-way line of Interstate 80 freeway North
59°03'44" East 459.89 feet; thence South 30°56'16" East 30.00
feet; thence North 59°03'44" East 730.00 feet; thence North
30°56'16" West 155.00 feet; thence North 59°03'44" East 220.00
feet; thence South 84°04'05" East 250.00 feet; thence North
59°03'44" East 4103.35 feet; thence a curve to the right; a

delta of 15°44'00", and radius of 7127.00 feet: thence North

CAUGAT R NE-Mailegal (1) doc
Tanuary 27, 2000
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74°47'44" East 606.38 feet; thence along a curve to the left, a
delta of 11°23'21", and a radius of 2873.00 feet; thence

leaving the northerly right-of-way line of Interstate 80

freeway South 00°41'02" East approximately 2240 feet to the
northerly right-of-way line of the Southern Pacific Railroad;
thence southwesterly along the Southern Pacific Railroad
northerly right-of-way line to the section line between

Sections 31 and 32, Township 20 North, Range 22 East; thence
South 02°35'04" East approximately 1800 feet to the section
corner common to 31 and 32, Township 20 North, Range 22 East,
Sections 5 and 6, Township 19 North, Range 22 East, thence
South 00°17'04" East 2635.23 feet to the east one-quarter corner
Section 6, Township 19 North, Range 22 East; thence North
89°26'11" West 2672.98 feet to the center of Section 6,

Township 19 North, Range 22 East; thence South 01°06'13" East
1329.12 feet to the south one-sixteenth corner of the

north-south centerline of Section 6, Township 19 North, Range
22 East; thence North 89°58'23" West 2760.44 feet to the south
one-sixteenth corner between Section 1, Township 19 North,
Range 21 East, and Section 6, Township 19 North, Range 22 East;
thence North 00°42'11" East 1354.42 feet to the one-quarter
corner between Section 6, Township 19 North, Range 22 East, and
Section 1, Township 19 North, Range 21 East; thence South
89°12'35" West 4105.09 feet to the west one-sixteenth corner on
the east-west centerline of Section 1, Township 19 North, Range
21 East; thence South 00°12'01" West 1331.86 feet; thence to

the center corner of the southwest one-quarter of Section 1,
Township 19 North, Range 21 East; thence South 89°31'20" West
1360.93 feet to the south one-sixteenth corner between Sections

1 and 2, Township 19 North, Range 21 East; thence South
00°10'29" West 1324.43 feet common to section comners 1, 2, 11
and 12, Township 19 North, Range 21 East; thence along the
section line between Sections 2 and 11, Township 19 North,
Range 21 East, South 89°28'59" West approximately 2000 feet to
the center line of the Truckee River; thence southwesterly

along the centerline of the Truckee River to the east-west
centerline of the southeast one-quarter of Section 10, Township
19 North, Range 21 East; thence westerly along the east-west
centerline of the southeast one-quarter of Section 10, Township
19 North, Range 21 East to the southerly right-of-way line of

the Southern Pacific Railroad; thence northeasterly along
Southern Pacific Railroad right-of-way line to the section line
between Sections 10 and 11, Township 19 North, Range 21 East;
thence North 0°45'03" West along the section line between
Sections 10 and 11, Township 19 North, Range 21 East to the
one-quarter corner between 10 and 11, Township 19 North, Range
21 East; thence North 0°02'46" East 2670.06 feet to the section

CMIg\T R NE-MailNega! (1).doc
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corner common to Sections 2, 3, 10 and 11, Township 19 North,
Range 21 East; thence North 0°34'57" East 660.00 feet along the
section line between Sections 2 and 3, Township 19 North, Range
21 East; thence South 89°25'03" East 660.00 feet; thence North
0°34'57" East 660.00 feet; thence North 89°25'03" West 660.00
feet to the point of beginning.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM all mines of gold, silver, copper, lead,
cinnabar and other valuable minerals that may exist as reserved
by the State of Nevada in various Patents of record.

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM the parcel described as follows:
Commencing at the one-quarter corner Section 1, Township 19
North, Range 21 East, and Section 6, Township 19 North, Range
22 East, thence South 47°39'00" East 560.00 feet to the point

of beginning: North 80°40'00" East 417.42 feet; thence South
49°24'00" East 626.13 feet; thence South 80°40'00" West 208.71
feet, thence North 49°24'00" West 208.71 feet; thence South
80°40'00" West 208.71 feet; thence North 49°24'00" West 417.42
feet to the point of beginning. Contained entirely within the
Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 6, Township 19
North, Range 22 East,

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM that parcel described in the Deed to
Monty Baldwin, recorded July 10, 1980, in Book 23, Page 291

Official Records of Storey County, State of Nevada, under File

No. 47064,

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM that parcel described in the Deed to
David E. Cox and Juanita Cox, husband and wife, recorded July

25, 1988, in Book 65, Page 174, Official Records of Storey

County, State of Nevada, under File No. 61911,

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM, Parcels 1, 2 and 3 as shown on the
PARCEL MAP of MCCARRAN RANCH filed October 22, 1985 in the
Official Records of Storey County, State of Nevada, under File

No. 57052.

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM that parcel described in the deed to
KAL KAN FOODS, INC,, recorded March 3, 1995, in Book 103, Page
962, Official Records of Storey County, State of Nevada, under

File No. 75528 and re-recorded June 20, 1995, in Book 105, Page

48, under File No. 75991 R.

CMIGT R RE-Maillegal {1).doc
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ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM that portion described in the deed to
Storey County, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada,

recorded April 2, 1997, in Book 114, Page 280, Official Records

of Storey County, State of Nevada, under File No. 79808.

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM any portion thereof lying within
Section 32, Township 20 North, Range 22 East, M.D.B. & M.

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM any portion thereof lying within the
Southern Pacific Railroad right-of-way.

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM any portion thereof lying in Washoe
County.

ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO. 04-161-10

PARCEL TWO:

Parcel 3 as shown on the PARCEL MAP OF MCCARRAN RANCH filed
October 22, 1985 in the Official Records of Storey County,
State of Nevada, under File No. 57052,

ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO. 04-161-09
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PATRICK BUSINESS CENTER

ALL PROPERTY WITHIN
Parcel ‘99-24’ of the Parcel Map Filed in the office of the Storey County Recorder’s Office, on 6-29-
1999 by Western Nevada Survey for DPOP LP, File Number 85481, said parcel known as the DPO

MAIN Parcel

ALL PROPERTY WITHIN

Parcel ‘98-1 A’ of the Parcel Map Filed in the office of the Storey County Recorder’s Office, on 6-
29-1999 by Western Nevada Survey for TRI CENTER LLC, File Number 85483, said parcel known
as the ADJUSTED DERM Parcel

ALL PROPERTY WITHIN

Parcel ‘98-4’ of the Parcel Map Filed in the office of the Storey County Recorder’s Office, on 9-25-
1998 by Tristate Surveying for ASAMERA MINERALS, File Number 83403, said parcel known as
the DERM-BAT Parcel

CMgT R NResalution 2001-03.wpd
February 27, 2001
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PARCEL “D”
(Sewer Plant Parcel)

Situate in a portion of the south one-half of the north one-half of Section 34, T. 20 N, R. 22 E,,
M.D.M., Storey County, Nevada, more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at the west quarter corner of said Section 34;

thence N 01°22'37" E, 1327.71 feet;

thence S 89°00'48" E, 1238.12 feet to the point of beginning:

thence S 89°00'48" E, 2126.85 feet;

thence S 01°2136" W, 101.03 feet;

thence S 77°26'00" W, 159.58 feet;

thence S 07°55'04" E, 141.23 feet;

thence from a tangent bearing of S 82°04'56" W on a curve to the left having a central angle of
36°33'36", a radius of 1560.00 feet, for an arc distance of 995.42 feet;

thence N 44°28'40" W, 420.00 feet;

thence N 45°31'20" E, 80.00 feet;

thence N 08°19'37" W, 175.76 feet;

thence N 89°00'48" W, 650.00 feet;

thence N 44°06'36" W, 283.32 feet to the point of beginning, containing 16.24 acres, more or less.

C:\dgT R NResolution 2001-03.wpd
February 27, 200
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WESTERN 102 RANCH PROPERTY

All that certain lot, piece or parcel of land situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, described
as follows:

PARCEL 1:

The South ¥z of the Northwest % and the Southwest % of the Northeast 4 of Section 34, Township
20 North, Range 22 East, M.D.B.&M.

PARCEL 2:

The Southeast ¥ of the Northeast % of Section 34, Township 20 North, Range 22 East, M.D.B.&M.

C:Mg\T R NResolution 2001-03.wpd
Pebruary 27, 2001

S://Main/TRI/GID/Service Plan/Service Plan Amended 2020 (10).doc



Attachment B-1

RULES, REGULATIONS AND RATES OF
THE TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
FOR WATER SERVICE
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TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
WATER SERVICE RULES, REGULATIONS AND RATES

Revised August 27,2020

Water Rules 2020.08.27



TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT WATER SERVICE RULES,

REGULATIONS AND RATES

ARTICLE 1. GENERAL PROVISIONS

Table of Contents

1.1 PUIPOSE ..ttt a et a et h et R et h R n s A R et s s he R et et ke sttt et en e et ene e etene
1.2 EERIPTISE. vttt s st s s et e et e et ettt et et et et et et ettt ettt esenesenesenas 7
1.3 SEPATADIILY . .ttt ettt ettt b bbbk b e bbbt et b bbb bbbt bbbttt sene 7
1.4 WOTAS AN PRIASES.....couiuiiiiiiiiiieiiciie ettt ettt ettt ettt bbbttt 7
ARTICLE 2. DEFINITIONS ..ottt ettt ettt caes et e bt s bt et ee bbb sacaes et eeacasaeses 7
2.1 ACCOUNT TTANSEET ...ttt ettt ettt sttt ettt nen 7
22 Additional DefINItIONS/TUPC .......ocueiiicieiiiiicieieiccet ettt ettt sttt nens 7
23 N 0 0 (0T 1 SO T PO 7
2.4 AADPPHCATION 1.ttt et s et s e s s e s st e et s et s s s s s s s st eb st eses s s enas 7
2.5 BiTINE PEIIOM ...ttt ettt ettt b et b et b e s e bt ebesesesesesenes 7
2.6 BOATA .. ettt 7
2.7 Building
2.8 CAPTEAT COSES cuuvvveueurieteieieieteteteteteees et ses s s s st es e e es e e s es e e s e s es e s e s e s es s s s s s s es s s s e s s e e s s esesesesesesesesesesesesesrsnsas 7
2.9 CAPTEAT OULIAYS 1ottt ettt sttt ettt e ettt e s et e b ebebebebesesesesesenas 8
2,10 CONSITUCTION WAL ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt et sttt ettt ettt st ebebeb et et esetebenenas 8
211 COMIIACTOT. ettt bbbttt ettt ettt et et s ettt ettt ettt ettt enenes 8
2,12 CTOSS COMMECLION ...ttt ettt ettt ettt eb bttt b ettt bt et b ettt e b et e eaeseseteencneae 8
2,13 CONNECHION CRATZE....cueveveveieieieieieieteietet ettt ettt ses e es s eaeseseseseses s et st et s s et e s eeas s besesesesesesesesesesas 8
214 COUNLY ettt sttt b ettt n et 8
215 CUDIC FOOT ottt a ekttt Rttt s st n et et 8
2160 CUSTOMICT ...ttt bbbttt ettt ettt sttt ettt t et nene 8
217 Date Of PreSENIATION. ...cccucuiiiecieteiicictetet ettt ettt sttt ettt ettt bttt bttt eacbeseeeneaes 8
2.18  Delinquent
219 DEVEIOPET .ttt ettt ettt et s st s s s s s e s s et A ettt et s et s s st s s sttt eses et enenes
220 DEVEIOPIMENL....eeveieieieieieieieteteieietetetetetetetesese e tesesetesesesesesesesssesesasesesesasesesssessstsssesseseassssssassssssssesesesesesesesesesesesesesesessas 8
221 BASEIMCIL. ettt ettt n et nene 8
222 EIMIPIOYEE. ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt b enenas 8
223 GAIIOM ¢t R e R e Rttt Rkttt e bt n et e e 8
224 TAIBT .ttt b ettt 8
225 ISP ECIOT caetiniteet ettt ettt ettt bttt bt h etk b et bbb bbb sttt b sttt b ettt b e st et beaen 8
2.20  INEET=CONMECIION. ...ttt ettt ettt bbb b bbb es st ea st s et st st s e s s s e sttt ettt bbb e bbb eb et et etetetetetna 8



22T LW ettt bbbttt sttt 9
228 LAVIN G UNIE vttt ettt ettt ettt etk s ettt s st e s e s e sttt s s e es et et et e s et sttt es s sseneseanenes 9
229 MaiN ClaSSIICATIONS ...vveeitiecieteieteeeteteee ettt ettt b bbb bbb b es et sttt ettt et et et et st et et st etnas 9
2.30
2.31
2.32
2.33
2.34
2.35
2.36
2.37
2.38
2.39
240 SEIVICE ATCA ..ttt ettt ettt ettt bttt bbbttt sttt b et bttt ettt b ettt b et 10
241  Service and Connection ClasSifICatIONS .........iiieururiiueeeeriecieietreeie ettt eesaeaesseeeas 10
242 TOIANT ettt bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbbttt ettt ettt ettt 10
243 TRIGID ettt sttt bttt bbbttt neas 10
244 WALEI ML ..o 11
245 WILLSEIVE .ottt bbb bbb bbb bbb bbbttt ettt ettt 11
ARTICLE 3. CONDITIONS OF SERVICE ...ttt sttt s easeeseen 11
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ARTICLE 1. GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1

1.2
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Purpose. TRIGID has been created by Storey County under Nevada Revised Statutes Chapters318 and 308 to
own, maintain and operate community waterand sewer systems to provide service to Customers in the service
area,known as Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, pursuant to Ordinance #171 and Resolution 00-85,both passed
on August 8,2000. TRIGID is not regulated asa public utility by the Nevada Public Utility Commission.
TRIGID is a quasi-municipalentity functioning asa political subdivision of the State of Nevada.

Enterprise. TRIGID will furnish a system used for the provision of fire protection water aswell as industrial,
domestic and commercial water; and for the collection of domestic,commercial and industrial wastewaterand
septic tank effluent; including all parts of the enterprise, all appurtenances thereto,and land, easements, rights in
land, contractrights and franchises.

Separability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of these Rules, Regulations and Charges or
the application thereofto any person or circumstance is for any reason held to be unconstitutionalorinvalid,
such decision shall notaffect the validity of the remaining portions of these Rules, Regulations and Charges or
the application of such provision to other persons or circumstances. The Board hereby declares that it would
have promulgated these Rules or any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase hereof irrespective ofthe
factthatany one ormore sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrasesmay be declared to be
unconstitutional.

Words and Phrases. For the purposes of these Rules, Regulations and Charges, all words used herein in the
present tense shall include the future; all words in the plural numbershall include the singular number; and all
words in the singular numbershall include the plural number.

ARTICLE 2. DEFINITIONS

2.1

22

23

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

Account Transfershall mean any change madeto a billing account, including but not limited to new
ownership or new tenancy.

Additional Definitions/UPC. For the purpose of this Rules, additionalterms shall have the meanings
indicated in Chapter 1 of the latest edition of the Uniform Plumbing Code asprepared by the International
Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials. Exceptas expressly stated otherwise in these Rules, all
provisions of the latest edition of the Uniform Plumbing Code are incorporated herein by reference.

Applicant shall mean the person, business or governmentalagency makingapplication for water service to
a parcel within service area,including the TRI Owners Association.

Application shall be a written request for water service (as distinguished from an inquiry as to the
availability of, or charges for, such service) and agreement by Customer to comply with these Rules.

Billing Period shall be the period for which a billing is made. It may be for an average month and need not
coincide with the calendarmonth (i.e., may bebilled on a cycle of29 to 31 days).

Board shall mean the Board of Trustees of TRIGID.

Building shall mean any structure used for human habitation ora place of business, recreation or other
purpose requiring water services.

CapitalCosts shall mean costs of majorrehabilitation, expansion or upgrading required as facilities reach
the end of their useful life.
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2.22

2.23

2.24

2.25

2.26

CapitalOutlays shall mean expenditures which result in the acquisition of, or addition to, fixed or capital
assets.

Construction Water shall mean waterdelivered through otherthan a standard service connection for
construction purposes.

Contractorshall mean an individual, firm, corporation, partnership or association duly licensed by the State
of Nevada to perform the type of work to be done underthese Rules.

Cross Connection shallmean any actualor potential connection between TRIGID's distribution facilities
and any source or system which may potentially cause contamination, pollution, or change in water quality
by anyandall causes.

Connection Charge shallmean a fee charged in order to compensate TRIGID forthe capitalcosts of
investment, maintenance and repairin water plant equipment and related facilities made by TRIGID. The
charge is applied to all new users of water facilities in approximate proportion to their anticipated usage
and is for theright of service in the system.

County shall mean the County of Storey, State of Nevada.
Cubic Foot is the volume of water which occupies one cubic foot. The cubic footis equalto 7.481 gallons.

Customershall mean the person in whose name service is rendered as evidenced by Customer’s signature
on the application or contract for that service, or in the absence of a signed instrument, by the receipt and
payment of bills regularly issued in Customer’s name regardless of the identity ofthe actualuserof the
service.

Date of Presentation shall be the date upon which a bill or notice is either postmarked orhand delivered to
the Customer.

Delinquent shallmean an accountthathasnotbeen paid by the 15'day of the calendarmonth following the
due date of payment specified on the bill.

Developer shallmean any person engaged in or proposing development of property in the service area.
Development shall mean a parcelof property in the service area being improved and requiring water
service, including but not limited to installation of service mainsto and possibly on the property being
improved.

Easement shallmean an acquired legal right for the specific use of land owned by others.

Employee shall mean any individualemployed by TRIGID excluding independent contractors, consultants,
and their employees.

Gallon is the volume of water which occupies 231 cubic inches.

Idler shallmean a length of pipe or spacer installed in lieu of a meter.

Inspectorshall mean an individual designated to inspect facilities which are the subject of this Rules.

Inter-Connection shall mean any actual orpotential connection to Customer piping which will provide
water to property or permit use of water for purposes other than that forwhich a service connection was
authorized.
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Law is any statute, rule or regulation established by federal, state, County or municipal authorities.

Living Unit shall mean any residence, apartment, or other structure to be occupied for habitational purposes
by a single person or family and requiring water service.

Main Classifications:

A. Off-Site Main shallmean a main,regardless of size, which extends from the existing water system
to a development but excluding onsite mains.

B. On-Site Mains shall mean those public mains which are installed specifically to provide service to
developments,and generally located within the development's boundaries.

C. Public Mains or TRIGID Mains shall mean those mains which are owned, operated and
maintained by TRIGID aftercompletion and acceptance.

D. Private Mains shall mean all water mainsnot owned by TRIGID after completion.
Metered Service is a service for which charges are computed on the basis of measured quantities of water.

Operation and Maintenance shallmean those functions thatresult in expenditures during the useful life of
the water system facilities for materials, labor, utilities and otheritems which are necessary for managing
and maintainingthe water system facilities to achieve the capacity and performance for which such
facilities were designed and constructed. The term “operation and maintenance” includes replacementas
defined in these Rules.

Owner shall mean a person who holds legal title to the property or who is under contract to purchase the
property.

Permanent Service is a service which, in the opinion of TRIGID, is of a permanentand established
character. The use of watermay be continuous, intermittent, or seasonalin nature.

Permit shall mean any written authorization required pursuant to this or any otherregulation of the service
area forthe installation or operation of any part of the water system within the service area.

Person shall mean any individual, firm, association, organization, partnership, trust, company, corporation
or other entity, and any municipal, political, or governmentalcorporation,body, or agency,other than
TRIGID.

Premises shallmeanall of the real property and services to a single integrated activity operating underone
name to one or more buildings, locations or services, provided: (a) such building, locations or services are
to a single unit of property; or (b) such buildings, locations or services are on two or more units of property
immediately adjoining, except for intervening highways, streets, alleys or waterways.

Private Fire Protection shall mean service through a line used to extinguish accidentalfires which benefits
only one Customeror one class of Customersand is provided asan extra service in addition to normaland
customary fire protection provided by TRIGID to all Customers.

Replacement shallmean expenditures for obtaining and installing equipment, accessories or appurtenances
which are necessary during the usefullife of the water system facilities to maintain the capacity and
performance for which such facilities were designed and constructed.

Rules shall mean these Rules, Regulations and Rates of The TRI General Improvement District For Water
Service.
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Service Area shall meanthe place of use of water rights available to serve the certain areasasdesignated in
Article 13 of'these Rules.

Service and Connection Classifications:

A.

Combined Services shall mean service connections through which water is obtained forthe dual
purpose of fire protection and domestic use.

Commercial Services shall mean service connections to include, but not limited to, nonindustrial
businesses, office buildings, private clubs, motels, hotels, department stores, retail stores,
restaurants, clubs, schools, and similar Customers.

Domestic Services shall mean service connections through which water is obtained forall
purposes exclusive of fire protection, but including residential, commercial, and industrial uses.

Emergency Service Connection shall mean a temporary service connection required to provide
water to safeguard health and protect private or public property, subject to the conditions
governing temporary service connections.

Industrial Service shall mean service to Customers engaged in warehousing or distribution, or in a
process which creates or changesraw or unfinished materials into another form or product
(e.g.,factories, mills, manufacturing facilities, assembly plants, machine shops, mines, pumping
plants, creameries, canning and packingplants, or processing activities).

Interim Services shall mean non-permanent connections fordelivery of water for use during the
construction of developments, other construction projects,and in certain instances, for emergency
service.

Non-Standard Connection shall mean a service connection installed ata location notadjacentto
the property served and where there will notbe a main installed contiguous to the property.

Private Fire Service shall mean a service connection through which water is delivered to private
property for fire protection exclusively.

Residential Service shallmean service to a Customerin a single family dwelling, mobile home or
building, or in an individual flat,condominium, or apartment in a multiple family dwelling, or
building or portion thereof occupied asthe home, residence or sleeping place of one or more
persons.

Service Connection shall mean the lateralpipe from the point of connection to a TRIGID water
main, to and including the curb stop valveand/ormeterbox.

Standard Service Connection or "Permanent Service Connection'" shall mean a service connection
installed ata location adjacentto the property being served.

Temporary Service Connection shall mean a service connection installed ata location not adjacent
to the property served and which is subject to removalor relocation atsuch time asa main is
constructed.

Tenantshall mean a person renting or leasing a premise from the Customeror the Customer's selected
representative.

TRIGID shall mean TRI General Improvement District, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada,
formed and existing as specified in Subsection 1.1 of these Rules.
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Water Meter shall mean a watervolume measuring and recording device, furnished and/orinstalled by a
user and approved by TRIGID.

Will Serve The written approvalconstitutinga will serve commitment for water service from TRIGID.

ARTICLE 3. CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

Pressures. All applicants forservice connections or water service and Customers shall accept such
conditions of pressure and service asare provided by the distribution system atthe location of the proposed
service connection,and shall hold TRIGID harmless for any damagesarising out of low pressure or high
pressure conditions.

Interruption of Service. TRIGID will endeavorto notify Customers in advance of any interruption in
service due to repairs, or other causes. However, in emergency conditions, when notification is not
practical, service may be interrupted for indefinite periods of time. All Customers shall hold TRIGID
harmless for any damages arising from interruptions in service caused by repairs, emergencies or
conditions beyond the control of TRIGID.

Area Served. Properties within the boundaries of the service area shall be eligible to receive water from
TRIGID in accordance with these Rules and subject to acceptance by TRIGID of a completed application
by Customer.

Main Required. New applications for water service will be accepted only if the water main extendsto the
property being served, said water being within an off-site right-of-way or easement granted to TRIGID, or
TRIGID agrees to extend the water main, unless the Customeragrees to extend all distribution, storage and
supply capacity necessary to serve the Customer, subject to the provisions of these Rules.

Property Not Adjacenttoa Water Main. In order to obtain service to property notimmediately adjacent to
a water main as required by Article 3.4 above,theapplicant will be required to provide a main extension in
accordance with the requirements of Article 10, or the applicantmay make application fora non-standard
service if the property meetsthe requirements of Article 9.9, and the applicant may be required to comply
with the provisions of Article 4.3.

Damage to Property. TRIGID will notbe liable for damage to property resulting from water running from
open or faulty piping or fixtures on the Customer's property or from interruption or termination of service
in accordance with these Rules, Regulations and Charges. Customers who request activation of a service
shall beresponsible fordamage resulting from such activation due to open or faulty piping and fixtures on
the Customer's property.

Tampering with TRIGID Property. No one exceptan employee or representative of TRIGID shall atany
time in any manner operate the curb cocks or valves, main cocks, gates or valves of TRIGID’s system; or
interfere with the meters or their connections, street mains or otherparts of the system.

Penalty for Violation. For the failure of the Customer to comply with all or any part of these Rules, the
Customer's service may be discontinued, in TRIGID’s sole discretion, until the Customer is in compliance.
Termination of water service shall be in accordance with Article 11.

Waste of Water. No Customer shall knowingly permit leaks or waste of water. Where water is wastefully
or negligently used ona Customer's premises, or is flowing onto adjacent properties, roads, or drainage
ditches seriously affectingthe general service or operation of the system, TRIGID may discontinue the
service if such conditions are not corrected within twenty-four (24) hours after giving the Customer written
notice. Water canbeturned off immediately if conditions are severe and warrantimmediate action.
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Regulation of Water Usage. TRIGID may from time to time require thata watering schedule be followed
oruse of water be curtailed, or provide incentives for off-peak time watering, by notice to each Customer.
Unless a different water schedule is promulgated by TRIGID, the following schedule of restrictions shall
apply for outdoorirrigation to all commercial, industrial and other nonresidential Customers:

Customers with odd addresses - Monday and Thursday only;
Customers with even addresses - Tuesday and Friday only;

Watering by spray irrigation shall take place only between the hours of 6:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. during
allowed days;

Watering by drip irrigation or by hand may take placeatany time during allowed days; and

The watering of new lawns fora period of six weeks from the date of planting seed or laying sod or
watering vegetation planted forerosion controlin anapproved project to the extent necessary to reasonably
assure establishment thereof.

Notices to Customers. Notices from TRIGID to a Customerwill normally be given in writing, and either
delivered or mailed to Customerat Customer’s last known address based on billing records. Where
conditions warrantand in emergencies, TRIGID may resort to notification either by telephone, facsimile or
messenger. When a Customeris refused service under the provisions of these Rules, TRIGID will notify
the Customer promptly of the reason for the refusalto serve and of the right of the Customerto appeal
TRIGID's decision to the Board. Failure by the Customer to accepta certified letter notice will not relieve
the Customerofresponsibility for contents of notice.

Notices from Customers. Notice from the Customerto TRIGID may be given by the Customeror
Customer’s authorized representative in writing at TRIGID's operating office. TRIGID's current operating
office (which is subjectto change)is:

TRI General Improvement District
1705 Peru Drive #104
McCarran,NV 89437

Telephone (775) 636-6126

Customer's Premises. TRIGID employeesand agents shall have the right of accessto Customer's property
atall reasonable hours for any purpose related to the furnishing of service and protection of water quality
and quantity, but will generally not enter upon Customer's premises to engage in repair or alteration of
Customer piping and fixtures, since it is a responsibility of Customerto service or repair its piping and
fixtures.

Special Conditions and Circumstances. Inthe eventthat conditions or circumstances arise which are not
specifically covered by these Rules or warrant deviation from these Rules, TRIGID may take whatever
action, including establishing rates and charges which, in its discretion, is warranted, including execution of
contracts and agreements with Customers covering special conditions and circumstances.

Effective Date. These Rules shall become effective on the date of signature by the Board.

Continuity. Adoption ofthese Rules shallnot be construed asa waiver of any right or obligation underany
prior agreement, contract,or commitment of a Customerand TRIGID.

Meters. All services shall have water meters and will be billed according to the metered rate schedule.
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ARTICLE 4. SCHEDULE OF RATES AND CHARGES

4.1

42

43

General Metered Water Service. TRIGID shall notincrease said ratesand connection charges unless the
Board determines that said rates and connection charges are insufficient to pay all costs of CapitalOutlays
(including interest carry) along with all operatingcosts of TRIGID, including but not limited to, overhead,
salaries and other employee compensation, operatingand maintenance expenses, taxes, reserve and
replacement, water rights lease or purchase fees, any other fees, expenses and charges normal and
customary forwater service utility companies. In the eventsaid rates are insufficient to pay all said
operating costs, then monthly rates may beraised to a level thatwill cover all costs.

TRI-GID Water Rates

Meter Size Water

3/4 inch § 2651
1 inch § 47.08
1 1/2 inch § 8I.11
2 inch $§ 122.54
4 inch $§ 361.96
6 inch § 705.13
8 inch $1,116.53
10 inch $1,945.34
Usage Per 1,000 gallons $ 3.52

Charges for Construction Water. These charges apply to metered us of water during developmentand
construction of projects.

A. Application for service must be completed and the location of the point of draw must be clearly
identified
B. The contractorwill be responsible forinstallation of a standard metered service and construction

oftemporary truck fills and appropriate backflow prevention assembly consistent with TRIGID
conditions of service. The setup will require inspection, meter reading, and assembly testing prior
to activation.

C. The monthly customerservice charge shall be $75.10.
D. The water usage charge shall be $3.52 per 1,000 gallons of water used each month as set forth in
Article 4.1.

Connection Fees. An applicant fora Will Serve shall pay the water connection fee in effect on the date of
the application upon completion of all requirements under Article 15. For calculations of connection fees
on all Commercial and Industrialaccounts, the applicant must provide the TRIGID with expected usage
and discharge volume information based on fixture unit counts. This information is to be provided on the
TRIGID prescribed form, certified by a Civil Engineer registered in the State of Nevada,and submitted
along with an approved stamped setof drawings. Connection fees shall be charged on a one-time basis in
the amount of $4.91 pergallon per day,based on the approved fixture calculations.
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Build and Dedicate TRIGID System Facilities. If TRIGID determines, in TRIGID’s sole discretion, that
connection of new service for a Customerwill exceed the standard specifications (see Article 15.2) for
existing storage, supply or distribution capacity of TRIGID’s water system, or requires additionalstorage,
supply or distribution facilities, TRIGID may in its sole discretion require as a condition of service thatthe
Customerdesign, permit and constructall additionalnew water facilities (e.g., wells, pump station,
pipelines, valves, storage tanks)necessary to increase said capacity or provide facilities for Customer’suse
prior to providing water service. Customershall completeand dedicate to TRIGID without chargeall
water system facilities as constructed. To the extentthatany ofsaid water system facilities are oversized
beyond the Customer’s needs, TRIGID shall reimburse the Customer from connection charges collected
from subsequent Customers using said facilities or provide Customera credit therefor from connection
charges. The basis for reimbursement or credit shall be the difference in actualcosts of the water system
facilities between the capacity required for the constructing Customer’s use and the oversized capacity. No
overhead,administrative change, profit or interest on said actualcosts will be reimbursable. All design and
construction of said facilities must be approved by TRIGID. The constructing Customershall notbe
entitled to a credit from the connection charge for all or any portion of the water system facilities so
constructed, except as specified in this Article. The procedures specified in Article 10 shall be used forall
construction under this Article. Construction by a third-party developer of off-site water system facilities
shall notentitle the Customerto claim a credit or reimbursement for the water system facilities so
constructed.

ARTICLE 5. OTHER CHARGES, FEES AND DEPOSITS

5.1

52

53

Security Deposit for Service. TRIGID may require a security deposit in theamount of Five Hundred
Dollars ($500.00)or one-year’s totalestimated rates (whichever is less) from all new Customers or
applicants, from Customers whose accounts are delinquent on more than one occasion (i.e., two monthly
paymentsoverdue)in any one (1) yearperiod, or in situations where TRIGID hascause to believe thata
deposit is required to ensure payment of bills. Upon discontinuance of service, any deposit held by
TRIGID will be applied to the final billing with any deposit amount refunded to the Customer. By posting
a deposit, the Customeragrees thatthe deposit is a pledge to make future paymentsto TRIGID and not
payments for future services thatare furnished by TRIGID.

Any application for service will notbe granted unless full payment hasbeen made for wateror sewer
services previously rendered to the applicant or Customerby TRIGID, if any. Failure on the partofthe
Customerto makea deposit within fifteen (15) daysafterwritten notice by TRIGID that such deposit be
made or service may be discontinued, shall warrant TRIGID in discontinuing the service to the Customer.
TRIGID may waive the security deposit requirement, in its sole discretion, or acceptalternate security.

Charges for Disconnection, Reconnection, Account Transfer and Special Reading. If service is
discontinued whether at the request of the Customer or initiated by TRIGID for reasons other than those
specified in Article 5.10, the Customershall pay a processing charge of fifteen ($15.00) fordisconnection
and anotherfifteen dollars ($15.00) for reconnection. If the Customerrequests an account transferor
special meter reading, a processing charge of fifteen dollars ($15.00) shall be charged. Customers must
give 24 hours or previous working day’s notice for disconnection, re-connection or special reading.

Installation Fee: The installation fee shall be charged to cover the cost of materialsand labor for installing
the water service. This fee shall be based on the service size and shall be in the amount shown. The
installation fee includes tappingof the main, installation of the service line from the main to the meter, the
meter, and the meter box, in accordance with the following table:

Service Size Installation Fee

3/4" or smaller $ 750
" $ 795
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11/2" $975
2" $1,290
Over 2" Actual Cost, or $1,300,

whichever is greater

Inthe alternative, if allmaterials and labor are supplied, the installation fee includes setting of meter in a
TRIGID approved installation, in accordance with the following table:

Service Size Installation Fee
3/4" or smaller $80.00

1" $90.00

112" $130.00

Over 2" Actual Cost

TRIGID personnel or agents will do all service connection installations, unless TRIGID approves another
means of installation.

Water Plan Checking and Inspection Fee. Any applicant, Customeror a Developer requiring approvalof
plansby TRIGID, a Will Serve letter, or desiring plan checking shall pay to TRIGID a $500 plan review
fee and a $1000 inspection fee at the time of the Will Serve application.

Relocation of Service Connection. An existing service connection may be relocated, if the new service is
oflike size and will provide a water supply to the same parcel of property, upon application and paymentof
aninstallation fee by the Customer.

Increasein Size of Service Connections. Enlargement of a service connection to the same property,
requiring abandonment of the existing connection and installation of a complete replacement connection of
increased size shall be treated asa new service connection and shall be charged accordingly. The fees to be
paid by the Customerupon application forincrease in size of service connection shall be the installation fee
for the size of the larger service being installed and a connection charge which shall be determined by
subtracting the connection charge for the size of service being abandoned from the connection charge for
the size of service being installed, if any.

TRIGID Fire Hydrants Fire Fighting Use. There shall be no charges to governmentalagencies for water
available through TRIGID fire hydrants foruse in fire suppression.

Private Use of TRIGID Fire Hydrants. Connectionsto TRIGID fire hydrants are prohibited unless a water
service application is submitted to and approved by TRIGID. The applicant shall pay fees as specified in
Article 4.6. Applicants for connectionsto fire hydrants shalldesignate the period of time and purposes for
which water is to be used. TRIGID shall designate the fire hydrantthatthe applicantmay use. Use of any
other fire hydrant by the applicant other than the designated hydrant may result in an additionalcharge of
one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each occurrence, and removalof Customer’s or TRIGID’s equipment, if
any. TRIGID may discontinue the supply and remove its equipment at the expiration of the period so
designated or if the supply is used for any purpose other than designated by the applicant. The supply is
subject to limitations as to rate of flow and time ofuse. TRIGID will install all equipment necessary for the
connection,unless TRIGID approves other arrangements,and no water will be used until such equipment is
installed. In theevent thata connection is made to a fire hydrant without authority to do so, theuser shall
be required to pay an additionalcharge of One Hundred ($100.00) for each day of use prior to issuance of
the permit.

Public Agencies Exempted from Deposit Requirements. Inlieu of cash deposits or sureties, purchase
orders will be accepted from public agencies.
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Discontinuance Charge. Ifservice is discontinued for non-payment of waterbills or otherviolations of
these Rules, the Customer shall pay a turn-off charge according to the schedule below. Before service is
restored, all accrued water charges mustbe paid, in addition to a turn-on charge in an amount equalto the
charge for turn-off according to the schedule below. If a Customerhashad twelve (12) consecutive months
without being disconnected for non-payment of bills or other violations, the discontinuance charge shall
revert to the first occurrence charge according to the schedule below.

Occurrence of Turn Off And
Discontinuance of Service Turn On Charges
First $ 50.00

Second $100.00

Third $200.00

Fourth and beyond $300.00

Should the Customerreactivate the service without the consent of TRIGID, an additionalcharge of five
hundred dollars ($500.00)will be made foreach such occurrence. Service will be considered to have been
disconnected when an employee of TRIGID hasbeen dispatched forthat purpose. Termination of water
service shall be in accordance with Article 11.

Fee forTum-off at Main. Should it becomenecessary in order to enforce discontinuance of service. To
shut off the service atthe main, a charge equalto the cost of labor, equipment and materials will be made,
butnot less than $250.00.

Delinquent Accounts. Inaddition to other provisions of these Rules, there will be a charge for late
payment. If paymentis notreceived before it becomes delinquent, a late penalty processing feeand a
penalty on the outstandingbalance will be charged in accordance with Article 7.3 and the service may be
discontinued accordingto the procedure outlined in Article 11.

Unauthorized Use of Private Fire Service. When it is found thata private fire service is being used for
purposes other than standby fire protection, TRIGID shall notify the Customer of the unauthorized use.
Failure to discontinue unauthorized use will be cause for discontinuance of service. The Customershall be
charged forthe water consumed through the unauthorized use,as TRIGID may deem appropriate,
consistent with established rates, and in addition Customershall pay a charge of one hundred dollars
($100.00) per occurrence.

Damageto TRIGID Property. Persons causing damage to TRIGID property by any willful or negligent act
shall beresponsible forpaymentofall costs incurred. Customers or their contractors,agentsand
representatives causing damage to TRIGID property shall be strictly liable for paymentofallcosts caused
by such damage.

Charges for Meter Testing. TRIGID will shop-test, preferably in the presence of the Customer, a meter of a
size two-inches (2") or smaller, atthe request of a Customerand payment of a twenty-dollar($20) fee. If
the meter, upon testing, registers no greater than two percent (2%) over the true quantity, the fee shall be
forfeited, and all water bills shall be paid aspresented. However, if the meter registers more than two
percent (2%) of'the true quantity, the fee shall be returned, and the amount overcharged during the prior six
months, or such portion of the six month period asthe Customerhasbeen responsible for water bills, will
be credited to the Customerand another meter substituted forthe inaccurate meter. The same procedure
shall apply to meters larger than two inches (2"), except that the meter shall be field -tested.

Photocopy Charges. The charge for makingphotocopies on TRIGID copying equipment shall be $.25 per
copy.

Reimbursement for District Costs Benefitting Individuals or Entities. The District shall seek
reimbursement from those individuals or private companies for outside contract services, including
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but not limited to legal and engineering services, thatare incurred by the District in relation to
proposed new development or special projects thatare deemed to benefit individual persons or
entities, rather thanthe District customers atlarge. The reimbursements collected from individual
persons or entities shall be limited to the actual time and materials and unit rate costs incurred by the
District related to proposed new development or special projects that are deemed, in the District’s
discretion, to benefit individual persons or entities, rather than the District’s customers at large.

ARTICLE 6. BASIS FOR BILLING

6.1

6.2

6.3

Monthly Billing. All services shall bebilled on the basis of monthly rates specified in Article 4.1.

Meter Readings. Customersare responsible for payment of allwater recorded as having passed through a
meter regardless of whether the water was putto beneficial use.

Owner Responsibility. The Owner shall be ultimately responsible for payment of waterbills and fees for
its property in the case of nonpayment by a tenant or other occupant.

ARTICLE 7. TIME AND MANNER OF PAYMENT

7.1

7.2

7.3

74

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

Issuance of Bills. TRIGID shall read the water meters in the service area monthly,and as soon thereafteras
practicable,issue a bill foreach service in accordance with these Rules. TRIGID shall send out bills for
water used and forwhich no payment hasbeen received and shall use the rates and charges established by
these Rules to determine the amount.

Bills Due When Presented. Upon presentation,all bills shall be due and payable atthe operating office of
TRIGID or asspecified in the bills.

Delinquent Accounts. Accounts notpaid in accordance with Article 5.12 are delinquent and shall be
charged a late fee of 1.5 percent per month of the outstandingbalance plusa basic penalty fee of ten
percent (10%) of the delinquent monthly billing.

Discontinuance of Service. TRIGID may discontinue service toa Customerhavinga delinquentbill as
specified in Article 11.2.

Represents Lien on Property. Until paid, all rates and charges provided in these Rules which are delinquent
constitute a perpetuallien onand againstthe property served and may be foreclosed upon as provided by
law.

Proration of Service Charges: Minimum Bill. Ifany opening or closing bill is for a period shorter than the
regular billing period, the baserate charge for service shall be reduced in the same proportion asthe actual
period of use is reduced from the regular billing period.

Failure to Receive a Bill. Failure to receive a bill does notrelieve the Customerofthe obligation to pay for
services received.

Checks Not Honored by Bank. Checks presented in payment to TRIGID which are returned by a bank shall
be treated as though no payment had been made and a fifty-dollar ($50.00) handling charge will be levied
by TRIGID plus any additionalcharges of the bank. Payment in lieu of returned checks may be required to
be by cash or equivalent. The Customermust reimburse TRIGID for any returned check fees charged by a
bank to TRIGID.
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Multiple Water Bills. For the purpose of computingcharges, each meterwill be considered separately,and
readings of multiple meters will notbe combined, except where a battery of smaller meters hasbeen
installed in lieu ofa larger one for TRIGID's convenience. Insuch cases, charges will be computed asif
the water used has been measured through a single meter.

Estimated Bills and Non-operable Meters. Ifa meter cannotbe read because of obstructions or other
causes, an estimate shall be made of the quantity of waterused, and a bill shall be issued for the estimated
service. The nextsucceeding bill which is based upon actualmeterreadings will reflect the difference
between prior estimatesand actualconsumption. Ifa meteris found to be non-operable, consumption shall
be estimated and billed, considering all pertinent factors.

Billing Adjustments. Where billing adjustmentsare processed for inaccurate meterrecordings or other
usage adjustments, if the meter has:

A. under-recorded the usage of water, the adjustment shallbe only for the period of the mostrecent
six (6) months ofusage.

B. over-recorded the usage, the adjustment in the form of a credit shall be made only for the period of
the most recent six (6) monthsofusage.

C. A Customerwho, because of an adjustment to his bill, owes TRIGID money for service may pay
thatamount overa three (3) month period. TRIGID shall credit the Customerwho was
overcharged because of an inaccurate meternot later than thirty (30) daysafterthe overcharge is
determined.

Disputed Bills. Inthe case of a dispute between a Customerand TRIGID asto the correct amountofany
bill rendered by TRIGID for water service furnished to the Customer, the Customerwill deposit with
TRIGID the amountclaimed by TRIGID to be due. Failure on the part of the Customerto make such
deposit within fifteen (15) daysafterwritten notice by TRIGID that such deposit be made orservice may
be discontinued, shall warrant TRIGID in discontinuing the service to the Customer without further notice.
A billing dispute notresolved to the Customer’s satisfaction is subject to the dispute resolution procedures
asprovided in Article 14.

ARTICLE 8. APPLICATION FOR SERVICE

8.1

82

83

8.4

Application. Each person applying for a new water service or changesin an existing service, will be
required to sign appropriate application formsprovided by TRIGID and to pay all required feesand
charges. The application form shall include an agreementto abide by all TRIGID rules and regulations and
shall require furnishing such information as TRIGID may reasonably require. Each applicantshall describe
the type of development proposed for the property.

Existing Service Connection. Applicants for service through existing service connections shall
nevertheless provide required information on application forms provided by TRIGID.

New Service. The applicant shallprovide any and all information which will assist TRIGID in properly
sizing and locating a service lateral and meter, including a description of the development, the use of water
and plumbing plans of the private facilities, if required. Applications shall be accompanied by payment of
the service connection installation fee, plus the connection charge, unless deferred.

Correct Information. Inthe eventthatan applicant provides incorrect information asto the size and
location of a service connection or requests a change in the size or location after work hascommenced, the
applicant shall pay any costsincurred by reason of such corrections and changes.




8.5

8.6

-19-

Rejection of Application. Applications for service through existing or new service connections
accompanied by all required fees and charges may nevertheless be rejected if:

A. The account of the applicant or any otherperson (e.g., prior Customer, tenant,owner) atthe same
service location, or the applicantatanotherlocation, is delinquent.

B. The purpose of the applicant, in the opinion of TRIGID, is to circumvent discontinuance of service
in anothername because of nonpayment of water bills.

Service Outside Service Area Boundary. Only property within the service area boundary is eligible for
water service from TRIGID. Property outside the service area must be annexed into the service area before
application can be made forwater service to the property. Applicant shall pay all costs associated with
annexation of property into the service area. The Board may deny any annexation request, in its sole
discretion, and the Board shall notapprove any annexation that conflicts with existing County Master Plans
and/orexisting Development Agreements for the TRIGID Service Area. The Board may annex, in its sole
discretion, any property for wholesale service, and any nonresidential property for retail service.

ARTICLE 9. SERVICE CONNECTIONS

9.1

9.2

93

94

95

9.6

9.7

Size and Water Supply. TRIGID reserves the right to determine the size of the service connection to be
installed, giving consideration to the needs of the applicant and the capacity of the main to which the
service is to be connected. No service connection shall be approved of a size larger than can be supplied by
the main without adversely affectingservice to other Customers. Inthe eventan existing main is
determined to be inadequate to meet the requirements of an applicant and a main extension will provide for
those requirements, provisions of these Rules applying to main extensions will be followed. Whenever two
mainsare available from which service canbe provided, TRIGID shall, atits option, determine the main to
which the service connection will be made.

Location. Service connectionsshall be installed atright angles to a main and the point of connection shall
notbe within a street intersection. The curb stop or meterbox location shallnormally be within the off-site
right-of-way or easement adjacent to existing or proposed. curb line. In alleys or easements, curb -stops or
meter boxesshall be located ata pointas close aspracticable to the property line nearwhich the main is
located. All curb-stops and meterboxes shall be located outside of driveways and other areas where access
by TRIGID employees or representatives for operation and maintenance may be restricted.

Composition. A standard service connection shall be comprised of a service lateralfrom the point of
connection to the main, to and including meterbox or battery thereof. The meter box shall contain a meter
riser with integral curb stop and check valve,and a meter.

Ownership. Service connections, including laterals, to and including curb stops, meter boxes, and other
appurtenances, shallupon completion be and remain the property of TRIGID and TRIGID shall be
responsible for the maintenance and repairofsuch facilities, subject to any agreements covering the
installation of such facilities. All pipe and fittings on the Customer's side of the curb stop and/ormeterbox
shall beinstalled by and maintained by the Customer or Customer.

Private Fire Service. Private fire service shall be restricted to standby foremergency fire protection.
TRIGID may require installation of an approved detectorcheck valve.

Combined Service. Combined service shall be allowed only when so approved by TRIGID.

Temporary Service. TRIGID may authorize a temporary service connection when the applicant's property
is not adjacentto a watermain. As a condition to installation of temporary service, the applicant is required
to provide assurance satisfactory to TRIGID of the prompt installation of the necessary main extension.




9.8

9.9

9.10

9.11

9.12

9.13

-20-

Emergency Service. Emergency service may be authorized for limited periods of time when the usual
source of supply fails or is declared to be potentially harmful, or in other circumstancesthatendanger
health or property. Connectionsmay be provided, atthe discretion of TRIGID, to any available outlet from
TRIGID facilities.

Non-Standard Service. Non-standard service may be authorized when, in the opinion of TRIGID, a main
extension will notbe necessary for orderly development of the system, fire protection, service to other
property or other reasons. Non-standard service laterals from curb stop of meter box to the Customer shall
normally not be located within an off-site right-of-way. A copy ofthe recorded easement grant over
private property for a service lateral shall be provided to TRIGID’s satisfaction.

Separate Service to Each Separate Ownership. Each living unit or nonresidential service underseparate
ownership must be provided with a separate service connection, unless TRIGID approves a different
connection. Two or more Customers underone ownership and on the same lot or parcel of land may be
supplied through the same service connection; provided that foreach Customeran additionalmonthly base
rate will be applied to the single service serving said Customer, or a separate service connection may be
provided for each building and each charged as a separate service. TRIGID reserves the right to limit the
numberof parcels or the area of land under one ownership to be supplied by one service connection. Not
more than one service connection fordomestic or commercial supply shall be installed for one building
(other than multi-tenant buildings), exceptunder special conditions. A service connection shall not be used
to supply otherproperty of a different owner or to supply property of the same owner acrossa street or
alley. When property provided with a service connection is divided, each service connection shall be
considered as belonging to the lot or parcel of land which it directly enters.

Installation of TRIGID Facilities by a Developer. Subjectto the provisions of applicable sections of these
Rules, the following shall apply to the installation of all facilities by a developer which are to be owned and
operated by TRIGID.

A. The developer shall pay to TRIGID prior to the approvalofany installation all applicable fees and
charges.

B. Plans and specifications forthe water system improvements to be constructed by the developer shall be
prepared by a Nevada Professional Engineer retained by the developer and shall be approved by
TRIGID and the Storey County Fire Department (or its designee) before construction is started.

C. All TRIGID water facilities shall be located within easements orrights-of-way. Water meter boxes
shall be located outside of travellanes and driveways and shall be protected from vehicular traffic,as
determined by TRIGID.

D. TRIGID shall have inspected and approved the installation of the water service facilities before service
is provided (other than water for construction purposes).

E. Prior to installation, fire hydrantsto be connected to a TRIGID main shall be appro ved by the fire
department havingjurisdiction.

Installation By TRIGID. Unless otherwise approved by TRIGID, service connections shall be installed by
TRIGID. When warranted by circumstances, TRIGID may permit installation of the service connections
by independent contractors. In such event, TRIGID specifications must be adhered to and tappingofa
main will be permitted only in the presence of a representative of TRIGID.

Cross-Connections. No connectionsshall be permitted between TRIGID water supply system and; 1)any
sewer or drainage system;2) any steam, gas, or chemicalline, pipe or conduit; 3) any device, boiler, tank or
container whereby any contamination or pollution or any dangerous, impure, unsanitary, or unpotable
substance may be introduced into any portion of TRIGID's water supply system by backflow,back -
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siphonage, or any other method; and 4) any premises where a water supply system other than TRIGID's
exists, unless approved by TRIGID. Any connection where possibility of contamination orpollution exists
shall be equipped and tested asoutlined in Article 12.

Service Connection Restrictions. TRIGID reserves the right to prohibit connectionsto certain mains when,
in its opinion, such connections may impairthe integrity of such mains or when the location of such
connection would not be conducive to orderly development and planningofthe distribution system. In
such conditions, consideration will be given to main extension or alternate means of supply.

Relief Valves. As a protection to the Customer's plumbing system, a suitable pressure relief valve must by
installed and maintained by the Customer, at its expense, when check valves or otherprotective devices are
used. The relief valve shall be installed between the check valvesand any water heater.

Back Flow Device. Whenever back flow protection has been found necessary on a water supply line
entering a Customer's premises, then any and all water supply lines from TRIGID's mains entering such
premises, buildings or structures shall be protected by an approved back flow device, regardless of the use
of'the additionalwater supply lines. Approved back flow protection devices shall be inspected and tested
annually in accordance with Article 12. The devices shall be serviced, overhauled, or replaced whenever
they are found defective and all costs of repair and maintenance shallbe borne by the Customer. The
service of water to any premises may be immediately discontinued by TRIGID if any defectis found in the
backflow prevention installation or other protective devices, or if it is found that dangerous unprotected
cross-connections exist. Service will notbe restored until such defects are corrected.

ARTICLE 10. MAIN EXTENSION

10.1

General Conditions.

A. Construction Plans. A person proposing an extension to TRIGID distribution system to provide a
water supply to a parcel of property shall submit detailed water plans. Such plansshall indicate
the size and location (horizontaland vertical) of water mains and other facilities, including all
service laterals and fire hydrants. In addition, water plans shall designate boundaries of the
applicant's property which will be served by the proposed extension. Water system improvements
shall be designed by a professional engineer licensed in Nevada.

TRIGID will review the water plan and return written comments to the applicant indicatingany
necessary revisions. The applicantshall prepare and submit to TRIGID final plans of the water
improvements with all commentsaddressed to the satisfaction of TRIGID. Upon execution of the
appropriate agreement by the applicant; payment of applicable charges, fees and deposits;
approvalofotherappropriate governmentalagencies, and a preconstruction conference with
TRIGID, TRIGID will give the applicant permission to start construction. No water related
construction will be started before permission is granted by TRIGID.

B. Time Limitation. Approval by TRIGID for any main extension shall be valid for a limited time as
will any related commitment of existing capacity in a particularmain. Inthe eventthat
construction of the mains covered by any approved plan is not started within one (1) yearfrom the
date of approval, the project shall be deemed to have been abandoned, and any subsequent
proposalfor reactivation shall be treated asa new project. The same shall apply when active
construction work within a property is commenced and then discontinued for a period of six (6)
months.

C. Compliance with Specifications. All main extensions, service connections,and appurtenances
shall be constructed to conform with TRIGID specifications. Mains shall be sterilized to the
satisfaction of TRIGID and activation of the mains for domestic use shall not be perm itted until
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authorized by TRIGID. Connectionsto existing mains shall be made only in the presence of a
representative of TRIGID and at times specified by TRIGID. Shutting down of mains for the
purpose of making connections will notbe permitted when wet tapsare feasible. Mains will be
shut down only with the specific approvalof TRIGID.

Guarantee. Materials and workmanship shall be guaranteed free of defect for a period of one (1)
yearfrom date of acceptance by TRIGID. Upon receipt of notice from TRIGID, the developer or
Customershall immediately cause any defect to be corrected or shall reimburse TRIGID for the
cost of correction.

Rights-of-Way. Water mainsand appurtenances shallbe located within off-site rights-of-way or
within easement grantsto TRIGID not less than 20 feet in width or as TRIGID may specify. All
rights-of-way or easements shall be recorded prior to release of approved plans.

Minimum Size of Main. The minimum size of any main to be constructed asa part of TRIGID's
distribution system shall be six (6) inches in diameter; exceptin certain dead end locations where
there are no fire hydrants and future extensions are not possible, TRIGID may allow mains four
(4) inches in diameter.

Fire Hydrants. Fire hydrant installations shall conform with design and location requirements of
the governmentalagency havingjurisdiction.

Commitment of Water Supply. Main extensions or other facilities constructed by persons for
development of property shall not be considered as reserved for supply to those properties
exclusively. Extensions of and connectionsto such mains for service to others shall be permitted
when, in the opinion of TRIGID, such connections will not substantially affect supply to the
original development or property.

Standard Main Extensions.

A.

General Conditions. Main extensions proposed for construction under provisions of this Article
shall be subject to the general conditionsas described in Article 10.1.

Size of Mains. Proposed water main extensions to serve developments, both on-site and off-site,
shall be of sufficient size to adequately provide a water supply for the development. TRIGID
reserves the right to establish sizes of all mains and appurtenances.

Responsibility for Cost. The cost of all main extensionsto be constructed under Article 10.2,
including service laterals, fire hydrants,and otherappurtenances, shallbe borne by the developer
or Customer.

Agreement and Payment of Fees. Prior to TRIGID's permission to start construction, the
developer or Customer shall execute a standard form of agreement with TRIGID and submit
paymentofallrequired fees, construction water charges, and other fees and deposits asrequired
by these Rules.

Construction by Private Contractoror Developer. Design and preparation of construction
drawings shall be done by competent registered professional engineer selected by the applicant.
Construction work shall be performed by an experienced, properly licensed and competent person
or firm selected by the applicant. In certain circumstances when, in the opinion of TRIGID, the
extent of work to be performed is minor and can be accomplished efficiently and economically by
TRIGID employees or representatives, TRIGID may elect to perform the work and the applicant
shall depositan amount equivalent to the estimated cost. Upon completion of construction, the
differential between estimated and actualcosts will be billed or refunded.
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Completion. Upon completion of the work, the applicant's engineer shall certify thatthe work was
completed according to the plans and specifications, exceptin the case of work completed by
TRIGID. Water service will not be activated untilthe engineer's certification is submitted to
TRIGID and TRIGID accepts the construction.

Oversized Main Extensions.

A.

General Conditions. Main extensions proposed for construction under provisions of this Article
shall be subject to the general conditions described in Article 10.1.

Applicability. For the purpose of this Article, an oversized mainis described as a main larger than
eight inches (8") and which, in addition to providing an adequate water supply to the proposed
development, is required to be of a size which will be capable of meeting future demands for
parcels other than Customer’s on the distribution system and provide for orderly development of
thatsystem. TRIGID reserves the right to determine what constitutes an oversized main.

Location of Mains. Oversized mainsmay be off-site (outside the boundaries of a development)or
traverse the interior area or combination thereof.

Identification of Mains. TRIGID shall indicate and identify on water plans submitted for a
proposed development both the standard and oversized diameters of pipelines to be constructed.

Approval by TRIGID Required. Proposals for oversizing of water mains shall be submitted to
TRIGID forreview and approval. Waterplans, conforming with TRIGID's directive, shall then be
approved and TRIGID shall enter into an agreement with the developer or Customer, providing for
TRIGID's participation in construction costs ashereinafterset forth.

Participation in Cost. Participation by TRIGID for the oversizing of a main extension shall be
based on the difference in actualcost of pipe, fittings, and valves between the size required for the
main extensions and the size required for oversizing, and shall notinclude trenching and
backfilling. The cost difference shall be established by a certified price list from the supplier.
Prices quoted on the list shall be the actualprices charged to the buyer. Hydrantsinstalled by the
developer on off-site lines shall notbe considered asoversizing.

Alternate Method of Payment. TRIGID may,in lieu of a lump sum payment of TRIGID's portion
of'the construction costs, arrange with the developer or Customer for an alternate method of
payment from future hook-ups fora period of ten (10) years.

ARTICLE 11. TERMINATION OF SERVICES

11.1

CustomerRequest for Termination of Service. A Customermay have service terminated by giving not less

than five (5) business daysadvance notice thereof to TRIGID, and provide a mailing address to which the
closing bill will be mailed. Charges for service may be required to be paid until the requested date of
discontinuance or such later date aswill provide notless than the required five (5) business daysadvance
notice. When such notice is not given, the Customerwill be required to pay forservice until five (5)
business daysafter TRIGID hasknowledge thatthe Customerhasvacated the premises or otherwise has
terminated service. Failure to notify TRIGID of termination of service shall notrelieve the Customeror
property owner (if other than the Customer) of responsibility for payment of water bills.

Termination of Service by TRIGID.
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For Nonpayment of Bills. A Customer's service may be discontinued for nonpayment of a bill for
service furnished if the bill is delinquent, provided TRIGID has given the Customerat least five
(5) daysprior notice of its intention to discontinue service.

Premises to which charges have become delinquent may be disconnected from the water system.
TRIGID shall charge the cost of disconnection of such premises and the cost of reconnection
thereto, asprovided in Article 5.2, plus the discontinuance charge in Article 5.11, before such
premises are reconnected to the water system.

For Noncompliance with Rules. TRIGID may discontinue service to any Customer forviolation
ofthese Rules afterit has given the Customeras least five (5) dayswritten notice of such
intention. Where safety of water supply is endangered, or otheremergency circumstances exist,
service may be discontinued or curtailed immediately without notice.

For Inter-Connections, Cross-Connections, or Illegal Connections. Where nonemergency inter-
connection, cross-connection, or illegal connection on or from a Customer's premises occurs,
TRIGID may discontinue service and/ormake such corrections asmay be indicated at Customer's
expense, if such practices are not remedied within five (5) daysafterit hasgiven the Customer
written notice to such effect.

For Unsafe Apparatus or Where Service is Detrimental or Damagingto TRIGID or its Customers.
If any unsafe orhazardous condition is found to exist on the Customer's premises, or if any
apparatusorillegal or prohibited connections, equipment or otherwise, is found to be detrimental
or damagingto TRIGID or its Customers, the service may be discontinued without notice.
TRIGID will notify the Customer immediately of the reasons for the discontinuance and the
corrective action to be taken by the Customerbefore service can be restored.

For Fraudulent Use of Services. When TRIGID has discovered thata Customerhas obtained
service by fraudulent means, orhasaltered the waterservice forunauthorized use, the service to
that Customermay be discontinued without notice. TRIGID may notrestore service to such
Customeruntil that Customerhas complied with all policies, rules and reasonable requirements of
TRIGID and TRIGID hasbeen reimbursed for the full amount of the service rendered and the
actualcostthat TRIGID incurred by reason of the fraudulent use.

Restoration of Service.

A.

To Be Made During Regular Working Hours. TRIGID will endeavorto make reconnections
during regular working hours on the day of the request, if conditions permit; otherwise,
reconnection will be made on the regular working day following the day the request is made.

To Be Made at Other Than Regular Working Hours. When a Customerhasrequested that the
reconnection be made at otherthan regular working hours, TRIGID will reasonably endeavorto so
make the reconnection if practicable underthe circumstances, but will be under no obligation to do
s0, unless an emergency exists. Disconnections or reconnections requested by the Customerat
other than regular working hours may result in the requirement of payment of additional TRIGID
costs in addition to the charges for disconnection and reconnection as outlined in Article 5.2.

Refusalto Serve.

A.

Conditions for Refusal. In addition to the provisions of Article 8.5, TRIGID may refusean
applicant forservice under the following conditions:

1. Ifthe applicant forservice is not within the boundaries of TRIGID.
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2. Ifthe intended use of the service is of such a nature thatit will be detrimentalor injurious
to existing Customers.

3. Ifthe applicant fails to comply with these Rules or other rules as approved by the Board.

4. If, in the judgment of TRIGID, the applicant’sinstallation for utilizing the service is
unsafe or hazardous orsubject to freezing, or flooding, or of such nature that satisfactory
service cannot be rendered.

5. Where service hasbeen discontinued for fraudulent use, TRIGID may elect not to serve
anapplicantuntil it has determined that all conditions of fraudulent use or practice have

been corrected.

6. Ifthe applicant forservice is for a residential use.

B. Notification to Customers. When an applicantis refused service under the provisions of this
Article, TRIGID will notify the applicant promptly, by procedures specified in Article 3.12, of the
reason for the refusalto serve and of theright ofthe applicantto appeal TRIGID's decision to the
Board. Whenever termination of water service will affect more than one Customer, TRIGID will
make reasonable effort to give notice to all Customers.

ARTICLE 12. CROSS CONNECTION CONTROL

12.1 Purpose

A. Protect the TRI-GID potable watersystem from contamination orpollution by preventing contaminants
and pollutants within the water systems of customers from entering the TRI-GID water system;

B. Eliminate existing connections between drinking water systems and other sources of water thatare not
approved assafe and potable forhuman consumption;

C. Eliminate cross-connections between drinking water systems and sources of contamination;

D. Prevent the creation of cross-connections in the future.

12.2 Definitions

A. Air-Gap Separation (AG). “Air gap separation” means a physical break between a supply pipe and a
receiving vessel. The air-gap shall be a least double the diameter of the supply pipe measured vertically
abovethetop rim of the vessel, but in no case less than oneinch (17).

B. Approved Backflow Prevention Assembly. “Approved Backflow Prevention Assembly” refers to an
assembly thathasbeen manufactured in fullconformance with the standards established by the American
Water Works Association (AWWA C506, ‘Current Revision” Standards for Reduced Pressure Principle
and Double Check Valve Backflow Prevention Devices); and has passed laboratory and field evaluation
tests performed by a recognized testing organization which has demonstrated their competency to
perform such test to the TRI-GID Public Works Department.
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Approved Water Supply “Approved Water Supply” means any water supply whose potability is
regulated by a state or local health agency.

Auxiliary Supply. “Auxiliary Supply” meansany watersupply on oravailable to the premises otherthan
the approved watersupply.

AWWA Standard. “AWWA Standard” means an official standard developed and approved by the
American Water Works Association (AWWA).

Backflow. “Backflow” meansa flow condition, caused by a differentialin pressure thatcausesthe flows
of water or other liquids, gases, mixtures or substances into the distributing pipes of a potable supply of
water from any source or sources other than an approved water supply source. Back siphonage is one
cause of backflow. Backpressureis the other cause.

Contamination. “Contamination” means a degradation of the quality of the potable waterby any foreign
substance which createsa hazard to the public health, or which may impair the usefulness or quality of
the water.

Cross-Connections. “Cross-Connections” as used in this chapter means any unprotected actual or
potential connection between a potable watersystem used to supply water fordrinking purposes and any
source or system containing unapproved water or substances that is not or cannot be approved as safe,
wholesome and potable. By-pass arrangements, jumper connections, removable sections, swivel or
changeover assemblies, or other assemblies through which backflow could occur, shall be considered
cross-connections.

Double Check Valve Assembly, (DC). “Double check valve assembly” means an approved backflow
prevention assembly of two (2) internally loaded, independently acting check valves, including resilient
seated shut-off valves on each end of the assembly and test cocks for testing the water-tightness of each
check valve.

Person. “Person” means any individual, corporation, company, association, partnership, municipality,
public utility, or otherpublic body or institution.

Premises. “Premises” means any and all areas on a water user’s property which are served or have the
potentialto be served by the public water system.

Public Water System. “Public Water System” means a system for the provision of piped water to the
public for human consumption that has fifteen (15) or more service connections or regularly serves an
average of twenty-five (25) individuals daily atleast sixty (60) daysoutofthe year.

. Non Potable Water. “Non Potable Water” means a wastewater, which, as a result of treatment, is suitable
foruses other than potable use.

Reduced Pressure Principle Backflow Prevention Assembly. “Reduced pressure principle backflow
prevention assembly” (RP) means an approved backflow prevention assembly incorporating two (2)
internally loaded check valves, including resilient seated shut-off valves on each end of the assembly,
and equipped with necessary test cocks for testing the assembly.

Service Connection. “Service Connection” refers to the point of connection of a user’s piping to the
water supplier’s facilities.



12.3

-27-

P. Water Supplier. “Water Supplier” means the person who owns or operates an approved water supply
system.

Q. Water User. “Water User” meansany person obtaining water from an approved watersupply system.

Cross-connection protection requirements

A. General Provisions

Unprotected cross-connections with the public water supply are prohibited. Nevada Administrative
Code 445, Section 408 requires the State Health Officer’s written approval to interconnect water
supplies.

Whenever backflow protection has been found necessary, TRI-GID will require the water user to
install an approved backflow prevention assembly by and at the user’s expense for continued
services or before new service will be granted. For new water meter sets, the required backflow
assembly shall be installed, inspected, approved and certified test results provided to TRI-GID
within; five (5) days of meter set, unless the TRI-GID District Manager or designee approves
otherwise. The service will be locked off if inspections and certifications are not completed as
specified above.

Wherever backflow protection has been found necessary on a water supply line entering a water
user’s premises, any and all water supply lines from TRI-GID mains entering such premises,
buildings, or structures shall be protected by an approved backflow prevention assembly. The type
ofassembly to be installed will be in accordance with the requirements of this chapter.

B. Where Protection is Required.

1.

Each service connection from the TRI-GID water system forsupplying water to premises havingan
auxiliary watersupply shallbe protected against backflow of water from the premises into the public
water system unless the auxiliary water supply is an approved watersupply. NAC 445, Section 408
requires the State Health Officer’s written approvalto interconnect water supplies.

Each service connection from the TRI-GID water system for supplying water to premises on which
any substance is handled in such fashion as may allow its entry into the water system shall be
protected against backflow of the water from the premises into the public system. This shall include
the handling of process waters and waters originating from the TRI-GID water system which have
been subjected to deterioration of sanitary quality.

Backflow prevention assemblies shall be installed on the service connection to any premises having:

a. Internal cross-connections that cannot be permanently corrected and controlled to the
satisfaction of the TRI-GID or

b. Intricate plumbing and piping arrangements or where entry to all portions of the premises
is not readily accessible for inspection purposes, making it impracticable or impossible to
ascertain whether or not cross-connections exist.

C. Type of Protection Required
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The type of protection that shall be provided to prevent backflow into the approved water supply
shall be commensurate with the degree of hazard that exists on the water user’s premises. The type
of protection assembly that shall be required (listing in an increasing level of protection) includes:
atmospheric vacuum breaker (AVB), pressure vacuum breaker or spill resistant pressure vacuum
breaker (PVB/SVB), double check valve assembly (DC), reduced pressure principle backflow
prevention assembly (RP), and an air-gap separation (AG). The water user may choose a higher
level of protection than required by the TRI-GID. The minimum types of backflow protection
required to protect the approved water supply, at the user’s water connection, are given in NAC
445A.6719 through NAC 445A.6721. Situations thatarenot covered in those sections of the NAC
shall be evaluated on a case-by-case basis and the appropriate backflow protection shall be
determined by TRI-GID.

When two (2) or more services supply water from different street mains to the same building,
structure, or premises through which an inter-street main flow may occur, the premises shall have
atleasta DC on each water service to be located adjacent to and onthe property side of the respective
meters. Such protection shallnot be considered adequate if backflow protection is deemed necessary
to protect the mains from contamination; in such cases the installation of approved backflow
assemblies at such service connections shall be required.

Backflow Prevention Assemblies

Approved Backflow Prevention Assemblies.

I

Only backflow prevention assemblies which have been approved by the University of Southern
California Foundation for Cross-Connection Control and Hydraulic Research shall be acceptable for
installation by a water user connected to TRI-GID’s potable water system.

TRI-GID will provide upon request, to any affected user, a list of approved backflow prevention
assemblies.

Backflow Prevention Assembly Installation

I.

Backflow prevention assemblies shall be installed in a manner prescribed in the Standards and Details
adopted by TRI-GID. Location of the assemblies shall be as close as practical to the user’s service
connection. TRI-GID shall have the final authority in determining the required location of a backflow
prevention assembly.

Air-Gap Separation (AG). The air-gap separation shall be located on the user’s side of and asclose
to the service connection asis practical. All piping from the service connection to the receiving
vessel shall be above grade and be entirely visible. NO water use shall be provided from any point
between the service connection and the air-gap separation. The water inlet piping shall terminate a
distance of at least two pipe diameters of the supply inlet, but in no case less than one inch above
the overflow rim of'the receiving tank.

Reduced Pressure Principle Backflow Prevention Assembly (RP). The approvedreduced pressure
principle assembly shall be installed on the user’s side of and asclose to the service connection as
is practical The assembly shall be installed a minimum of twelve inches above grade and not more
than thirty-six inches above grade, measured from the bottom of the assembly, and with a minimum
of twelve inches side clearance. The assembly shall be installed so that it is readily accessible for
maintenance and testing. Water supplied from any point between the service connection and the RP
assembly shall be protected in a mannerapproved by TRI-GID.
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c. Double Check Valve Assembly (DC). Theapproved double check valve assembly shallbe installed
on theuser’s side of and as close to the service connection as is practical. The DC shall be installed
above grade, if possible, and in a mannerwhere it is readily accessible for testing and maintenance.
Ifa double check valve assembly is put below grade it must be installed in a vault such that there is
a minimum of twelve inches between the bottom of the vault and the bottom of the assembly, so
thatthe top of the assembly is a maximum of twenty inches below grade and a maximum of thirty
inches below grade, so there is a minimum of twenty-four inches of clearance between the side of
the assembly with the test cocks and the side of the vault, and so there is a minimum of twelve
inches clearance between the other side of the assembly and the side of the vault. Special
consideration must be given to double check valve assemblies of the “Y” type. These assemblies
must be installed so that either check valve may be removed forservice and testingcan be completed
without removing the assembly. Vaults thatdo not have an integrated bottom mustbe placedon a
three-inch layer of gravel.

d. Pressure Vacuum Breaker Assembly/Spill Resistant Pressure Vacuum Breaker (PVB/SVB). The
approved PVB/SVB shall be installed 12 above the downstream piping and sprinkler heads. The
assembly shall not be subjectto any backpressure from injection systems, compressed air, pumps,
or other means.

e. Atmospheric Vacuum Breaker (AVB). The use of the AVB for service protection is prohibited.

C. BackflowPrevention Assembly Testing and Maintenance.

I.

The owner of any premises on which, or on account of which, backflow prevention assemblies are
installed, shall have the assemblies tested by a person who is certified as a Backflow Prevention
Assembly Tester by the CA/NV AWWA. Backflow prevention assemblies must be tested at least
annually and immediately a fterinstallation, relocation or repair. TRI-GID may require a more frequent
testing schedule if it is determined to be necessary. No assembly shall be placed back in service unless
it is functioning as required. A report on the TRI-GID applied form must be filed with TRI-GID each
time an assembly is tested, relocated or repaired. These assemblies shall be serviced, overhauled or
replaced, whenever they are found to be defective and all costs of testing, repair, and maintenance shall
be borne by the water user.

A successful, operational function test by a testershall be completed and is due to TRI-GID within seven
(7) daysaftertheassembly is installed and waterservice is set and/orestablished.

Affected waterusers can obtain a list of qualified testers from the Nevada Health District. TRI-GID will
notify affected customers by mail when periodic testing of an assembly is required.

D. BackflowPrevention Assembly Removals

1.

Approvals must be obtained from TRI-GID before a backflow prevention assembly is removed,
relocated, or replaced.

Removal: The use of an assembly may be discontinued and the assembly removed from service upon
presentation of sufficient evidence to TRI-GID to verify thata hazard no longer exists or is not likely to
be created in the future.

Relocation: An assembly may be relocated following confirmation by TRI-GID that the relocation will
continue to provide the required protection and satisfy installation requirements. A retest will be required
following the relocation of the assembly.
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4. Repair: An assembly may be removed for repair, provided the water use is either discontinued until
repair is completed and the assembly is tested and returned to service, or the service connection is
equipped with other backflow protection approved by TRI-GID. A retest will be required following the
repair of the assembly.

5. Replacement: An assembly may be removed and replaced provided the water use is discontinued until
the replacement assembly is installed and tested. All replacement assemblies must be approved by TRI -
GID and must be commensurate with the degree of hazard involved. A retest will be required following
the replacement of the assembly.

12.5 Administrative Procedures

A. Water System Survey

I.

TRI-GID will review all requests for new service to determine if backflow protection is needed.
Plans and specifications must be submitted to the TRI-GID upon request for review of possible
cross-connection hazardsas a condition of service for new service connections. Ifit is determined
that a backflow prevention assembly is necessary to protect the public water system, the required
assembly must be installed before service will be granted.

TRI-GID may require an on-site inspection to evaluate cross-connection hazards. TRI-GID will
transmit a written notice requesting an inspection appointment to each affected water user. Any
water user who cannot provide for an on-premises inspection of premises piping systems shall be
required to install the backflow prevention assembly or air-gap that TRI-GID considers necessary.

TRI-GID may, atits discretion, require a re-inspection forcross-connection hazards of any premises
to which it serves water. The TRI-GID will transmit a written notice requesting an inspection
appointment to each affected water user. Any water user who cannot provide for an on-premises
inspection of premises piping systems shall be required to install the backflow prevention assembly
orair-gap that TRI-GID considers necessary.

B. Tester Responsibilities and Testing Requirements

1.

The TRI-GID approved test form shall be used for required backflow prevention assemblies. This
form is availablein electronic format.

All data on the test form must be legible and complete, otherwise the form will be returned to the
tester for completion.

If the water meter number is not provided on the test form, the tester shall provide a copy of the
water user’s bill and attach itto the test form.

Any tester who conducts tests of backflow prevention assemblies which protect fire service
connections shall also be a licensed fire system contractoror work under the direct supervision ofa
licensed fire system contractor per Nevada State Health.

TRI-GID retains the right to test a water user’s backflow prevention assembly on a random basisas
a quality control measure. Forty-eight hours advance notice will be given to the user.
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6. TRI-GID may conduct periodic spot checks of a tester’s work using the tester’s gage. Also, TRI-
GID may require that the tester perform the test in the presence of a TRI-GID representative.

7. The tester shall calibrate, at least annually, all test gauges per NAC 445A.67245. The calibration
certification forms must be availableatthe TRI-GID’s request.

8. Both backflowprevention assemblies on a Detector Check assembly shall be tested. Designate the
test forthe bypassassembly assuch on the test form. Read the bypass meterand record it on the test
form.

C. Customer Notification: Assembly Installation

1. TRI-GID will notify the water user of the survey findings, listing the corrective actions to be taken
if any arerequired. A period of sixty dayswill be given to complete all corrective actionsrequired,
including installation and testing of approved backflow prevention assemblies or air-gap, unless a
written extension is granted.

2. A second notice will be sent to each water user who does not take the required corrective actions
prescribed in the first notice within the allowed sixty-day period. The second notice will give the
water user a two-week period to take the required correction action. Ifno action is taken within the
two-week period, the TRI-GID may terminate water service to the affected water user until the
required corrective actions are taken.

D. CustomerNotification: Testing and Maintenance

1. TRI-GID will notify each affected wateruserwhen it is time for the backflow prevention assembly,
installed on their service connection, to be tested, or the air-gap to be inspected. This written notice
shall give the wateruser thirty daysto have the assembly tested orair-gap inspected, and supply the
water user with the necessary form to be completed and resubmitted to the TRI-GID.

2. A second notice shall be sent to each water user who does not have the backflow prevention
assembly tested or air-gap inspected as prescribed in the first notice within the thirty-day period
allowed. The second notice will give the water user a two-week period to have the backflow
prevention assembly tested orthe air-gap inspected. If no action is taken within the two week period,
the TRI-GID may terminate water service to the affected water user until the subject assembly is
tested, or air-gap inspected.

12.6 Water Service Termination

A. General
1.  When the TRI-GID encounters water users thatrepresenta clear and immediate hazard to the water
supply that cannot be immediately abated, the TRI-GID shall implement the procedure for
discontinuing TRI-GID water service.

B. Basis for Termination

1. Conditions or water uses that create a basis for waterservice termination include, but are not limited
to, the following items:

a) Refusalto install a required backflow prevention assembly or air-gap separation;
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b) Refusalto test a backflow prevention assembly or inspect an air-gap separation;

c) Refusalto repair a faulty backflow prevention assembly;

d) Refusalto replace a faulty backflow prevention assembly;

e) Direct orindirect connection between the public water system and a sewer line;

f) Unprotected direct or indirect connection between the public water system and equipment

containing contamination;

2) Unprotected direct or indirect connection between the public water system and an auxiliaty
water system;

h) A situation that presents an immediate health hazard to the public water system.

C. Water Service Termination Procedures.

1. Forconditions a,b, c, ord or subsection B, TRI-GID will terminate service to a customer’s premises
after two written notices have been sent specifying the corrective action needed and the time period
in which it mustbe done. If no action is taken within the allotted time period water service may be
terminated.

2. For conditions e, f, g, or h or subsection B, TRI-GID will take the following steps:
3. Makeareasonable effort to advise the water user of intent to terminate water service;

4. Terminate the water supply and lock the service valve. The water service will remain inactive until
corrections of violations have been approved by TRI-GID.

Enforcement

The TRI-GID District Manageror his/her designee shall have the authority to enforce this policy.

It is unlawful for any person, firm, or corporation at any time to make or maintain or cause to be made or
maintained, temporarily or permanently, for any period of time whatsoever, any cross-connection between
plumbing pipes or water fixtures being served with water by TRI-GID water system and any othersource of
water supply or to maintain any sanitary fixture or other appurtenances or fixtures which, by reason of their
construction,may cause orallow backflow of wateror other substances into the water supply system of TRI -
GID and/orthe service of water pipes or fixtures of any customerof TRI-GID.

Severability

If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this policy, or any part
thereof, is for any reason held to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining
portions of this policy or any part thereof.
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ARTICLE 13. SERVICE AREAS

13.1

13.2

Intention. The intent of these Rules is to establish rules, regulations and rates for water service supplied
hereunder only to areasallowed by TRIGID’s service territory for retail service and for wholesale service.
No otherareasshall be served by TRIGID. Otherwise, TRIGID shall establish the service area,based on
its ability to serve and asprovided by law and these Rules.

Wholesale Service. TRIGID may enterinto anagreement with a person who is a regulated public utility
company,a governmental entity authorized by law to provide retail water service, or an accommodator
under NRS 704.030 to provide wholesale water service to said person, provided said person provides retail
water service outside TRIGID’s retail service area in a mannerallowed by law.

ARTICLE 14. DISPUTES, RELIEF, APPEALS, REVIEWS

14.1

142

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

14.7

14.8

14.9

Relief on Application. When any person by reasons of special circumstancesis of the opinion thatany
provision of these Rules is unjust, inequitable or improper as applied to his premises, he may make written
application to the Board stating the special circumstances, citing the provision complained of,and
requesting suspension or modification of that provision as applied to his premises. If such application be
approved, the Board may suspend or modify the provision complained of, asapplied to such premises, to
be effective as of the date of the application and continuing during the period of the special circumstances.

Relief on Own Motion. The Board may, on its own motion, find that by reason of special circumstances
any provision of these Rules should be suspended or modified asapplied to a particular premise and may
order such suspension or modification forany such premises during the period of such special
circumstances, or any part thereof.

Review by the Board. These Rules shall be reviewed by the Board ona periodic basis to ensure thatthe
provisions of these Rules are kept up to date,and thatthe charges and feesset out in Articles 4 and 5 are
adequate to meet the costs of operating the water facilities and recovering the cost of Capital Outlays.

Adjustment of Complaints. The Board shall have the power of discretion in the interpretation and
application of these Rules, including adjustments orrebate of charges, if in the Board’s opinion, the intent
of'the Rules would not be accomplished and an injustice would result by their strict application.

Ruling Final. All rulings ofthe Board shall be final, unless appealed in writing as provided in this Article
within thirty (30) days.

Billing Disputes. Any dispute regarding the payment of any bill, charge or fee demanded by TRIGID is
subject to relief and review asprovided in this Article 14.

Right to Arbitration. Any request for relief made pursuantto Article 14.1 or other dispute arising from
these Rules shall be subject to arbitration,and be decided by arbitration in accordance with the Rules of the
American Arbitration Association currently in effect,unless the parties mutually agree otherwise. Notice
of demand forarbitration shall be filed in writing with the Board and with the American Arbitration
Association.

Limitation on Claim. A demand forarbitration shall be barred unless made within thirty (30) days afterthe
ruling of the Board, and in no eventshall it be made afterthe date when institution oflegal or equitable
proceedings based on such claim would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations.

Claims and Timely Assertion of Claims. A party who files a notice of demand forarbitration must assert in
the demand allclaims then known to that party on which arbitration is permitted to be demanded. When a
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party fails to include a claim through oversight, inadvertence or excusable neglect, or when a claim hasnot
matured orbeen acquired subsequently, the arbitratoror arbitrators may permitamendment. Otherwise, all
unasserted claims are barred.

Judgment on Final Award. The award rendered by the arbitratoror arbitrators shall be binding and final,
and judgment may be entered upon it in accordance with applicable law in any court havingjurisdiction
thereof.

ARTICLE 15. WATER SERVICE AND WATER RESOURCES

15.1

152

153

CustomerProvision of Water Rights. All water rights necessary for water service to a Customerwill be
dedicated to TRIGID by Customer, and waterrights will be allocated by TRIGID to each of Customer’s
uses based on the submittalof building plansin sufficient detail to show the water quantities needed, based
on dedication amountsestablished by TRIGID. Ifactualannualuse of water by a Customer as verified by
metering exceeds the amount of waterrights provided to TRIGID by Customer for water service, Customer
shall afternotice by TRIGID either dedicate to TRIGID the additional waterrights to make up the shortfall,
or reduce its water consumption during the next yearso as notto exceed in actualusage theamount
dedicated. TRIGID reserves theright to discontinue water service to a Customer who by actualusage
exceeds the amount of waterrights dedicated, if the Customerhasin the previous year also exceeded by
actualusage the amount of waterrights dedicated and afternotice by TRIGID has failed to either reduce its
water consumption or to dedicate additional water rights to make up the shortfall. In the event Customer
uses less water onan annualbasisthanhasbeen dedicated for Customer’s use, Customershall not be
entitled to a refund or rebate of water rights or money for the extra water rights not used by Customer. All
water rights dedicated to TRIGID or purchased from TRIGID for any Customer’suse shall be the sole asset
of TRIGID and Customershall have no interest therein nor right to any claim of value or use for the unused
excess amount of waterrights so dedicated.

Will Serve Commitment. Upon provision of adequate waterrights to TRIGID’s satisfaction,approvalof
Customer’s plans and specifications, and compliance with these Rules, TRIGID will issue to Customera
written will serve commitment foreach developmentuse of Customer. Unless Customer is required to
build and dedicate watersystem facilities in accordance with Article 4.3 or Article 10, TRIGID agrees to
cause the construction, atits sole cost and expense, of well improvements, water tanks, waterlines and
other water facilities deemed necessary by TRIGID in order to provide water service to Customer. TRIGID
agrees to deliver water to Customer for Customer’s beneficial purposes. Customer’s shall be obligated: (a)
to use the water only on Customer’s parcel for beneficial purposes not exceeding the amount of Customer’s
water rights utilizing conservation measures (and re-use of effluent) asmay berequired by TRIGID or the
Nevada State Engineer; and (b) to use water conservation devicessuch as in-line aeratorsand flow
restrictors, landscapingadapted to the desert environment,and best available watermanagement practices.
The use of any ground water or surface water (other than water provided by TRIGID) within the service
area of TRIGID without TRIGID’s consentis prohibited. Inaddition, no Customer shall without TRIGID’s
consentapply for, contract to use or own, or hold water rights subjectto a permit issued by the Nevada
State Engineer or a claim from the Orr Ditch Decree (U.S. vs. Orr Ditch Co., et. al, Equity Docket No. A-3,
in the District Court of the United Statesin and for the District of Nevada), which permit or claim hasa
point of diversion or a place of use on any portion of the real property located in Storey County or Lyon
County formerly known as the Asamera Ranch, or known asthe Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center or in
TRIGID’s retail or wholesale service area.

Nonpotable Water. The parties acknowledge that waterirrigation lines for use of untreated surface wateror
sanitary sewer effluent will be installed as part of TRIGID water system in certain areas of TRIGID’s
service area,and Customershall be required to construct a separately metered water irrigation system for
landscaping(and any otheruse forwhich nonpotable watercan be used) which will allow the use of
nonpotable waterin those areas in which nonpotable wateris made available by TRIGID or off -site
nonpotable water facilities are installed for future Customerservice. The parties intend that, if available
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and economically feasible, nonpotable watershall be used for all irrigation purposes (and other nonpotable
water uses) possible in the service area,as determined by TRIGID in its sole discretion.
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ARTICLE 1. GENERAL PROVISIONS

Purpose. TRIGID hasbeen created by Storey County under Nevada Revised Statutes Chapters318 and
308 to own, maintain and operate community waterand sewer systems to provide service to Customers in
the service area,known as Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, pursuant to Ordinance #171 and Resolution 00-
85, both passed on August 8,2000. TRIGID is not regulated asa public utility by the Nevada Public
Utility Commission. TRIGID is a quasi-municipalentity functioningas a political subdivision of the State
of Nevada.

Enterprise. TRIGID will furnish a system used for the provision of fire protection water aswell as
industrial, domestic and commercial water; and for the collection of domestic, commercialand industrial
wastewaterand septic tank effluent; including all parts of the enterprise, all appurtenances thereto,and
land, easements, rights in land, contractrights and franchises.

Separability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of these Rules, Regulations and Charges
or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is for any reason held to be unconstitutionalor
invalid, such decision shall notaffect the validity of the remaining portions of these Rules, Regulations and
Charges or the application of such provision to other persons or circumstances. The Board hereby declares
thatit would have promulgated these Rules or any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase hereof
irrespective ofthe factthatany one ormore sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrasesmay be
declared to be unconstitutional.

Words and Phrases. For the purposes of these Rules, Regulations and Charges, all words used herein in the
present tense shall include the future; all words in the plural numbershall include the singular number; and
all words in the singular numbershall include the plural number.

Water Rights. All water rights arising from wastewaterentering the TRIGID system shall belong solely to
TRIGID, and no Customershall perform any act which impairs or disputes TRIGID’s ownership thereof.

ARTICLE 2. DEFINITIONS

Account Transfer shall mean any change made to a billing account, including but not limited to new
ownership or new tenancy.

Additional Definitions/UPC. For the purpose of these Rules, additionalterms shall have the meanings
indicated in Chapter 1 of the latest edition of the Uniform Plumbing Code asprepared by the International
Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials. Exceptas expressly stated otherwise in these Rules, all
provisions of the latest edition of the Uniform Plumbing Code are incorporated herein by reference

Applicant shall mean the person, business or governmentalagency makingapplication for a permit for
sewer or plumbing installation or to discharge wastewaterinto any sewer, including the TRI Owners
Association.

Application shall be a written request for sewer service (as distinguished from an inquiry asto the
availability of, or charges for, such service) and agreement by Customer to comply with these Rules.

Billing Period shall be the period for which a billing is made. Itmay be for an average month and need not
coincide with the calendarmonth (i.e. may bebilled on a cycle 0of29 to 31 days).

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) shall mean the quantity of oxygen utilized in the biochemical
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oxidation of organic matterunderstandard laboratory procedurein five (5) daysat20 degrees C, expressed
in milligrams per liter (mg/L).

Board shall mean the Board of Trustees of TRIGID.

Building shall mean any structure used for human habitation ora place of business, recreation or other
purposes requiring wastewater disposal services.

Building Drain shallmean that part ofthe lowest horizontal piping of a drainage system which receives the
discharge from soil, waste and other drainage pipes inside the walls of the building and conveysit to the
building sewer. The building drain extendsthree (3) feet outside the inner face of the building wall.

Building Sewer shall mean that portion of any sewer beginning atthe building drain and extending to the
property line or to a private sewage disposal system.

Capital Costs shall mean costs of majorrehabilitation, expansion or upgrading required as facilities reach
the end of their useful life.

CapitalOutlays shall mean expenditures which result in the acquisition of, or addition to, fixed or capital
assets.

Collection System shallmean the system of sewers, manholes, pump stations and appurtenances receiving
liquid wastes from buildings and premises for transmission to the treatment facility.

Combined Sewer shall mean a sewer intended to receive both surface runoffand sewage.

Commercial Building shall meanany building, structure or facility or a portion thereof, devoted to the
purposes of trade or commerce, such asa store or office building.

CommercialUser shall mean all business and service establishments defined in Article 2.77 A and B.

Compatible Pollutant shall mean BOD, COD, suspended solids, pH, totalphosphorus, totalnitrogen, and
fecalcoliform bacteria, plus additionalpollutants identified in the Plant NationalPollutant Discharge
Elimination System (NPDES) permit if the treatment works were designed to treat such pollutants,and in
factdoremove suchpollutantsto anacceptable concentration orloa ding.

Connection Charge shall mean a fee charged in order to compensate TRIGID for the capitalcosts of
investment, maintenance and repairin sewer plant equipment and related sewer facilities made by TRIGID.
The charge is applied to all new users of sewer facilities in approximate proportion to their anticipated
usage and is forthe right of service in the system.

Contractorshall mean an individual, firm, corporation, partnership or association duly licensed by the State
of Nevada to perform the type of work to be done undera Permit.

County shall mean the County of Storey, Nevada.
Cubic Foot is the volume of water which occupies one cubic foot. The cubic footis equalto 7.481 gallons.

Customershall mean the person in whose name service is rendered as evidenced by its signature on the
application or contract forthatservice, or in the absence of a signed instrument, by the receipt and payment

-
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ofbills regularly issued in Customer’snameregardless of the identity of the actualuser of the service.

Date of Presentation shall be the dateupon which a bill or notice is either postmarked orhand delivered to
the Customer.

Delinquent shallmean anaccountthathasnotbeen paid by the 15tday of the calendarmonth following the
due date of payment specified on the bill.

Developer shallmean any person engaged in or proposing development of property in the service area.

Development shall mean a parcelof property being improved and requiring installation of sewer collection
lines, including butnot limited to installation of service mains to and possibly on the property being
improved.

Discharge shall mean the addition of any substance to the sewer system.
Discharger shallmean any person who discharges or causes a discharge to a TRIGID sewer.

Domestic Wastewater shall mean the spent water from building water supply to which hasbeen added the
waste materials of restrooms, kitchen, laundry and otherdischarge sources.

Easement shallmean an acquired legal right for the specific use of land owned by others.

Employee shall mean any individualemployed by TRIGID excluding independent contractors, consultants,
and their employees.

Fixture shall mean any sink, tub, shower, water closet or other facility connected by drain to the sewer.

Fixture Unit is defined and hasthat weighted value assigned in the latest edition of the Uniform Plumbing
Code.

Floatable Oil is oil, fator grease in a physicalstate such thatit will separate by gravity from wastewater by
pretreatment in an approved pretreatment facility. Wastewatershall be considered free of floatable oil if it
is properly pretreated and does not interfere with the collection system.

Gallon is the volume of water which occupies 231 cubic inches.

Garbage shallmean the animaland vegetable waste resulting from the handling, preparation, cookingand
serving of foods.

GovernmentalUser shall include legislative, judicial, administrative,and regulatory activities of federal,
state and local governments.

Incompatible Pollutants shall mean any pollutant which is nota compatible pollutant as defined in these
Rules.

Industrial/Commercial Discharger shallmean a discharger with water-carried waste and wastewater other
than wastewater from domestic sources, and shall include all wastewater from any producing,
manufacturing, processing, institutional, commercial,agricultural, or other operation where the wastewater
discharged includes quantities of waste from human and nonhuman origin.

3
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2.43

2.44
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2.46

2.47

2.48

2.49

2.50

251

2.52

2.53

2.54

IndustrialUser shall include any non-governmental, non-residential user of TRIGID owned treatment
works which is identified in the Standard Industrial Classification Manual, 1972, Office of Management
and Budget, asamended and supplemented, underthe following divisions: Division A-Agriculture,
Forestry, and Fishing; Division B-Mining; Division D-Manufacturing; Division E-Transportation,
Communications, Electric, Gas and Sanitary; and Division I-Services.

Infiltration shall mean the water which enters the sewer lines from the ground, usually through pipe and
manholejoints.

Inflow shall mean the water discharged into the wastewatersystem from any such sources as, butnot
limited to, roof leaders, cellar, yard and area drains, founda tion drains, drains from springs, manhole
covers, cross-connections from storm sewers and combined sewers, and surface runoff.

Inspectorand Industrial Waste Inspector shall mean a person authorized by TRIGID to inspect wastewater
generation, conveyance, processing and disposal facilities.

Institutional User shall include social, charitable, religions, and educationalactivities such asschools,
churches, hospitals, nursing homes, penalinstitutions, and similar institutional users.

Interference shall mean inhibition or disruption of the wastewater facilities treatment processes or
operations which contribute to a violation of any requirements of the Plant NPDES permit. The term
includes prevention of sewage sludge use or disposal of TRIGID in accordance with Section 405 of the
Act, orany criteria guidelines or regulations developed pursuant to the Solid Waste Disposal Act (SWDA),
the Clean Air Act, the Toxic Substances Control Act, or more stringent state criteria (including those
contained in any state sludge management plan prepared pursuant to Title IV of SWDA) applicable to the
method of disposal or use employed by TRIGID.

LateralSewer shall meanthe portion of TRIGID sewer lying within a right of way open to the public
connecting a building sewer to the main sewer.

Law is any statute,rule or regulation established by federal, state, County or municipal authorities.

Living Unit shall mean any residence, apartment, or other structure to be occupied for habitational purposes
by a single person or family and requiring sanitary sewer service.

Main Sewer shall mean a TRIGID sewer line designed to accommodate more than one lateralsewer.

Metered Service is a service for which charges are computed on the basis of measured quantities of water
or wastewater.

NaturalOutlet shall mean any outlet, including storm sewers and combined sewer overflows, into a
watercourse, pond, ditch, lake or other body of surface or groundwater.

New Source shallmean any source, the construction of which is commenced afterthe publication ofan
applicable discharge limitations (covers federalcategorical changes).

Nitrogen or Total Nitrogen shall mean the totalofall nitrogen forms (sometimes referred to as “TKN”),
including organic and inorganic nitrogen, nitrate and nitrite. The totalnitrogen is expressed as N and is
determined by the appropriate procedures in “Standard Methods”.

Normal Domestic Wastewatershall mean wastewaterthathasa five day average BOD concentration of not
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2.56

2.57

2.58

2.59

2.60

2.61

2.62

2.63

2.64

2.65

2.66

2.67

2.68

more than 240 mg/l, a suspended solids concentration of not more than 170 mg/1, a totalphosphorous
concentration as P of not more than 8.0 mg/1 and a totalnitrogen concentrationas N of not more than 26.0

mg/l

Operation and Maintenance shallmean those functions thatresult in expenditures during the useful life of
the treatment works for materials, labor, utilities and other items which are necessary for managingand
maintainingthe sewage works to achieve the capacity and performance for which such works were
designed and constructed. The term “operation and maintenance” includes replacement as defined in these
Rules.

Outside Sewer shall mean a sanitary sewer beyond the limits of TRIGID sewer service area not subjectto
the control or jurisdiction of TRIGID.

Owner shallmean a person who holds legal title to the property or who is under contract to purchase the
property.

Permanent Service is a service which, in the opinion of TRIGID, is of a permanent and established
character. The use of the sewer may be continuous, intermittent or seasonalin nature.

Permit shall mean any written authorization required pursuant to this or any otherregulation of the service
area forthe installation or operation of any wastewater works.

Person shall mean any individual firm, association, organization, partnership, trust, company, corporation
or entity, and any municipal, political, or governmentalcorporation, district, body, or agency other than
TRIGID.

pH shall mean the logarithm of the reciprocal of the hydrogen-ion concentration. The concentration is the
weight of hydrogen-ions, in grams, per liter of solution. Neutral water, for example,hasa pH value of 7
and a hydrogen-ion concentration of 10-7.

Phosphorus or Total Phosphorus includes orthophosphates and condensed phosphates (soluble and
insoluble) and organic and inorganic species. The totalphosphorusis expressed asP andis determined by
the appropriate procedures in “Standard Methods”.

Plant shall mean the wastewater treatment plant(s) of TRIGID.
Plumbing Outlet shallmean any part of a plumbing system to which a fixture is attached.

Plumbing System shall mean all plumbing fixtures and traps; all soil, waste, vent pipes, and all sanitary
sewer pipes within a building and building drain.

Premises shallmeanall of the real property and services to a single integrated activity operating underone
name to one or more buildings, locations or services, provided: (a) such building, locations or services are
to a single unit of property; or (b) such buildings, locations or services are on two or more units of property
immediately adjoining, except for intervening highways, streets, alleys or waterways.

Private Sewer shall mean a sewer serving an independent wastewater disposal system not connected with
TRIGID sewer and which accommodates one ormore buildings or industries.

Properly Shredded Garbage shall mean garbage thathasbeen shredded to such a degree thatall particles
will be carried freely under the flow conditions normally prevailing in TRIGID sewers, with no particle
greater than %2 inch in any direction.
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2.70

2.71

2.72

2.73

2.74

2.75

2.76

2.77

2.78

2.79

2.80

Public Sewer shall mean a sewer lying within an easement, highway, road, street, avenue, alley, way,
public place or right of way and which is owned or controlled by or underthe jurisdiction of TRIGID.

Replacement shallmean expenditures for obtaining and installing equipment, accessories or appurtenances
which are necessary during the usefullife of the treatment works to maintain the capacity and performance
for which such works were designed and constructed.

Residential Equivalent shall mean 25 weighted fixture units as defined in the latest edition of the Uniform
Plumbing Code.

Residential User shall mean any contributorto TRIGID’s treatment works whose lot, parcelor real estate,
or building is used for domestic dwelling purposes only.

Rules shall mean these Rules, Regulations and Rates of The TRI General Improvement District For Sewer
Service.

Sanitary Sewer shall mean a sewer which carries liquid and water carried wastes from residences,
commercialusers, industrial users, and other users together with minor quantities of ground, storm and
surface waters that are not admitted intentionally.

Septic Tank Effluent shall mean the supernate liquid waste discharged by an approved septic tank,
containing no solid waste material.

Service Area shall mean the sewer service area asdesignated in Article 12 ofthese Rules.

Service Classification shall mean:

A. CommercialUnit - Group I Service: Service to office buildings, retail sales and services
establishments, private clubs, motels or hotels, or portions thereof, without kitchen, laundry or other
facilities (excepting toilet facilities) which require wastewater disposal services.

B. CommercialUnit - Group II Service: Service to all commercial buildings notin Group I, or portions
thereof,and shall include but not be limited to, nonindustrial businesses, department stores, restaurants,
clubs and schools.

C. IndustrialService: Service to customersengaged in warehousing or distribution, or in a process which
creates or changesraw or unfinished materials into another form or product (factories, mills,
manufacturing facilities, machine shops, mines, pumping plants, creameries, canningand packing
plants, or processing activities as well asall othernonresidential uses not covered by Subsections A
and B above).

D. Residential Service: Service toa customerin a single family dwelling, mobile home or building, orin
anindividual flat, condominium, or apartment in a multiple family dwelling, or building or portion
thereof occupied asthe home, residence or sleeping place of one or more persons.

Service Connection is the point of connection of the Customer’s piping with TRIGID’s facilities.

Sewage is the spent water of a community. The preferred term is “wastewater”.

Sewer shall mean a pipe or conduit that carries wastewater.
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2.89
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2.92

2.93

Side Sewer shall mean the sewer line beginning three (3) feet outside the foundation wall of any building
and terminating atthe main sewer and shall include the building sewer and lateral sewer together.

Sludge shall mean any discharge of water or wastewater which in concentration of any given constituent or
in quantity of flow exceeds forany period of duration longer than fifteen (15) minutes more than five (5)
times the average twenty-four (24) hour concentration or flows during normaloperation and shall adversely
affect the collection system and/orperformance of the wastewatertreatment works as determined by
TRIGID.

Standard Methods refers to the most current edition of "Standard Methods forthe Examination of Water
and Wastewater", prepared by American Public Health Association, American Water Works Association
and Water Pollution Control Federation.

Storm Sewer or Storm Drain shall mean a sewer which carries storm water, groundwater, subsurface water,
or unpolluted water from any source.

Storm Water shall mean excess water entering sewers during rainfall, snowfall, or following and resulting
therefrom.

Suspended Solids shall mean totalsuspended matter (sometimes referred to as“TSS”) that either floats on
the surface of, or is in suspension in, water, wastewater, or other liquids, and thatis removable by
laboratory filtering as prescribed in “Standard Methods forthe Examination of Waterand Wastewater” and
referred to as nonfilterable residue.

Tenantshall mean a person renting or leasing a premises from the owner or the owner’s selected
representative.

Treatment Works shall mean any devices and systems for the storage, treatment, recycling and reclamation
of municipal sewage, domestic sewage or liquid industrial wastes. These include intercepting sewers,
outfallsewers, sewage collection systems, pumping, power, and otherequipment and their appurtenances;
extensions improvement, remodeling, additions and alterations thereof; elements essential to provide a
reliable recycled supply such asstandby treatment units and clear well facilities; and any works, including
site acquisition of the land that will be an integral part of the treatment process or is used for ultimate
disposal of residues resulting from such treatment (including land for compostingsludge, temporary
storage of such compostand land used for the storage of treated wastewaterin land treatment systems
before land application); or any othermethod or system for preventing, abating, reducing, storing, treating,
separatingor disposing of municipalwaste or industrial waste, including waste in combined storm water
and sanitary sewer systems.

TRIGID shall mean TRI General Improvement District, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada,
formed and existing as specified in Subsection 1.1 ofthese Rules.

Unpolluted Water is waterof quality equal to or betterthan the effluent criteria in effect or water that
would notcause violation of receiving water quality standards and would not ben efit by discharge to the
sanitary sewers and wastewater treatment facilities provided.

Useful Life shall mean the estimated period during which a treatment works will be operated.

User Charge shall mean that portion of the total wastewater service charge which is levied in a proportional
and adequate manner forthe cost of operation, maintenance and replacement of the wastewatertreatment
works.

Waste includes sewage and all other substances, liquid, solid, gaseous, or radioactive, associated with
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3.1

32

33

34

human oranimalorigin, or from producing, manufacturing, or processing operation of whatevernature,
including such waste placed within containers of whatever nature prior to and for the purposes of disposal.

Wastewatershall mean the spent water of a community. From the standpoint of source, it may bea
combination of the liquid and watercarried wastes from residences, commercialbuildings, industrial
plants, and institutions, together with any groundwater, surface water, and storm water that may be present.

Wastewater Facilities shall mean the structures, equipment and processing required to collect, carry away,
and treat domestic and industrial wastes and dispose of the effluent.

Wastewater Treatment Works shall mean an arrangement of devices and structures fortreating wastewater,
compatible industrial wastes and sludge. Sometimesused as synonymous with "Publicly Owned Treatment
Works" or “wastewatertreatment plant” or “water pollution control plant” or “sewer system”.

Watercourse shall mean a naturalor artificial channel for the passage of water either continuously or
intermittently.

Water Meter shall mean a water volume measuring and recording device, furnished and/orinstalled by a
user and approved by TRIGID.

ARTICLE 3. CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

Area Served. Properties within the boundaries of the service area specified in Article 13 shall be eligible to
receive wastewatercollection service from TRIGID in accordance with these Rules and subject to
acceptance by TRIGID of a completed application by Customer.

Penalty for Violation. Forthe failure of the Customer to comply with all or any part of these Rules, the
Customer's service may be discontinued until the Customeris in compliance. Termination of sewer service
shall bein accordance with Article 9.

Notices to Customers. Notices from TRIGID to a Customerwill normally be given in writing, and either
delivered or mailed to Customerat Customer’s last known address. Where conditions warrant and in
emergencies, TRIGID may resort to notification either by telephone, facsimile or messenger. When a
Customeris refused service under the provisions of these Rules, TRIGID will notify the Customer
promptly of the reason for the refusal to serve and of the right of the Customerto appeal TRIGID's decision
to the Board. Failure by the Customer to accepta certified letter notice will not relieve the Customerof
responsibility for contentsof notice.

Notices from Customers. Notice from the Customerto TRIGID may be given by Customeror by
Customer’s authorized representative in writing at TRIGID’s operating office. TRIGID’s current operating
office (which is subjectto change)is:
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3.11

TRI General Improvement District
1705 Peru Drive, Suite 104
McCarran, NV 89437

Telephone: (775) 636-6126

Customer’s Premises. TRIGID employeesshall have the right of accessto Customer's property atall
reasonable hours for any purposerelated to the furnishing of service, industrial waste inspection, and
protection of water quality and quantity. Employees will generally not enter upon Customer's premises to
engage in repair or alteration of Customer's piping and fixtures, since it is the responsibility of Customerto
service or repair its piping and fixtures.

Special Conditions and Circumstances. Inthe eventthatconditions or circumstances arise which are not
specifically covered by these Rules or warrant deviation from these Rules, TRIGID may take whatever
action, including establishing rates and charges which, in its discretion, is warranted, including execution of
contracts and agreements with Customers covering special conditions and circumstances.

Effective Date. These Rules shall become effective on the date of signature of the Board.

Continuity. Adoption ofthese Rules shall not be construed asa waiver of any right or obligation underany
prior agreement, contract,or commitment of Customerand TRIGID.

Meters. All new services shall have watermeters and will be billed accordingto the metered rate schedule.
Ifthere is no water service atthe site, a sewer metershall be required.

Interruption of Service. TRIGID will endeavorto notify Customers in advance of any interruption in
service due to repairs, or other causes. However, in emergency conditions, when notification is not
practical, service may be interrupted for indefinite periods of time. All Customers shall hold TRIGID
harmless for any damages arising from interruptions in service caused by repairs, emergencies or
conditions beyond the control of TRIGID.

Tampering with TRIGID Property. No one exceptan employee or representative of TRIGID shall atany
time in any manner operate the curb cocks or valves, main cocks, gates or valves of TRIGID’s system; or
interfere with the meters or their connections, street mains or otherparts of the system.
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4.1

ARTICLE 4. SCHEDULE OF RATES AND CHARGES

General Metered Water Service. TRIGID shall not increase said rates and connection charges unless the
Board determines that said rates and connection charges are insufficient to pay all costs of Capital Outlays
(including interest carry) along with all operatingcosts of TRIGID, including but not limited to, overhead,
salaries and other employee compensation, operatingand maintenance expenses, taxes, reserve and
replacement, water rights lease or purchase fees, any other fees, expenses and chargesnormal and
customary forwater service utility companies. In the eventsaid rates are insufficient to pay all said
operating costs, then monthly rates may beraised to a level that will cover all costs.

TRI-GID Sewer Rates

Meter Size

Sewer

3/4inch

$27.44

1 inch

$33.81

1 1/2inch

$54.39

2 inch

$101.43

4 inch

$293.58

6 inch

$473.57

8 inch

$757.23

10 inch

$2,094.98

Usage Per 1,000 gallons

$2.69

42 Wastewater Surcharge Rates. The purpose of a wastewatersurcharge is to recover collection, treatment,
disposal, and administration expenses associated with contaminant concentrations higher than normal
domestic strength as defined in article 10.12. The wastewater fees of commercial/industrial dischargers are
based upon the following equation:

_3
1000gal

=2.69 + (BOD — 240) x (0.00263) + (TSS —240) % (0.00211) + (TKN —40) x (0.01326)

BOD = Commercial/industrial customer’s requested biological oxygen demand concentrations, mg/L
SS = Commercial/industrial customer’s requested totalsuspended solids concentrations, mg/L
TKN = Commercial/industrial customer’s requested total Kjeldahl nitrogen concentrations, mg/L

The above equation will be used to calculate the sewer rate for each commercial/industria lcustomerbased
on the highest expected or demonstrated concentrations foreach constituent. The TRI GID may recalculate
the rate if Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs) indicate concentrations higher or lower than the
originally negotiated concentrations.

43 Connection Fees. An applicant fora Will Serve shall pay the sewer connection fee in effect on the date of
the application upon completion of all requirements under Article 8.10. For calculations of connection fees
on all Commercial and Industrialaccounts, the applicant must provide the TRIGID with expected usage
and discharge volume information based on fixture unit counts. This information is to be provided on the
TRIGID prescribed form, certified by a Civil Engineer registered in the State of Nevada,and submitted
along with an approved stamped set of drawings. Connection fees shall be charged on a one-time basis in
the amount 0of $9.57 pergallon per day,based on the approved fixture calculations.

4.4 Build and Dedicate TRIGID System Facilities. If TRIGID determines, in TRIGID’s sole discretion, that
connection of new service for a Customer will exceed the standard specifications (see, Article 8.9) for
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existing capacity of TRIGID’s sewer system, or requires additionaldistribution, treatment or effluent storage
facilities, TRIGID may in its sole discretion require asa condition of service that the Customer design, permit
and construct all additionalnew sewer facilities (e.g., pump station, pipelines, valves) necessary to increase
said capacity or provide facilities for Customer’s use prior to providing sewer service, Customer shall
complete and dedicate to TRIGID without charge all sewer system facilities as constructed. To the extent
thatany of said sewer system facilities are oversized beyond the Customer’s needs, TRIGID shall reimburse
the Customer from connection charges collected from subsequent Customers using said facilities or provide
Customer a credit therefor from connection charges. The basis for reimbursement or credit shall be the
difference in actual costs of the sewer system facilities between the capacity required for the constructing
Customer’s use and the oversized capacity. No overhead, administrative change, profit or interest on said
actualcosts will be reimbursable. All design and construction of said facilities must be approved by TRIGID.
The constructing Customershall not be entitled to a credit from the connection charge for all or any portion
of'the sewer system facilities so constructed, except as specified in this Article. The procedures specified in
Article 10 shall be used for all construction under this Article 4.3. Construction by a third -party developer
of off-site sewer system facilities shall not entitle the Customer to claim a credit or reimbursement for the
water system facilities so constructed.

Basis for Billing. All services shall be billed on the basis of monthly rates specified in Article 4.1.
Customersare responsible for payment based on allwater recorded as havingpassed through a meter
regardless of whether the water was put to beneficial use. The Owner shall be ultimately responsible for
payment of sewer bills and fees for its property in the case of nonpaymentby a tenant orother occupant.

ARTICLE 5. OTHER CHARGES, FEES AND DEPOSITS

Security Deposit for Service. TRIGID may require a security deposit in the amount of Five Hundred
Dollars ($500.00)or one-year’stotalestimated rates (whichever is less) from all new Customers or
applicants, from Customers whose accountsare delinquent on more than one occasion (i.e., two monthly
paymentsoverdue)in any one (1) yearperiod, or in situations where TRIGID hascause to believe thata
deposit is required to ensure payment of bills. At the end of one year of service, if all accountshave been
kept current the amount of the deposit, plus interest accrued at the rate of 4% per annum simple interest,
shall be credited to the succeeding months’bill(s). Service mustbe in place for a minimum of six (6)
months for any interest to be accrued. Upon discontinuance of service, any deposit held by TRIGID will be
applied to the final billing with any depositamountrefunded to the Customer. Ifthe depositis appliedto a
Customer's account because of delinquent bills, all interest accrued will first be applied to delinquent bills.
By posting a deposit, the Customeragrees that the deposit is a pledge to make future payments to TRIGID
and not payments for future services thatare furnished by TRIGID.

Any application for service will notbe granted unless full payment hasbeen made forwateror sewer
services previously rendered to the applicant or Customerby TRIGID, if any. Failure on the partofthe
Customerto makea deposit within fifteen (15) daysafterwritten notice by TRIGID that such deposit be
made or service may be discontinued, shall warrant TRIGID in discontinuing the service to the Customer.
TRIGID may waive the security deposit requirement, in its sole discretion, or acceptalternate security.

Wastewater Discharge Permits and Monitoring Fees. The fees for a wastewater discharge permits and
monitoring shall be based on the actualtime spent on inspection and monitoring. Fees for the wastewater
discharge permit shall be the actualcost of the wastewaterinspection, review and permit creation, plus a
billing and processing fee of $15.00. The minimum charge for a wastewater discharge permit shall be
$50.00. Fees for monitoring shall be the actualcost of monitoring, plus a billing and processing fee of
$15.00.

Sewer Plan Checking and Inspection Fee. Any applicant, Customeror a Developer requiring approvalof
plansby TRIGID, a Will Serve letter, or desiring plan checking shall pay to TRIGID a $500 plan review
fee and a $1000 inspection fee at the time of the Will Serve application.
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5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.12

6.1

Relocation of Service Connection. An existing service connection may berelocated, if the new service is
of'like size and will provide a sewer service to the same parcelof property, upon application and payment
of applicable fees by the Customer.

Increase in Size of Service Connections. Enlargement of a service connection to the same property,
requiring abandonment of the existing connection and installation of a complete replacement connection of
increased size shall be treated asa new service connection and shall be charged accordingly. The fees to be
paid by the Customerupon application forincrease in size of service connection shall be a connection
charge which shall be determined by subtracting the connection charge for the size of service being
abandoned from the connection charge for the size of service being installed, if any.

Structure Under Construction. For the purposes of these Rules, until a structure has installed plumbing
fixtures the structure shall be considered under construction and disconnected from the sewer system of
TRIGID. No charges otherwise provided herein will be accrued during this period.

Public Agencies Exempted from Deposit Requirements. Inlieu of cash deposits or sureties, purchase
orders will be accepted from public agencies.

Delinquent Accounts. Inaddition to other provisions of these Rules, there will be a charge for late
payment. If paymentis notreceived before it becomesdelinquent, a late penalty processing feeand a
penalty on the outstandingbalance will be charged in accordance with Article 7.3 and the service may be
discontinued accordingto the procedure outlined in Article 9.

Damage to TRIGID Property. Persons causing damage to TRIGID property by any willful or negligent act
shall beresponsible forpaymentofcostsincurred. Customers or their contractors, agents and
representatives causing damage to TRIGID property shall be strictly liable for payment ofallcosts caused
by such damage.

Photocopy Charges. The charge for makingphotocopies on TRIGID copying equipment shall be $.25 per
copy.

Charges for Account Transfer and Special Reading. Ifthe Customer requests an account transfer orspecial
meter reading, a processing charge of Fifteen Dollars ($15.00) shall be charged. Customers must give 24-
hours or previous working day's notice for special reading.

Reimbursement for District Costs Benefitting Individuals or Entities: The District shall seek reimbursement
from those individuals or private companies foroutside contract services, including butnot limited to legal
and engineering services, thatare incurred by the District in relation to proposed new development or
special projects that are deemed to benefit individual persons or entities, ratherthan the District customers
atlarge. The reimbursements collected from individual persons or entities shall be limited to the actual
time and materials and unit rate costs incurred by the District related to proposed new development or
special projects thatare deemed, in the District’s discretion, to benefit individual persons or entities, rather
than the District’s customersat large.

ARTICLE 6. MAIN EXTENSION

General Conditions.

A. Construction Plans. A person proposing an extension to TRIGID distribution system to provide sewer
service to a parcel of property shall submit detailed plans. Such plansshall indicate the size and
location (horizontal and vertical) of mains and other facilities, including all service laterals. In
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addition, plans shall designate boundaries of the applicant's property which will be served by the
proposed extension. Sewer system improvements shall be designed by a professional engineer
licensed in Nevada.

TRIGID will review the plansand return written comments to the applicant indicating any necessary
revisions. The applicantshall prepare and submit to TRIGID final plans of the sewer improvements
with all comments addressed to the satisfaction of TRIGID. Upon execution of the appropriate
agreement by the applicant; payment of applicable charges, fees and deposits; approvalof other
appropriate governmentalagencies,and a preconstruction conference with TRIGID, TRIGID will give
the applicant permission to start construction. No sewer related construction will be started before
permission is granted by TRIGID.

Time Limitation. Approval by TRIGID for any main extension shall be valid for a limited time as will
any related commitment of existing capacity in a particularmain. Inthe eventthat construction of the
mains covered by any approved plan is not started within one (1) yearfrom the date of approval, the
project shall be deemed to have been abandoned, and any subsequent proposal forreactivation shall be
treated asa new project. The same shall apply when active construction work within a property is
commenced and then discontinued fora period of six (6) months.

Compliance with Specifications. All main extensions, service connections,and appurtenances shallbe
constructed to conform with TRIGID specifications. Activation of the mainsshall not be permitted
until authorized by TRIGID. Connectionsto existing mainsshall be made only in the presence of a
representative of TRIGID and at times specified by TRIGID. Mains will be shut down only with the
specific approvalof TRIGID.

Guarantee. Materials and workmanship shall be guaranteed free of defect for a period of one (1) year
from date of acceptance by TRIGID. Upon receipt of notice from TRIGID, the developer or Customer
shall immediately cause any defect to be corrected, or shall reimburse TRIGID for the cost of
correction.

Rights-of-Way. Sewer mainsand appurtenances shallbe located within off-site rights-of-way or
within easement grantsto TRIGID not less than 20 feet in width or as TRIGID may specify. All
rights-of-way or easements shall be recorded prior to release of approved plans.

Commitment of Sewer Service. Main extensions or other facilities constructed by persons for
development of property shall not be considered as reserved for supply to those properties exclusively.
Extensions of and connections to such mains for service to others shall be permitted when, in the
opinion of TRIGID, such connections will not substantially affect service to the original development
or property.

6.2 Standard Main Extensions.

A.

August 21, 2020

General Conditions. Main extensions proposed for construction underprovisions of this Article shall
be subject to the general conditions as described in Article 6.1.

Size of Mains. Proposed main extensions to serve developments, both on-site and off-site, shall be of
sufficient size to adequately provide sewer service for the development. TRIGID reserves the right to
establish sizes of all mains and appurtenances.

Responsibility for Cost. The cost of all main extensions, including service lateralsand other
appurtenances to be constructed under Article 6.2, including permit fees and any otherrelated fees,
shall be borne by the developer or Customer.
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D.

Agreement and Payment of Fees. Prior to TRIGID's permission to start construction, the developer or
Customershall execute a standard form of agreement with TRIGID and submit payment of allrequired
fees, charges and deposits asrequired by these Rules.

Construction by Private Contractoror Developer. Design, permitting and preparation of construction
drawings shall be done by competent registered professional engineer selected by the applicant.
Construction work shall be performed by an experienced, properly licensed and competent person or
firm selected by the applicant. In certain circumstances when, in the opinion of TRIGID, the extent of
work to be performed is minor and can be accomplished efficiently and economically by TRIGID
employees or representatives, TRIGID may elect to perform the work and the applicant shall deposit
anamount equivalent to the estimated cost. Upon completion of construction, the differential between
estimated and actualcostswill be billed or refunded.

Completion. Upon completion of the work, the applicant's engineer shall certify thatthe work was
completed according to the plans and specifications, exceptin the case of work completed by TRIGID.
Sewer service will notbe activated untilthe engineer's certification is submitted to TRIGID and
TRIGID acceptsthe construction.

6.3 Oversized Main Extensions.

A.

August 21, 2020

General Conditions. Main extensions proposed for construction under provisions of this Article shall
be subject to the general conditions described in Article 6.1. When applicable, the provisions of this
Article 6.3 shall govern over the provisions of Article 4.4.

Applicability. For the purpose of this Article, an oversized mainis described as a main larger than
eight inches (8") and which, in addition to providing an adequate sewer service to the proposed
development, is required to be of a size which will be capable of meeting future demands forparcels
other than Customer’s on the distribution system and provide for orderly development of thatsystem.
TRIGID reserves theright to determine what constitutes an oversized main.

Location of Mains. Oversized mains may be off-site (outside the boundaries of a development)or
traverse the interior area or combination thereof.

Identification of Mains. TRIGID shall indicate and identify on plans submitted for a proposed
developmentboth the standard and oversized diameters of pipelines to be constructed.

Approval by TRIGID Required. Proposals for oversizing of water mains shall be submitted to
TRIGID forreview and approval. Plans, conformingwith TRIGID's directive, shall then be approved
and TRIGID shall enter into an agreement with the developer or Customer, providing for TRIGID's
participation in construction costs as hereinafterset forth.

Participation in Cost. Participation by TRIGID for the oversizing of a main extension shall be based
on the difference in actualcost of pipe, fittings, and valves between the size required for the main
extensions and the size required for oversizing and shall notinclude trenching and backfill. The cost
difference shall be established by a certified price list from the supplier. Prices quoted on the list shall
be the actualprices charged to the buyer.

Alternate Method of Payment. TRIGID may,in lieu of a ump sum payment of TRIGID's portion of
the construction costs, arrange with the developer or Customer for an alternate method of payment
from future connection charges of other Customers for a period often (10) years.
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7.2
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7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

ARTICLE 7. TIME AND MANNER OF PAYMENT

Issuance of Bills. TRIGID shall issue a monthly bill for each service in accordance with these Rules.
TRIGID shall send outbills forsewer service and forwhich no payment hasbeen received and shall use the
rates and charges established by these Rules to determine the amount.

Bills Due When Presented. Upon presentation,all bills shall be due and payable atthe operating office of
TRIGID or as specified in the bills.

Delinquent Accounts. Accounts notpaid in accordance with Article 5.8 are delinquent and shall be
charged a late fee of 1.5 percent per month of the outstandingbalance plusa basic penalty fee of ten
percent (10%) of the delinquent monthly billing.

Discontinuance of Service. TRIGID may discontinue service toa Customerhavinga delinquentbill as
specified in Article 9.2.

Represents Lien on Property. Until paid, allrates and charges provided in these Rules which are delinquent
constitute a perpetuallien onand against the property served and may be foreclosed upon as provided by
law.

Proration of Service Charges: Minimum Bill. Ifany opening or closing bill is for a period shorter than the
regular billing period, the baserate charge for service shall be reduced in the same proportion asthe actual
period of use is reduced from the regular billing period.

Failure to Receive a Bill. Failure to receive a bill does notrelieve the Customerofthe obligation to pay for
services received.

Checks Not Honored by Bank. Checks presented in payment to TRIGID which are returned by a bank shall
be treated as though no payment had been made and a fifty dollar($50.00) handling charge will be levied
by TRIGID plus any additionalcharges of the bank. Paymentin lieu of returned checks may be required to
be by cash or equivalent. The Customermustreimburse TRIGID for any returned check fees charged by a
bank to TRIGID.

Estimated Bills and Non-operable Meters. Ifa meter cannot be read because of obstructions or other
causes, an estimate shall be made of the quantity of waterused, and a bill shall be issued for the estimated
service. The nextsucceeding bill which is based upon actualmeterreadings will reflect the difference
between prior estimates and actualconsumption. If a meteris found to be non-operable, consumption shall
be estimated and billed, considering all pertinent factors.

Billing Adjustments. Where billing adjustmentsare processed forinaccurate meterrecordings or other
usage adjustments, if the meter has:

A. under-recorded the usage of water, the adjustment shallbe only for the period of the most recent six (6)
monthsofusage.

B. over-recorded the usage, the adjustment in the form ofa credit shall be made only for the period of the
mostrecent six (6) monthsofusage.
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82

8.3

8.4

85

8.6

8.7

8.8

A Customer who, because of an adjustment to their bill, owes TRIGID money for service may pay that
amountover a three (3) month period. TRIGID shall credit the Customer who was overcharged because of
aninaccurate meternot later than thirty (30) daysafterthe overcharge is determined.

Disputed Bills. Inthe case of a dispute between a Customerand TRIGID asto the correct amountofany
bill rendered by TRIGID for service furnished to the Customer, the Customerwill deposit with TRIGID the
amount claimed by TRIGID to be due. Failure on the part of the Customerto make such deposit within
fifteen (15) daysafterwritten notice by TRIGID that such deposit be made or service may be discontinued,
shall warrant TRIGID in discontinuing the service to the Customerwithout further notice. A billing dispute
notresolved to the Customer’s satisfaction is subject to the dispute resolution pro cedures as provided in
Article 13.

ARTICLE 8. APPLICATION FOR SERVICE

Application. Each person applying for a new sewer service or changesin an existing service, will be
required to sign appropriate application forms provided by TRIGID and to pay all required feesand
charges. The application form shall include an agreementto abide by all TRIGID rules and regulations and
shall require furnishing such information as TRIGID may reasonably require. Each applicantshall describe
the type of development proposed for the property.

Existing Service Connection. Applicants for service through existing service connections shall
nevertheless provide required information on application forms provided by TRIGID.

New Service. The applicant shallprovide any and all information which will assist TRIGID in properly
sizing and locating a service lateral, including a description of the development, the use of water and
plumbing plans of the private facilities, if required. Applications shall be accompanied by payment ofany
deposit, applicable fees, plus the connection charge, unless deferred.

Work to be Inspected. All sewer facilities construction work shall be inspected by TRIGID to ensure
compliance with all TRIGID requirements. No sewer shall be covered atany pointuntil it hasbeen
inspected and passed foracceptance. No sewer shall be connected to the sewer system until all work has
been completed, inspected, approved and accepted by TRIGID.

Self-identification of User Type. Whether a new, or existing service, the applicant shall identify
themselves to the TRIGID if they are classified asa Significant Industrial User as defined in 40 CFR 403.3
(v), or a Categorical Industrial User subjectto any standard in 40 CFR chapterI,subchapterN.

Correct Information. Intheeventthatan applicant providesincorrect information asto the size and
location of a service connection or requests a change in the size or location afterwork hascommenced, the
applicantshall pay any costsincurred by reason of such corrections and changes.

Rejection of Application. Applications for service through existing or new service connections
accompanied by all required fees and charges may nevertheless be rejected if:

A. The accountoftheapplicant or any otherperson (e.g., prior Customer, tenant,owner) atthe same
service location, or the applicantatanotherlocation, is delinquent; or

B. The purpose of the applicant, in the opinion of TRIGID, is to circumvent discontinuance of service in
anothername because of nonpayment of sewer bills.

Service Outside Service Area Boundary. Only property within the service area boundary is eligible for
sanitary sewer service from TRIGID. Property outside the service area must be annexed into the service
area before application can be made forsanitary sewer service to the property. Applicant shall pay all costs
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8.9

8.10

8.11

9.1

9.2

associated with annexation of property into the service area. The Board may deny any annexation request,
in its sole discretion, and the Board shall not approve any annexation that conflicts with existing County
Master Plans and/orexisting Development Agreements forthe TRIGID Service Area. The Board may
annex, in its sole discretion, any property for wholesale service, and any nonresidential p roperty for retail
service.

Design. Construction of New Connections, Inflow Sources. No new connection shall be made to TRIGID
sewer system unless the sameis properly designed and constructed complying with the Uniform Plumbing
Codeand approved TRIGID Design Standards and Details. All inflow sources including but not limited to
roof leaders, cellar, yard and area drains, foundation drains, cooling water discharges, drains and springs
and swampy areas, manhole covers, cross connections from storm sewers and combined sewers, catch
basins, storm waters, surface runoff, street wash waters or drainage shall not be permitted to be connected
to the sewer system.

Prohibition against Altering Connections. No person may bypass, adjust,oralter any piping arrangement
(including metering devices) from a premises connecting to the sewer without the prior written consent of
TRIGID.

Will Serve Commitment. Upon approvalof Customer’s application for service and compliance with all
provisions of these Rules, TRIGID will issue to Customera written will serve commitment foreach sewer
use of Customer. Unless Customeris required to build and dedicate sewer system improvements in
accordance with Article 4.4 or Article 6, TRIGID agrees to cause the construction, atits sole cost and
expense, of all community sewer system facilities deemed necessary by TRIGID in order to provide sewer
service to Customer.

ARTICLE 9. TERMINATION OF SERVICES

CustomerRequest for Termination of Service. A Customermay have service terminated by giving not less
than five (5) business daysadvance notice thereof to TRIGID and provide a mailing address to which the
closing bill will be mailed. Charges for service may be required to be paid until the requested date of
discontinuance or such later date as will provide notless than the required five (5) business daysadvance
notice. When such notice is not given, the Customerwill be required to pay forservice until five (5)
business daysafter TRIGID hasknowledge thatthe Customerhasvacated the premises or otherwise has
terminated service. Failure to notify TRIGID of termination of service shall notrelieve the Customeror
property owner (if other than the Customer) of responsibility for payment of sewer bills.

Termination of Service by TRIGID.

A. For NonpaymentofBills. A Customer's service may be discontinued for nonpayment of a bill for
service furnished if the bill is delinquent, provided TRIGID has given the Customerat least five (5)
days prior notice of its intention to discontinue service.

B. Premises to which charges have become delinquent may be disconnected from the sewer system.
TRIGID shall charge the cost of disconnection of such premises and the cost of reconnection thereto,
plus the discontinuance charge before such premises are reconnected to the sewer system.

C. For Noncompliance with Rules. TRIGID may discontinue service to any Customer forviolation of
these Rules afterit has given the Customerasleast five (5) days written notice of such intention.
Where safety of watersupply or water quality is endangered, or other emergency circumstances exist,
service may be discontinued or curtailed immediately without notice.

D. For Infiltration, Cross-Connections, or Illegal Connections. Where nonemergency infiltration,
discharge of harmful waste, inter-connection, cross-connection, or illegal connection on or from a
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Customer's premises occurs, TRIGID may discontinue service and/ormake such corrections asmay be
indicated at Customer's expense, if such practices are not remedied within five (5) daysafterit has
given the Customerwritten notice to such effect.

For Unsafe Apparatusor Where Service is Detrimental or Damagingto TRIGID or its Customers. If
any unsafe orhazardous condition is found to exist on the Customer's premises, or if any apparatusor
illegal or prohibited connections, equipment or otherwise, is found to be detrimentalor damagingto
TRIGID or its Customers, the service may be discontinued without notice. TRIGID will notify the
Customerimmediately of the reasons for the discontinuance and the corrective action to be taken by
the Customerbefore service can be restored.

For Fraudulent Use of Services. When TRIGID has discovered thata Customerhasobtained service
by fraudulent means, orhasaltered sewer service for unauthorized use, the service to that Customer
may be discontinued without notice. TRIGID may notrestore service to such Customeruntil that
Customerhas complied with all policies, rules and reasonable requirements of TRIGID and TRIGID
hasbeen reimbursed for the full amount of the service rendered and the actualcostthat TRIGID
incurred by reason of the fraudulent use.

93 Restoration of Service.

A.

To Be Made During Regular Working Hours. TRIGID will endeavorto make reconnections during
regular working hours on the day of the request, if conditions permit; otherwise, reconnection will be
made on the regular working day following the day the request is made.

To Be Made at Other Than Regular Working Hours. When a Customerhasrequested thatthe
reconnection be made at otherthan regular working hours, TRIGID will reasonably endeavorto so
make the reconnection if practicable underthe circumstances, but will be under no obligation to do so,
unless an emergency exists. Disconnections or reconnections requested by the Customerat other than
regular working hours may result in the requirement of payment of additional TRIGID costs in
addition to the charges for disconnection and reconnection.

94 Refusalto Serve.

A.

August 21, 2020

Conditions for Refusal. In addition to the provisions of Article 8.7, TRIGID may refuse an applicant
for service under the following conditions:

1. Ifthe applicant forservice is not within the boundaries of TRIGID.

2. Ifthe intended use of the service is of such a nature that it will be detrimentalor injurious to
existing Customers.

3. [Ifthe applicant failsto comply with these Rules or other rules as approved by the Board.

4. If, in the judgment of TRIGID, the applicant’s installation for utilizing the service is unsafe or
hazardous orsubject to freezing, or flooding, or of such nature that satisfactory service cannot be
rendered.

5.  Where service hasbeen discontinued for fraudulent use, TRIGID may elect not to serve an
applicantuntil it has determined thatall conditions of fraudulent use or practice have been
corrected.

6. When the collection lines, disposal systems, or treatment facilities do not have capacity orthe
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capability to receive and/ortreat sewage, septic tank effluent, or liquid waste without
contamination of the ground or surface waters of the basin or the watershed of the Truckee River,
orin violation of Health Department requirements.

7. [Ifthe applicant forservice is for a residential use.

B. Notification to Customers. When an applicantis refused service under the provisions of this Article,
TRIGID will notify the applicant promptly, by procedures specified in Article 3.3, of the reason for the
refusal to serve and of the right ofthe applicantto appeal TRIGID's decision to the Board. Whenever
termination of water service will affect more than one Customer, TRIGID will make reasonable effort
to give notice to all Customers.

ARTICLE 10. REGULATION OF WASTEWATER DISCHARGE

Purpose and Policy. The portions of these Rules regarding wastewater discharge regulation impose
uniform requirements for discharges into TRIGID’s wastewater collection system and enable TRIGID to
comply with any applicable state and federal water quality standards, limitations and pretreatment
standards, to derive the maximum public benefit by regulating the quality and quantity of wastewater
discharged. These regulations provide a means fordetermining wastewater volumes, constituents, and
characteristics, the issuance of discharge permits to certain users, and enforcement.

Administration. Exceptas otherwise provided herein, TRIGID shall administer, implement and enforce the
provisions of this regulation of wastewaterdischarge. Any powers granted or duties imposed upon
TRIGID may be delegated by TRIGID to persons acting in the beneficial interest of or in the employment
of TRIGID.

Dischargers Subjectto These Regulations. All wastewater dischargers, domestic and
industrial/commercial, to TRIGID sewer system are subject to the wastewaterregulations, inspection,
enforcement and charges provided in these Rules.

Discharges Prohibited from Sanitary Sewers. Sewage, waste, or any matterhavingany of the following
characteristics shall not, under any conditions, be discharged into, be placed where they might find their
way into, or be allowed to run, leak or escape into any part of TRIGID sewer system:

A. Any gasoline, benzene, naphtha, solvent, fuel oil, or any other liquid, solid, or gas which create a fire
or explosion hazard in the POTW, including, but not limited to, waste streams with a closed cup
flashpoint of less than 140 degrees Fahrenheit or 60 degrees Centigrade using the test methods
specified in 40 CFR 261.21;

B. Pollutants which will cause corrosive structuraldamage to the POTW, butin no case Discharges with
pH lower than 5.0, unless the works is specifically designed to accommodate such Discharges; any
waste with a pH greater than 9.5 pH units or high enough to cause alkaline incrustations on sewer
walls or other adverse effects on the wastewatersystems;

C. Any solids or viscous wastes that may cause deposition, obstruction, damage orreduction of flow in
the sewer, be detrimentalto proper wastewater treatment plant operations, orother interference. These
objectionable substances include, but are not limited to: asphalt,dead animals, offal, ashes, sand, mud,
straw, industrial process shavings, metal, glass, rags, feathers, tar, plastics, wood, paunch manure,
bones, hair fleshings, entrails, paper, dishes, papercups, milk containers,or other similar paper
products, either whole or ground;

D. Any pollutant,including oxygen demandingpollutants (BOD, etc.) released in a Discharge ata flow
rate and/orpollutant concentration which will cause Interference with the POTW.
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E. Heatin amounts which will inhibit biological activity in the POTW resulting in Interference, but in no
case heatin such quantities thatthe temperature atthe POTW Treatment Plant exceeds 40 °C (104 °F)
unless the Approval Authority, upon request of the POTW, approvesalternate temperature limits.

F. Petroleum oil, nonbiodegradable cuttingoil, refined petroleum products, or products of mineral oil
origin in amounts that will cause interference or pass through;

G. Any waste containing or causing the promotion of toxic or poisonous solids, liquids, or gases that,
alone or in combination with other waste substances may create a hazard forhumans,animals, or the
environment, interfere with wastewater treatment processes, cause a public nuisance, or cause any
hazardous condition to occur in the wastewater system

H. Any trucked or hauled pollutants,except at discharge points designated by the POTW;

I.  Any inflow sources, including rainwater, stormwater, groundwater, street drainage, subsurface
drainage, roof drainage, yard drainage,and water from yard fountains, pondsor law sprays, or any
other uncontaminated water. Itis unlawfulto connect any sewer lateral to TRIGID’s wastewater
facilities which would allow infiltration discharges in excess of two hundred gallons per day per pipe
diameterinch per mile of length;

J.  Any water added forthe purpose of diluting waste;

K. Any radioactive,radiological, or chemical/biological warfare, waste or materialexceeding 100 mg/L
exceptas regulated by the state or federal government;

L. Any matterthat would be poisonousto or inhibit the biological organisms associated with any sewage
treatment process, and which, in the opinion of the TRIGID, might interfere with the satisfactory
operation of any treatment facility or any portion of the sewer system.

Administration - Determination of Prohibited Discharge. TRIGID shall makeall discretionary
determinations asmay be required to administerthese Rules and shall recover the cost incurred in making
such determinations from the discharger.

Prohibition on Unpolluted Water. Unpolluted water including, but not limited to, process cooling water,
blowdown from cooling towers or evaporator coolers, and swimming pool water, shallnot be discharged
through direct or indirect connection into TRIGID sewer system unless an discharge permit is issued by
TRIGID forsuch discharge. TRIGID may approve the discharge of such water when no reasonable
alternative method of disposalis available and such discharge does not violate other sections of these

Rules. Ifa permit is granted for the discharge of such water into the wastewater facilities, the user shall pay
the applicable charges and fees and shall meet such other conditions required by TRIGID.

Exclusions from Sanitary Sewers. In addition to the matterexcluded heretofore, all surface drainage water
shall be excluded from all parts of the sewer system designated by TRIGID asthe sanitary sewer system.

Septic Tank Waste. Itis unlawful to discharge any septic tank or cesspool waste to TRIGID sewer system
unless specifically authorized in writing by TRIGID. The time and place for the specific discharge and
required characteristics of the matter discharged shall be designated by TRIGID. No discharge shall violate
any section of these Rules.

Limitations on the Use of Garbage Grinders, and Required Use of Grease Traps and Interceptors. Waste
from garbage grinders shall not be discharged into TRIGID’s wastewater facilities except when the wastes
are generated in preparation of food normally consumed on the premises and the grinders shred the waste to
a degree thatall particles will be carried freely under normalflow conditions prevailing in the wastewater
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facilities, and to a size not to exceed one-halfinch in any dimension. Garbage grinders shall notbe used
for grinding plastic, paperproducts, inert materials or garden refuse. All scullery or dish table wastes shall
notbe put through a garbage grinder unless the discharge is through an approved grease interceptor.

All waste discharged from establishments which may generate grease shall install and maintain a grease
interceptor. Sizing specifications for grease trapsand interceptors are outlined in Chapter7 and Appendix
H of'the Uniform Plumbing Code. TRIGID may waive the required minimum size grease interceptor. The
design, operation and sizing of all grease traps and interceptors must be approved by TRIGID.

Grease traps, interceptors and sand/oil separators shall be constructed to preventany bypass of matter
prohibited in the wastewatersystem. Sand/oil separatorsshall be a minimum capacity of 1,000 gallons
except when otherwise specified in Appendix I of the Uniform Plumbing Code.

The introduction of emulsifiers, bacteria,enzymes or any other product into the grease trap or interceptor
which could cause oil and grease to passthrough the trap or interceptor is prohibited. Grease trapsand
interceptors shall be cleaned regularly to ensure proper operation.

10.10  Limitations on Point of Discharge. No person shall discharge any substances directly into a manhole or
other opening in a TRIGID sewer other than through an approved building sewer unless he hasbeen issued
a permit by TRIGID. If a permit is issued for such direct discharge, the user shall pay the applicable
charges and fees and shall meet such otherconditions as required by TRIGID.

10.11 Limitations on Wastewater Strength. Except asexpressly permitted by these Rules or by TRIGID upon
demonstration of good cause,no person shall discharge wastewater containing constituents in excess of:
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Constituent
Alkalinity, Total
Arsenic
Barium
Biological Oxygen Demand, BOD
Boron
Cadmium
Chloride
Chromium
Chemical Oxygen Demand, COD
Copper
Cyanide
Fluoride
Iron
Lead
Manganese
Mercury
Nickel
pH
Phenol
Phosphorus
Selenium
Silica, as SiO»

Silver
Sulfate
TotalChlorinated Hydrocarbons
TotalDissolved Solids, TDS
TotalKjeldahl Nitrogen, TKN
TotalSuspended Solids, TSS
Zinc

Pesticides and Herbicides
Chlordane
Lindane
Heptachlor
Methoxychlor
Taxaphene
2-4D
2-4-5T
Parathion
Malathion
Guthion
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Maximum Concentration
430 mg/L
.05 mg/L
4.0 mg/L
240 mg/L
1.00 mg/L
0.01 mg/L
110mg/L
0.05 mg/L
720 mg/L
0.05 mg/L
0.23 mg/L
4.0 mg/L
5.0 mg/L
0.30 mg/L
0.70 mg/L
0.01 mg/L
1.80 mg/L

6.5-9.5
.005 mg/L
8 mg/L
0.04 mg/L
80 mg/L
0.05 mg/L
240 mg/L
0.005 mg/L
500 mg/L
40 mg/L
240 mg/L
1.0 mg/L

Maximum Concentration
0.005 mg/L
0.005 mg/L
0.005mg/L
0.005mg/L
0.005 mg/LL
0.005 mg/LL
0.005 mg/LL

0.0016 mg/L
0.004 mg/L
0.004 mg/L




10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

Revision of Wastewater Regulations. Effluent limitations promulgated by any federal, state or locallaw,
and regulations and guidelines promulgated thereunder, shall apply in any instance where they are more
stringent than those in these regulations.

Limitations on wastewater strength in Article 10.12 may be supplemented with more stringent limitations
pursuant to Article 12 of these Rules:

A. IfTRIGID determines that the limitations in Article 10.12 of these Rules may not be sufficient to
protect the operation of the sewer system.

B. IfTRIGID determines that the limitations in Article 10.12 may notbe sufficient to enable TRIGID
sewer system to comply with water quality standards oreffluent limitations specified in any federal,
state or local permit.

C. Ifanymatterofanynature may be discharged into the sewer system, which discharge might
reasonable be considered a violation of these Rules, the controlling characteristic of such mattershall
be determined to the satisfaction of TRIGID. The responsibility of initiating such determinations of
any costs involved and of submitting the results of the determinationsto TRIGID for its approvallie
solely with the party of parties desiring to discharge the matterinto the sewer system. Verification of
these results and the decision asto whether or nota permit shall be issued shall be the responsibility of
TRIGID. The adoption of different rules or policies subsequent hereto does not constitute a waiver of
TRIGID’s right toregulate or prohibit the discharge of any matter.

Accidental Discharges. Customers shall notify TRIGID immediately upon accidentally discharging waste
in violation of these Rules to enable TRIGID to take proper measures to reduce the impact of the discharge.
This notification must be followed by a detailed written statement within fifteen (15) daysofthe date of
occurrence.

Excessive Discharge. No Customer shall ever increase the use of process water or in any way attempt to
dilute a discharge as a partial or complete substitute for adequate treatment to achieve complian ce with the
limitations enforceable under these Rules.

Cooling Water. Exceptas expressly permitted by TRIGID or these Rules, facilities using water for cooling
shall not discharge the cooling water to the wastewatersystem or storm drain system. Recirculation of
such cooling water shall be required.

Pretreatment. Industrial/commercial process water shall be pretreated, if necessary,to meet discharge
requirements of these Rules. If process water can be recirculated or reused, equipment shall be installed to
accomplish the recirculation or reuse.

Identification of Process Chemicals. All process chemicalsand industrial wastes shall be properly labeled
for identification purposes.

ARTICLE 11. WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMITS

Permit for Industrial/lCommercial Dischargers. Industrial/Commercialdischargers connected to the
TRIGID sewer system shall obtain a wastewater discharge permit from TRIGID. No industrial/commercial
discharger may discharge without such a permit. TRIGID shall require permits for the following categories
of industrial/commercial dischargers:
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A. Dischargers with anaverage process waste stream of twenty-five thousand (25,000) gallons per day or
more to the TRIGID wastewaterplant (excluding sanitary,noncontact coolingand boiler blowdown
wastewater)

B. Dischargers whose effluent strength (BOD, totalsuspended solids, totalKjeldahl nitrogen) exceeds the
limitations on wastewaterstrength asdescribed in article 10.12;

C. Dischargers using an unmetered water source;

D. All industrial dischargers for which nationalpretreatment standards ha ve been established under
federal, state or local law and regulations and guidelines promulgated thereunder;

E. Other dischargers asdetermined by TRIGID to require special regulation or source control.

11.2 Exemption from Requirementto Obtain a Wastewater Discharge Permit. The TRIGID may determine that
anindustrial/commercial discharger is nonsignificant based on information supplied by the discharger
representing a process wastewater stream determined to not impactthe WWTP.

11.3 Permit Application.

A. To obtain a wastewater discharge permit the industrial/commercialuser shall complete and file with
TRIGID an application in the form prescribed by TRIGID. The application may require the following
information:

1. Name, addressand Standard Industrial Classification (S.I.C.) numberor numbers of applicants;
2. Estimated volume of wastewater to be discharged;

3. Wastewaterconstituents and characteristics as prescribed by TRIGID;

4. Time and duration of discharge;

5. Site plans, floor plans, mechanicaland plumbingplans, and details to show all sewers and
appurtenances by size, location and elevation asrequired by TRIGID;

6. Description of business activities including type of products, raw materials used, variation in
operation,and numberand duties of employees;

7. Any other information asmay be deemed by TRIGID to be necessary to evaluate the permit
application.

B. TRIGID will evaluatethe data furnished by the discharger. After evaluation, inspection,and approvalof
all the data required, TRIGID may issue a wastewater discharge permit subject to terms and conditions
provided herein.

C. Before a new industrial/commercial discharger is allowed, the discharger must first obtain a wastewater
discharge permit from TRIGID. Violation ofthis provision shall subject the discharger to enforcement and
charges as provided in these Rules.

D. Fees for wastewater discharger permit and monitoring shall be asstated in Article 5.3 ofthese Rules.
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114 Terms and Conditions.

A. Duration of Discharge Permits. Wastewater discharge permit shall be issued for a specified time period not

to exceed one year. A permit may beissued for a period less than a yearor may be stated to expire on a
specific date. Ifthe user is notnotified by TRIGID thirty (30) daysprior to the expiration of the permit, the
permit shall be extended until such notice is made. The terms and conditions of the permit may be subject
to modification and change by TRIGID during the life of the permit as limitations or requirements as
identified in Article 10 of these Rules are modified and changed. The user shall be informed of any
proposed changes in their permit atleast thirty (30) daysprior to the effective date of change. Any changes
ornew conditions in the permit shall include a time schedule for compliance,ata maximum of six months.

B. Permit Conditions. Wastewater discharge permit shall be expressly subject to all provisions of these Rules

and all other applicable regulations, user charges and fees established by TRIGID. Permits may contain the
following:

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

August 21, 2020

the unit charge or schedule of user charges and fees forthe wastewaterto be discharged to a
sewer;

limits on the average and maximum wastewater constituents and characteristics;

limits onaverage and maximum rate and time of discharge or requirements for flow regulations
and equalization;

requirements for installation and maintenance of inspection and sampling facilities;

specifications for monitoring programs which may include sampling locations, frequency of
sampling, number, types and standards fortests and reporting schedule;

compliance schedules;
requirements for submission of technicalreports or discharge reports;

requirements for maintainingand retaining records relating to wastewater discharge as specified
by TRIGID, and affording TRIGID access thereto;

requirements for notification to TRIGID of any new introduction of wastewater constituents or
any substantialchange in the volume or characterof the wastewater constituents being introduced
into the sewer system.

requirements for notification of sludge discharges;
pretreatment of wastes before discharge;

relocation of discharge points;

prohibition of discharge of certain wastewater constituents;

notification to TRIGID of any new introduction of wastewater constituents or any substantial
change in the volume or character of wastewater discharge;

development of a compliance schedule for the installation of technology required to meet
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applicable pretreatment standards and requirements;
16. other conditions necessary to accomplish the purpose of these Rules.

17. The permit may include a time schedule which allows the discharger time to meet the conditions
ofthe permit. The industrial/commercialdischarger who hasbeenissued a permit, will be
responsible for all costs required to comply with conditions of the permit.

C. Changeof Permit Terms and Conditions. TRIGID may change any orall terms and conditions of a
discharge permit forcause. TRIGID shall specify a reasonable compliance period to comply with any
required changesin the permit.

D. Transfer ofa Permit. Wastewaterdischarge permits are issued to a specific user fora specific corporation.
Exceptas expressly permitted by TRIGID or these Rules , a wastewater discharge permit shall notbe
reassigned or transferred or sold to a new owner, new user, different premises, or a new or chan ged
operation.

11.5 Minimum Reporting Requirements. All industrial/commercialdischargers applying for a new permit or
proposing changesto a stream covered by an existing permit are subject to monthly reporting for 30-day
average and maximum daily flow, and forall constituents listed in article 11.12,except those listed under
Pesticides and Herbicides.

11.6 Reduced Reporting. Following periods of continuous compliance, the TRIGID may reduce the required
reporting requirements and frequencies.

11.7 Trade Secrets and Confidentiality. Any information, except effluentdata asdefined in 40 CFR 2.302 may
be claimed as confidential, or asa trade secret by the discharger. Confidentiality claims must be asserted at
the time of submission by sampling the words “CONFIDENTIAL BUISINESS INFORMATION” on each
page containingsuch information. Ifno claim is made atthe time of submission, the District may provide
information to the public by request.

Information asdefined in 40 CFR 2.302 (a)(2)(i)) may be classified aseffluent data only to the extent
necessary to allow the regulatory agency to disclose publicly thata source is (or is not) in compliance with
anapplicable standard or limitation, or to allow the regulatory agency to demonstrate the feasibility,
practicability, or attainability (or lack thereof) an existing or proposed limitation.

11.8 Monitoring Facilities, Reports and Access by Industrial Waste Inspector. TRIGID may require discharger,
attheir own expense, to construct, operate and maintain monitoring facilities and equipment, and to submit
monitoring reports in order to allow inspection, sampling and flow measurement. The monitoring facility
will normally be required to be located on the discharger’s premises outside of the building. There shall be
accommodationsto allow safe and immediate access for the Industrial Waste Inspector, asmay be required
by TRIGID. No person shall prevent, or attempt to prevent,any such entrance or obstruct or interfere with
any such officer or employee of TRIGID while so engaged.

11.9 Inspection. TRIGID, Industrial Waste Inspector, or government officials or employees, shall have the right
of'entry for inspection purposes of the facilities discharging to TRIGID’s sewer system to ascertain
compliance with TRIGID’s sewer regulations or any federal, state or local law. Person or occupantsof
premises where wastewateris created or discharged shall allow TRIGID or its representativesready access
to all parts of the premises for the purposes of inspection, sampling, records examination,orin the
performance of any otherduties ascalled for in these Rules. TRIGID or its representative will verify the
discharge flows and strength reported by discharger, or to determine compliance with these Rules.
Inspection, measurement and sampling may be conducted periodically by the Industrial Waste Inspector.
TRIGID may install, maintain and operate sampling and measuringequipment on the premises of the
discharger. Where a discharger hassecurity measuresin force which would require proper identification
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and clearance before entry into theuser’s premises, the user shall make necessary arrangements with their
security guardsso thatupon presentation of suitable identification the Industrial Waste Inspector will be
permitted to enter without delay for the purposes of performing the specific responsibilities of these Rules.

11.10 Pretreatment of Sewage. When atany time it becomesnecessary or desirable to discharge into the sewer
system any matter from any source which does not conform to the requirements outlined in Articles 10 or
11 of these Rules, it is required thatbefore such mattermay be discharged into the sewer system, the
producer thereof shall pretreat same at their own expense to a degree that will produce an ef fluent which
does conform to the requirements. Such pretreatment plants shallbe understood to include grease traps,
chemicalor biochemicalplants, sedimentation chambersand any otherdevices which effect a change of
any nature in the characteristics of the matterbeing treated. Any and all such devices and equipment shall
notbe put into operation without a written permit of approvalissued by TRIGID and shall be provided with
all necessary features of construction to permit inspection of operations and testing of material passing
through them,and shall be open to the inspection of TRIGID atany time, but the producer, in lieu of the
treatment of the sewage as hereinabove provided for, may, with the written approvalof TRIGID being first
obtained, discharge the sewage, waste or other matterinto the sewage system, subject to the provisions of
Article 10, and subjectto the payment of the additionalcost of the treatment thereof, as provided for in
these Rules.

TRIGID may require users of TRIGID’s sewer system to pretreat wastewater. Users shallmake
wastewateracceptable underthe limitations established herein before discharging into any wastewater
facility. Any facilities required to pretreat wastewaterto a level acceptable to TRIGID shall be provided
and maintained at the user' s expense. Detailed plansshowing the pretreatment facilities and operating
procedures shall be submitted to TRIGID forreview and shall be approved by TRIGID before construction
of'the pretreatment facility. The review and approvalofsuch plans and operatingprocedures will in no
way relieve the user from the responsibility of modifying the facility as necessary to produce an effluent
complying with the provisions of these Rules. Any subsequent changesin the pretreatment facilities or
method of operation shall be reported to and be approved by TRIGID.

11.11  Monitoring Equipment Construction and Report Requirements.

A. Monitoring facilities and equipment may be required of any sewer user in order to allow inspection,
sampling and flow measurement of the building sewer, or internal drainage system. When more than one
sewer user candischarge into a common building sewer, TRIGID may require installation of a separate
monitoring facility for eachuser. Also when, in the judgment of TRIGID, there is significant difference in
wastewater constituents and characteristics produced by different operations of a single user, TRIGID may
require that separate monitoring facilities be installed for each separate discharge. Monitoring facilities that
are required to be installed shall be constructed, operated and maintained at the user's expense. The
purpose of the facility is to enable inspection, sampling and flow measurement of wastewaters produced by
auser. If sampling or metering equipmentis also required by TRIGID, it shall be provided, installed and
operated attheuser’s expense. The monitoring facility will normally be required to be located on the
user’s premises outside of the building. TRIGID, however, when such a location would be impracticalor
cause hardship to the user, may allow the facility to be constructed in the public street or public sidewalk
area.

If the monitoring facility is inside the user's fence, there shall be accommodationsto allow safe and
immediate access for the Industrial Waste Inspector, such asa gate secured with a TRIGID lock. There
shall beampleroom in or nearsuch facility to allow accurate samplingand compositing of samples for
analysis. The entire facility and the sampling and measuring equipment shall be maintained atalltimes in a
safe and proper operatingcondition by and at the expense of the sewer user.

Whether constructed on public or private property, the monitoring facilities shall be constructed in
accordance with TRIGID’s requirements. When, in the judgment of TRIGID, an existing user requires a
monitoring facility, the user will be so notified in writing. Construction mustbe completed within ninety
(90) days following written notification unless a time extension is otherwise granted by TRIGID.
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B. Within ninety (90) daysfollowing the date for finalcompliance with applicable discharge limitations, or in
case of a new source following commencement of the introduction of wastewaterinto TRIGID sewer
system, any commercial/industrial discharger subject to such discharge limitations shall submitto TRIGID
a report indicating the nature and concentration of allpollutantsin the discharge from the affected
commercialor industrial establishment. The discharger’s report will include reporting on the discharge
from any regulated processes which are limited by the discharge limitations and the average and maximum
daily flow from these process units in the user facility which are limited by such standards ordischarge
limitations. The report shall state whether the applicable limitations are being met on a consistent basis,
and, if not, whatadditionaloperation and maintenance and/or pretreatment is necessary to bring the sewer
user into compliance with the applicable limitations. The submitted report shall be signed by an authorized
representative of the industrial/commercial user and certified to be a qualified professional.

C. Any user subjectto a discharge limitation afterthe compliance date of such discharge limitation, or, in the
case of a new source aftercommencement of the discharge into TRIGID sewer system shall submit to
TRIGID during the months of June and December, unless requirement more frequently by TRIGID, a
report indicating the nature and concentration of pollutants in the effluent which are limited by such
discharge limitations. Inaddition,this report shall include a record of all daily flows which, during the
reporting period, exceeded the average daily flow reported, as required under the permit. At the discretion
of TRIGID, and in consideration of such factorsaslocal high or low flow rates, holidays, budgets and
cycles, TRIGID may agree to alter the months during which the above reportsare to be submitted. TRIGID
may impose mass limitations onusers which are using dilution to meet applicable discharge limitations or
in othercases where the imposition of mass limitations are appropriate. In such cases, the report required
by the above paragraph shallindicate the massof pollutantsregulated by the discharge limitations in the
effluent of the sewer user. These reports shall contain the results of sampling and analysis of the discharge,
including the flow and nature of concentration, or production and mass, where requested by TRIGID, of
pollutants contained therein which are limited by such applicable pretreatment standards. The frequency of
monitoring shall be prescribed in the discharge permit. All analysesshall be performed in accordance with
procedures established in standard methods orotherprocedures approved TRIGID.

11.12  Violation Notice. In theevent ofa minor or potentialhazard, the Industrial Waste Inspectorshall issue a
notice to the discharger to remedy the hazard. Said notice shall require the discharger to submit to TRIGID
within ten daysa detailed plan and time schedule of specific action the discharger will takein order to
correct or preventa violation. Ifthe discharger fails to submitanacceptable plan, fails to comply with the
notice, or fails to comply with the plans submitted, the discharger shall be in violation of these Rules.

11.13  Ceaseand Desist Order. Inthe eventofa discharge or potentialdischarge threatensthe operation of the
TRIGID sewer system, or endangers the health or safety of any person, TRIGID shall issue a cease and
desist order to the discharger. Ifthe discharger fails to obey said order immediately, the Industrial Waste
Inspectormay take such action pursuant to these Rules asmay be necessary to ensure compliance.

11.14  Enforcement Procedures.

A. When discharge of wastewaterhas taken placein violation of these Rules or the provisions of a wastewater
discharge permit, TRIGID, Industrial Waste Inspector, or otherduly authorized TRIGID employee, may
issue a cease and desist order and direct those persons not complying with such prohibitions, limits,
requirements, or provisions, to: comply forthwith, comply in accordance with a time schedule set forth by
TRIGID, or take appropriate remedial, or preventative action.

B. Any user who violates the following conditions of this title, or applicable state and federalregulations, is
subject to havingtheir permit revoked by TRIGID for:

1. failure of a user to factually report the wastewater constituents, flow and/or characteristics of their
discharge;
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11.15

11.16

12.1

122

13.1

13.2

13.3

2. failure of the user to report significant changes in operations, or wastewater constituentsand
characteristics;

3. refusal ofreasonableaccessto the user’s premises for the purpose of inspection or monitoring; or
4. violation of conditions of a wastewater discharge permit.

In the event of a significant upset or permit violation, the TRIGID may issue a public notice with details
regarding the event if there is potentialfor the eventto causeissues to public health.

Indemnity. Any person who violates or aids or abetsthe violation of any provisions of these regulations,
requirements, or conditions set forth in permits duly issued, or who discharges wastewater which causes
pollution, or violates any cease and desist order, prohibition, effluent limitation, nationalstandard of
performance, pretreatment or toxicity standard, shall be liable to indemnify, defend and hold harm less
TRIGID in the full amount of any penalty orjudgment rendered against TRIGID which is attributable to, or
results from, such violation.

Falsifying of Information. Any person who knowingly makes any false statements, representation, record,
report, plan or other document filed with TRIGID, or who falsifies, tampers with, or knowingly renders
inaccurate any monitoringdevice or method required under these Rules, is declared to be in violation of
these Rules, and subject to the charges imposed under these Rules, or subject to the procedures specified in
these Rules.

ARTICLE 12. SERVICE AREAS

Intention. The intent of these Rules is to establish rules, regulations and rates for sewer service supplied
hereunder only to areasallowed by TRIGID’s service territory for retail service and for wholesale service.
No otherareasshall be served by TRIGID. Otherwise, TRIGID shall establish the service area,based on
its ability to serve and asprovided by law and these Rules.

Wholesale Service. TRIGID may enterinto an agreement with a person who is a regulated public utility
company,a governmentalentity authorized by law to provide retail water service, or an accommodator
under NRS 704.030 to provide wholesale water service to said person, provided said person provides retail
water service outside TRIGID’s retail service area in a mannerallowed by law.

ARTICLE 13. DISPUTES, RELIEF, APPEALS, REVIEWS

Relief on Application. When any person by reasons of special circumstancesis of the opinion thatany
provision of these Rules is unjust, inequitable or improper as applied to their premises, he may make
written application to the Board stating the special circumstances, citing the provision complained of, and
requesting suspension or modification of that provision as applied to their premises. Ifsuch applicationbe
approved, the Board may suspend or modify the provision complained of, asapplied to such premises, to
be effective as of the date of the application and continuing during the period of'the special circumstances.

Relief on Own Motion. The Board may,on its own motion, find that by reason of special circumstances
any provision of these Rules should be suspended or modified asapplied to a particularpremises and may
order such suspension or modification forany such premises during the period of such special
circumstances, or any part thereof.

Review by the Board. These Rules shall be reviewed by the Board on a periodic basis to ensure that the
provisions of these Rules are kept up to date,and thatthe charges and fees set out in Articles 4 and 5 are
adequate to meet the costs of operating the water facilities and recovering the cost of Capital Outlays.
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134 Adjustment of Complaints. The Board shall have the power of discretion in the interpretation and
application of these Rules, including adjustments orrebate of charges, if in the Board’s opinion, the intent
ofthe Rules would not be accomplished, and an injustice would result by their strict application.

13.5 Ruling Final. All rulings ofthe Board shall be final, unless appealed in writing as provided in this Article
within thirty (30) days.

13.6 Billing Disputes. Any dispute regarding the payment of any bill, charge or fee demanded by TRIGID is
subject to relief and review asprovided in this Article 14.

13.7 Right to Arbitration. Any request for relief made pursuantto Article 14.1 or other dispute arising from
these Rules shall be subject to arbitration and be decided by arbitration in accordance with the Rules ofthe
American Arbitration Association currently in effect,unless the parties mutually agree oth erwise. Notice
of demand forarbitration shall be filed in writing with the Board and with the American Arbitration
Association.

13.8 Limitation on Claim. A demand forarbitration shall be barred unless made within thirty (30) daysafterthe
ruling of the Board, and in no eventshall it be made afterthe date when institution oflegal or equitable
proceedings based on such claim would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations.

13.9 Claims and Timely Assertion of Claims. A party who files a notice of demand forarbitration must assert in
the demand all claims then known to thatparty on which arbitration is permitted to be demanded. When a
party fails to include a claim through oversight, inadvertence or excusable neglect, or when a claim hasnot
matured or been acquired subsequently, the arbitratoror arbitrators may permit amendment. Otherwise, all
unasserted claims are barred.

13.10 Judgmenton Final Award. The awardrendered by the arbitratoror arbitratorsshall be binding and final,
and judgment may be entered upon it in accordance with applicable law in any court havingjurisdiction
thereof.
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Attachment B-3

RESOLUTION 2019-01 CHANGING CERTAIN RATES AND CHARGES
FOR WATER AND SEWER SERVICE BY
TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

WHEREAS, Storey County (the “County”) by and through the Board of County
Commissioners (the “BCC”), approved on February 1, 2000 pursuant fo Resolution 00-50 a
service plan for the TRI General Improvement District (“TRIGID” or “District”) within the
County to supply electric power and space heating to customers. On the same date Ordinance
No. 164 was passed by unanimous vote of the Board creating TRIGID.

WHEREAS, the County by and through the BCC approved on July {8, 2000 pursuant to
Resolution 00-85 a service plan modification for TRIGID to supply water and sewer setvices to
customers. On the same date Ordinance No. 171 passed by unanimous vote of the BCC to add
basic powers of furnishing water service and sewer setvice.

WHEREAS, the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center (“TRI Center”) is an area planned by the
Storey County Master Plan to be a large industrial business park located in the northern portion
of the County, in which water and sewer service is provided by TRIGID.

WHEREAS, general improvement districts are authorized under state law, NRS Chapter
318, to supply water and sanitary sewerage facilities to customers, and NRS 318.197 and
318.199 specify criteria to create rates, tolls, charges and services by a general improvement
district for water and scwer service.

WHEREAS, on September 27, 2019 and October 25, 2019 a Notice of Hearing and
information on how to obtain a Utility Rate Analysis Report dated October 21, 2019 (“Rate
Study”) prepared by Farr West Engineeting, District Engineers for TRIGID was made available
to all customers, Said Notice of Hearing and Rate Study are attached to this Resolution as

Exhibit “A”.
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WHEREAS, the Rate Study analyzed revenue and expenditures of TRIGID and existing
rates and charges of TRIGID to customers, in order to recommend proposed rates and charges
that meet the future level of TRIGID expenditures.

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 318,199, a 30 days’ notice of a public hearing by the
TRIGID Board of Trustees (the “Board”) on proposed rates and charges for water and sewer
service, set for November 4, 2019, 2016 at 2:00 p.m. at the Storey County Adminisirative
Center, 1705 Peru Drive, McCarran, Nevada 89434, was published in the Comstock Chronicle
on October 4, 2019,

WHEREAS, on April 18, 2001 the Board adopted Resolution 2001-04 Establishing
Rates, Tolls, Charges And Services For Water And Sewer Service By TRI General Improvement
District, which approved the following:

. Rules, Regulations And Rates Of The TRI General Improvement District For
Sewer Service

. Rules, Regulations And Rates Of The TRI General Improvement District For
Water Service

These documents are referred to as the “Sewer Rules” and the “Water Rules”,
respectively, the provisions of which are incorporated into the Resolution by reference.

WHEREAS, an open public hearing on the adoption of amended rates and charges was
held by the Board on November 4, 2019 at 2:00 p.m, within the District at the Storey County
Administrative Center, located at 1705 Peru Drive, McCarran, Nevada 89434. The general
public and TRIGID customers were given the opportunity to testify and comment, as well as to
submit data, views or arguments orally or in writing at the hearing, wheteupon the Board

discussed and deliberated the proposed rates and charges.
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WHEREAS, after discussion, upon motion made, seconded and unanimously approved,

the Board made the following findings and passed the following resolutions.

Findings. The Board finds as follows.

L.

Pursuant to NRS 318.197 and 318.199 the Board of Trustees of TRI General
Improvement District may establish rates and charges for water and sewer service and
may set new and changed rates and charges from time to time,

Pursuant to NRS 318.199(2) the Board caused the Notice of Hearing to be mailed by
regular mail to atl users (customers) of TRIGID more than 30 days prior to the

scheduled hearing date,

. Pursuant to NRS 318.199(3) notice was given by publication in a newspaper

published in Storey County, the Comstock Chronicle, and said notice was not placed
in that portion of the newspaper where legal notices and classified advertisements
appear and the type used in the headline of the notice was not smaller than 18 point.
Pursuant to NRS 318.199(4), all users of water and sewer service in TRIGID were
afforded a reasonable opportunity to submit data, views or arguments orally or in
writing, both before the hearing set for 2:00 p.m. on November 4, 2019 and at said
hearing,

The Board, having considered the Rate Study and all other data, views and arguments
submitted, finds that in order for TRIGID to meet future obligations to provide water
and sewer service and to pay expenditures of TRIGID to provide said services it is
required that rates and charges be changed as proposed in the Rate Study.

Sections 4.1 of the Water Rules and the Sewer Rules provide that the Board may raise

water and sewer rates when current rates are insufficient to pay all operating costs and



the monthly rates proposed in the Rate Study raise rates to a level that are projected to

_v_

cover all operating costs,

Resolutions:

RESOLVED, that rates and charges specified below are the new and changed rates and

charges of TRIGID,

The Boatd therefore passes the following resolutions.

Table of Monthly Meter Fees Based on Size and Monthly Usage Fees

Meter Size Water Service Sewer Service Hydrant Service
3/4" 526,51 $27.44

1" $47.08 $33.81

1-1/2" $81.11 $54.39

2" $122.54 $101.43

4" $361.96 5293.58 575.10
6" 5705.13 547357

B" 51,116.53 5757.23

10" $1,945.34 $2,094.98

Usage Per 1,000 Gallons $3.52 $2.69 $3.,52

The revised indusirial wastewater surcharge structure shall be based on the following

equation:

1000gal

BOD = 5 day Biological Oxygen Demand, mg/l
TSS = Total Suspended Sofids, mg/!
TKN = Total Kjeldah! Nitrogen, mg/l

RESOLVED, that any rates, tolls, charges, services to be performed or products to be

furnished which are cutrently in place other than the new and changed rates and charges

established above remain unchanged.

S://Main/TRI/GID/Service Plan Amended 2019 (5).doc
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-Vi-

RESOLVED, that the effective date of these resolutions shall be November 4, 2019.

MOTION MADE BY 4 . Somes AND SECONDED

BY | . Rcres
S Rovevres
THOSE VOTING AYE: L. P rrmes | K. ThomoSoy,

THOSE VOTING NAY: oL

TRUSTEES OF THE TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

/Ki'is Thompson, President
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Attachment B-4
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Attachment B-5

TRIGID WATER RIGHTS BUDGETS

Water Rights Commitments for Process Water

Entity A'F.
Reno Supernap, LLC 3,330
Silver Slate, LLC 2,500
Tesla, Inc. 1,600
Blockchains, LLC 1,800
Emerald City Empire, LLC 510
Comstock TRIC Associates, LLC 200
Ryze Renewables, LLC 60

10,000

Water Rights for Domestic Use

AF.

2,290*

* Includes 655.3269 a.f. allocated to Prior High Use Water Customers using potable water
system. The balance of 1634.6731 a.f. is reserved for domestic uses of customers.

HIGH WATER USERS ON POTABLE WATER SYSTEM

Entity

Hardie

Fulcrum

Cemex

PPG

Ardagh

PetSmart

Reno Land & Water
Marriot

Nevada Express Corp.
Fady Mehanna
Denmark and Venice No. 1 LLC
Thanh van Hoge Trust

S://Main/TRI/GID/Service Plan Amended 2019 (5).doc

A.F. (over domestic use)

265
155
10
13
34
10
30
15
18
3
30
5



Lima Land Co. LLC
MRB Realty
Edgewater Investments
Can and Company
Sparks Hotels, LLC
Beauregard Ventures
Cedar Sage
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EideBailly.

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

March 4, 2020

To the Board of Trustees
TRI General Improvement District
McCarran, Nevada

We have audited the financial statements of TRI General Improvement District as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2019, and have issued our report thereon dated March 4, 2020. Professional
standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit under Generally Accepted Auditing
Standards and Government Auditing Standards

As communicated in our engagement letter dated May 10, 2019, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that
have been prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects,
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our
audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of its respective
responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal
control of TRI General Improvement District solely for the purpose of determining our audit
procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process.
However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to
communicate to you.

We have provided our comments regarding internal controls during our audit in our Independent
Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards dated March 4, 2020.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit
We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to
you.

What inspires you, inspires us. Let’s talk. | eidebailly.com

5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 | Reno, NV 895112094 | T775.689.9100 | F775.689.9299 EOE
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Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, our firm, and other firms utilized in the
engagement, if applicable, have complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence.

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices

Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of
the significant accounting policies adopted by TRI General Improvement District is included in Note A
to the financial statements. There have been no initial selection of accounting palicies and no changes
in significant accounting policies or their application during 2019. No matters have come to our
attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods
used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting
policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
consensus.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge
and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from
management’s current judgments. The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial
statements are:

e Management’'s estimate of the capital assets which were donated to the District. The District
utilized an engineer to develop the value of the capital assets and water rights which have been
included in the financial statements. Capital asset values were based upon current replacement
costs and adjusted based upon the date of the assets. Water rights were determined based upon
data provided to the respective counties upon transfer to the District.

¢ Management’s estimate of accumulated depreciation is based on the estimated lives for capital
assets based upon historical knowledge of similar assets and current expected lives.

Financial Statement Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the District’s
financial statements relate to:

e The restatement resulting from capital assets not properly included by the District as noted in
Note 7.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of
the audit.
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Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other
than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements
related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the
financial statements as a whole. There were no uncorrected misstatements.

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected
misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures.

The following material misstatements that we identified as a result of our audit procedures were
brought to the attention of, and corrected by, management:

e Correct expenses to the appropriate category $33,106

e Record current year capital contribution $3,235,886

e Add prior period capital assets, net of related depreciation $100,833,508
e Record current year depreciation expense for added assets $1,013,573

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, which could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. No
such disagreements arose during the course of the audit.

Representations Requested from Management
We have requested certain written representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter dated March 4, 2020.

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no
consultations with other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues

In the normal course of our professional association with TRI General Improvement District, we
generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, business conditions affecting the entity, and business plans and strategies that may affect the
risks of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as
TRI General Improvement District’s auditors.

Modification of the Auditor’s Report

We have made the following modification to our auditor’s report. As discussed in Note 7 to the financial
statements, certain errors in the 2018 financial statements were discovered by management of the
District during the current year. Accordingly, amounts reported for capital assets have been restated in
and a prior period adjustment is reported. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

S://Main/TRI/GID/Service Plan Amended 2019 (5).doc
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees and management of
the TRI General Improvement District and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

&M L7’

Reno, Nevada

S://Main/TRI/GID/Service Plan Amended 2019 (5).doc
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Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

TRI General Improvement District

EideBailly.

eidebailly.com
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EideBailly

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Trustees
TRI General Improvement District
McCarran, Nevada

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of TRl General
Improvement District (the “District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

What inspires you, inspires us. Let’s talk. | eidebailly.com
5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 | Reno, NV 895112094 | T775.689.9100 | F775.689.9299 | EOE
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects the
business-type activities of the District, as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial
position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Correction of an Error

As discussed in Note 7 to the financial statements, certain errors in the 2018 financial statements were
discovered by management of the District during the current year. Accordingly, amounts reported for
net position have been restated. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted the management discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing
information.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the District’s basic financial
statements. The budgetary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The budgetary information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the budgetary information is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 4,
2020, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of TRI General Improvement District’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Q‘;—M Ler

Reno, Nevada
March 4, 2020
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TRI General Improvement District
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2019

Assets
Current assets
Cash
Accounts receivable
Prepaid insurance

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets

Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated

Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Net Position

Invested in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

See Notes to Financial Statements

$ 2,077,281
176,398
53,417

2,307,096

51,504,446
54,100,736

105,605,182

107,912,278
114,505
105,605,182

2,192,591

$ 107,797,773
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TRI General Improvement District
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Operating Revenue

Charges for water services S 1,808,298
Operating Expenses
Accounting and legal 72,757
Automobile 13,110
Chemicals 89,719
Contracted labor and benefits 10,000
Depreciation 1,174,456
Engineering and fees 294,534
Insurance 52,213
Licenses and permits 14,308
Repairs, maintenance and supplies 240,371
Qutside technical utility services 377,587
Office 24,151
Telephone 1,401
Utilities 298,835
Total operating expenses 2,663,442
Operating Loss (855,144)
Nonoperating Revenue
Land lease 10,000
Investment income 8,062
Total nonoperating revenue 18,062
Loss Before Capital Contributions (837,082)
Capital Contributions
Capital asset contributions 3,235,886
Connection fees 480,131
3,716,017
Change in Net Position 2,878,935
Total Net Position, Beginning of Year, as Previously Reported 4,085,330

Restatement

Total Net Position, Beginning of Year, as Restated

Total Net Position, End of Year

See Notes to Financial Statements

100,833,508
104,918,838

$ 107,797,773



-XXViii

TRI General Improvement District
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees and related taxes and benefits

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital and Related Financing Activities
Investment income

Net Cash from Noncapital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Capital asset contributions
Connection fees
Acquisition of capital assets
Land lease

Net Cash Flows used for Capital and Related Financing Activities
Net Change in Cash

Cash, Beginning of Year

Cash, End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Flows from
Operating Activities
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
flows from operating activities
Depreciation
Change in current assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Prepaid insurance
Accounts payable

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Supplmental Cash Flow Information
Contributed capital assets

See Notes to Financial Statements

$ 1,788,945
(1,591,335)
(10,000)

187,610

8,062

8,062

480,131
(756,656)

10,000
(266,525)
(70,853)
2,148,134

$ 2,077,281

$  (855,144)

1,174,456
(19,353)
(3,787)
(108,562)

S 187,610

$ 3,235,886
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TRI General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Note 1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Reporting Entity

The TRI General Improvement District (District) was formed in 2000. The District has been charged with the
responsibility of providing water and sewer services for the land owners of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center
located in Storey County, Nevada. The District is governed by a Board of Trustees that is elected by the District
taxpayers. In addition, the District is required to abide by regulations established by Storey County and the State
of Nevada.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

The District has no component units that are required to be combined in the financial statements.
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The District’s financial activities are accounted for in a proprietary fund, specifically, an enterprise fund. An
enterprise fund accounts for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to those found in
the private business sector, where the costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing
basis are recovered primarily through user charges.

GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, requires the Board to apply all applicable GASB
pronouncements and, unless they conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements all Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting
Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989. Accordingly, the District has not applied FASB
pronouncements issued after that date.

The District maintains its accounting records on the accrual basis of accounting wherein revenues are recognized
when earned and become measurable, and expenses are recognized when incurred. All assets and liabilities
associated with the operations are included on the statement of net position. Net position is segregated into
invested in capital assets and unrestricted components.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenue and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenue of the enterprise fund is
comprised of charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of
services, administrative expense, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenue and expenses.
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TRI General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The District adheres to the Local Government Budget Act incorporated within Statutes of the State of Nevada.
These Statutes provide for the preparation, filing, notice, public hearing, and adoption in connection with the
budgetary process for Nevada local governments Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles. Budget amendments must be approved by the Board of Trustees. All annual
appropriations lapse at year-end.

On or before April 15, the Board of Trustees files a tentative budget with the Nevada Department of Taxation.
Public hearings on the tentative budget are held and a final budget must be prepared and adopted no later than
June 1.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents are defined as short-term highly liquid
investments, generally with original maturities of three months or less. The District does not have any
investments that are considered to be cash equivalents at June 30, 2019.

Cash is maintained in one commercial bank in Reno, Nevada. The funds are deposited in a commercial bank that
participates in the state collateral pool program and thereby secures all cash and cash equivalents deposited
with the bank. Therefore, the District does not need to have a deposit policy related to custodial credit risk.

The District’s bank accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 in
the aggregate. Excess balances are collateralized in the state collateral pool by Western Alliance Bank.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable is comprised of monthly water and sewer meter fees. The District has not established an
allowance for doubtful accounts as it believes all accounts are collectible at June 30, 2019.

Capital Assets

Capital assets with a cost of $1,000 or more and a life greater than one year are capitalized and are stated at
cost. Donated capital assets are valued at acquisition value at the date of donation. Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method for all assets over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from five
to forty years.

The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to expense as incurred. Significant renewals and betterments are
capitalized.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed
from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in income for the period.
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TRI General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Equity Classifications
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in two components:

e Invested in capital assets — consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.
e Unrestricted net position — consists of amounts designated for major repairs and replacements and all
other net position that do not meet the definition of “invested in capital assets.”

The District has obtained a reserve study that is updated periodically to ensure there are adequate designated
reserves on hand to meet future repair and replacement requirements.

As of June 30, 2019, the District’s unaudited theoretical reserve balance is approximately $2,387,252. The
District has $1,727,330 designated cash reserves at June 30, 2019.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements
and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Note 2- Compliance with Nevada Revised Statutes and the Nevada Administrative Code

The District conformed to all significant statutory constraints on its financial administration during the year.

Note3- Cash

By provision of statutes, the District is authorized to deposit all money in banks or savings and loan associations
located in the State of Nevada and must be subject to withdrawal on demand. Custodial credit risk is the risk
that in the event of a bank or brokerage failure, the Board's deposits may not be returned. District’s bank
deposits are covered by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance. Of the bank balances each
bank is insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). In addition, the District
participates in the Nevada Pooled Collateral program through one of the individual banks, which insures the
balances that are in excess of FDIC amounts.

At June 30, 2019, the carrying amount of the District’s cash in banks was $2,077,281 and the bank balance was
$2,077,281.

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair-value of an
investment. The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means
of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing rates. The District does not have a formal
policy regarding credit risk or concentration of credit risk.
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TRI General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Note 4- Capital Assets

Capital asset activity consists of the following for the year ended June 30, 2019:

June 30 2018 Additions Disposals June 30, 2019
(restated)
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated
Land S 215,314 S - S < S 215,314
Water rights 48,053,246 3,235,886 - 51,289,132
Total capital assets not being
depreciated S 48,268,560 S 3,235,886 S - S 51,504,446
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated
Sewer treament facility
and improvements S 63,246,979 S 562,955 S - S 63,809,934
Well houses 2,982,742 193,701 - 3,176,443
Roadway 125,319 - - 125,319
Equipment 343,109 - - 343,109
Vechicles 65,056 - - 65,056
Momument signs 10,000 - - 10,000
Total capital assets being
depreciated 66,773,205 756,656 - 67,529,861
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Sewer treament facility
and improvements 10,658,508 1,028,579 - 11,687,087
Well houses 1,334,955 119,983 - 1,454,938
Roadway 105,477 6,266 - 111,743
Equipment 98,272 15,567 - 113,839
Vechicles 47,457 4,061 - 51,518
Momument signs 10,000 - - 10,000
Total accumulated depreciation 12,254,669 1,174,456 - 13,429,125
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated, Net 54,518,536 (417,800) - 54,100,736
Net Capital Assets $102,787,096 S 2,818,086 S - $105,605,182

Note5- Commitments, Contingencies and Risk Management

There were no claims pending or unresolved disputes involving the District at June 30, 2019.
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TRI General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District maintains commercial insurance
coverage covering each of these risks of loss. Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any
significant uninsured losses to the District.

The District has entered into agreements for engineering and vendor services relating to various projects for
work to be performed in the next fiscal year totaling approximately $632,000 of which $54,000 is remaining to
be expended.

Note 6- Agreements and Subsequent Events

An Operating Agreement was entered into between the District and TRI Water and Sewer Company (Company)
on March 7, 2001. The agreement provides for the Company to operate and maintain the water and sewer
systems on behalf of the District. The agreement also stipulates that the Company will be paid all income
received by the District from fees, charges and rates established by the rules, except for the connection fees
paid by customers that are considered reserve funds to be utilized for repairs and maintenance of the District
facilities. Even though it is allowable under the agreement, the Company has not historically collected any
income received by the District. The agreement also stipulates that the Company is required to pay cash
subsidies to the District as needed, which has occurred in past years, but did not to occur in the year ending
June 30, 2019. The referenced operating agreement between the Company and the District will be terminated
on June 30, 2020.

As stated in the Operating Agreement, the District owns, leases or otherwise has title and control of all real
estate, water rights, and water and sewer improvements. TRI LLC (Master Developer) owns the beneficial
interest in a portion of the water rights, along with other key process water stakeholders, and existing and
future customers within the District service area. As part of the District transition and the termination of the
operating agreement, the District is currently negotiating with TRI LLC regarding their future ability to assign the
beneficial interest in water rights banked with the District.

Note 7- Restatement

During 2019, management identified errors within previously issued financial statements that, when evaluated
in the aggregate, warranted restatement of those financial statements. The June 30, 2018 financial statements
omitted certain capital assets not being depreciated and capital assets being depreciated. Water and sewer
treatment system and water rights which are under the control of the District, however were not purchased or
constructed by the District were not properly included. These capital assets and water rights were transferred to
the control of the District in prior years, therefore in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
should have been included in the Districts financial statements. Accordingly, amounts reported for capital assets
have been restated. The net position at July 1, 2018 was restated by an increase of $100,833,508.

10
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Supplementary Information
June 30, 2019

TRI General Improvement District
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TRI General Improvement District
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position — Budget and Actual

June 30, 2019

Operating Revenue
Charges for water services

Operating Expenses
Accounting and legal
Automobile
Chemicals
Contracted labor and benefits
Depreciation
Engineering and fees
Insurance
License and permits
Repairs, maintenance and supplies
QOutside technical utility services
Office
Telephone
Utilities

Total operating expenses
Operating Income (Loss)
Nonoperating Revenue

Land lease
Investment income

Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions

Capital Contributions
Connection fees

Total capital contributions

Change in Net Position

Total Net Position, Beginning of Year, as Previously Reported

Restatement

Variance

Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 1,825000 S 1,825,000 $ 1,808,298 S (16,702)
30,000 30,000 72,757 (42,757)
5,844 5,844 13,110 (7,266)
43,161 43,161 89,719 (46,558)
61,073 61,073 10,000 51,073
125,000 125,000 1,174,456 (1,049,456)
87,899 87,899 294,534 (206,635)
63,800 63,800 52,213 11,587
4,596 4,596 14,308 (9,712)
774,780 774,780 240,371 534,409
366,400 366,400 377,587 (11,187)
21,398 21,398 24,151 (2,753)
1,844 1,844 1,401 443
221,065 221,065 298,835 (77,770)
1,806,860 1,806,860 2,663,442 (856,582)
18,140 18,140 (855,144) (873,284)
- - 10,000 10,000
5,000 5,000 8,062 3,062
23,140 23,140 (837,082) (860,222)
125,000 125,000 480,131 355,131
125,000 125,000 480,131 355,131
$ 148,140 ¢ 148140 $  (356,951) $ (505,091)

4,085,330

Total Net Position, Beginning of Year, as Restated

Total Net Position, End of Year

100,833,508
104,918,838

$ 104,561,887

11
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Compliance Section
June 30, 2019
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CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control
over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Trustees
TRI General Improvement District
McCarran, Nevada

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities of TRI General Improvement District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise TRI General Improvement
District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 4, 2020.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain
deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as
item 2019-001 that we consider to be a material weakness.

What inspires you, inspires us. Let’s talk. | eidebailly.com

5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 | Reno, NV 895112094 | T775.689.9100 | F775.689.9299 | EOE
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether TRl General Improvement District’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have
a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

TRI General Improvement District’s Response to Findings

TRI General Improvement District’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and responses. TRl General Improvement District’s responses were
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Ci‘o,eﬁdg,zuﬁ

Reno, Nevada
March 4, 2020

13
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TRI General Improvement District
Schedule of Findings and Responses
Year Ended June 30, 2019

2019-001:

Criteria:

Condition:

Cause:

Effect:

Financial Reporting Material Weakness

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an effective system of internal
control over financial statement reporting. One of the components of an effective system of
internal control over financial reporting is the preparation of full disclosure financial statements
that do not require adjustment as part of the audit process.

As auditors, we assisted in the preparation of the financial statements, and proposed several
journal entries to reclassify expenses to the proper expense and record capital assets. Sewer
and water treatment facilities and water rights which were transferred to the control of the
District in prior years was not properly included in the financial statements of the District, the
error was noted in the current audit and a restatement has been reported.

Procedures have not been implemented to ensure District personnel possess the experience to
prepare the District’s full disclosure financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and appropriate review of reconciliations of all accounts with supporting
documentation has not been implemented.

Financial information prepared by the District may not comply with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Recommendation:

We recommend the District implement procedures to provide training in the preparation of
governmental financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
and management review and approve all reconciliations.

Views of Responsible

Officials:

TRI General Improvement District agrees with this finding.

14
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CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS
Auditors’ Comments

To the Board of Trustees
TRI General Improvement District
McCarran, Nevada

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the TRI General Improvement District
(District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements,
nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the District failed to comply with the
specific requirements of Nevada Revised Statutes cited below. However, our audit was not directed
primarily toward obtaining knowledge of noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional
procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the District’s noncompliance with
the requirements of Nevada Revised Statutes cited below, insofar as they relate to accounting matters.

Current Year Statute Compliance
The required disclosure on compliance with the Nevada Revised Statutes and the Nevada Administrative
Code is contained in Note 2 to the financial statements.

Progress on Prior Year Statute Compliance
The District monitored all significant constraints on its financial administration during the year ended
June 30, 2019.

Current Year Recommendations
No material weaknesses or significant deficiencies reported.

Progress on Prior Year Recommendations
No material weaknesses or significant deficiencies were noted.

Nevada Revised Statute 354.6241
In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the District
had not complied in all material respects with NRS 354.6241, including:

e Use of funds established

e Use of generally accepted accounting principles

e Limitations on reserves

* Recording sources of revenue and transfers available

e Statutory and regulatory requirements applicable to the fund
e Ending retained earning amounts

éf—,dfu/@ FF> o

Reno, Nevada
March 4, 2020
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TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019

As management of the TRI General Improvement District (District), we offer readers of the District’s
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.

Financial Highlights

+ The assets of the TRI General Improvement District exceeded its liabilities at the close of the
current fiscal year by $107,797,773. Of this amount $2,192,591 is unrestricted, undesignated
net position that may be used to meet the District’'s ongoing obligations to users and creditors.
The remaining amounts is invested in capital assets ($105,605,182).

+ The District's fotal net position increased by $103,712,443 during the current year.
$100,833,508 was due to a restatement for capital assets and $2,878,935 was current year
change in net position.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the TRI General Improvement
District's financial statements. The District’s basic financial statements comprise two components: 1)
government-wide financial statements and 2) notes to the financial statements. This report also
contains required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles as they apply to governmental units. The financial statements include a statement of net
position, a statement of revenue, expenses and changes in net position, a statement of cash flows,
and notes to the financial statements.

The statement of net position presents the financial position of the District on the full accrual basis as
net position. This statement provides information on the District's assets and liabilities with the
difference reported as net position and information about the nature and amount of resources and
obligations at year-end. Over time, increases and decreases in net position are one indicator of
whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position presents the results of the activities
over the course of the fiscal year and information as to how the net position changed during the most
recent year. The changes in net position under the full accrual method are recorded as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.

The notes to the financial statements provide required disclosures and other information that are
essential to a full understanding of material data provided in the statements. The notes present
information about the District's accounting policies, significant account balances and activities,
material risks, obligations, commitments, contingencies and subsequent events, if any.

The District also adopts annual appropriated budgets. Budgetary comparison statements have been
provided to demonstrate compliance with the budget.
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TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Statement of Net Position

Years Ended June 30, 2019 2018
Cash S 2,077,281 S 2,148,134
Accounts receivable 176,398 157,045
Prepaid expenses 53,417 49,630
Capital assets 105,605,182 1,953,588

Total assets 107,912,278 4,308,397
Liabilities 114,505 223,067
Net position S 107,797,773 S 4,085,330

The largest portion of the TRI General Improvement District’s net position (98%) reflects its
investment in capital assets (e.g. buildings (including treatment facilities), well houses and machinery
and equipment). The District uses these capital assets to provide services to users; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending.

The remaining balance of unrestricted net position ($2,192,591), may be used to meet the District's
ongoing obligations to its users and creditors.

Statement of Revenue and Expenses

Years Ended June 30, 2019 2018
Charges for water services S 1,808,298 S 1,469,206
Land lease 10,000 3,000
Investment income 8,062 5,083
Capital asset contributions 3,235,886 -
Connection fees 480,131 102,948

Total revenue and
capital contributions S 5,542,377 S 1,580,237

Revenue and Capital Contributions: Total revenue received by the District for the year ended June
30, 2019 was $5,542,377 representing a $3,962,140 increase over the year ended June 30, 2018.
The largest increase is due to a capital asset contribution. In addition, there were additional charges
for water services. Capital contribution for connection fees totaled $102,948 which represents an
increase of 377,183.

Years Ended June 30, 2019 2018
Operating expenses S 1,488,986 S 550,815
Depreciation 1,174,456 107,426
Total operating expenses S 2,663,442 S 1,431,176
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TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

June 30, 2019

Expenses: Operating expenses for the year end June 30, 2019 totaled $2,663,442 representing an
increase over the year ended June 30, 2018 of $1,232,266. The increase is primarily due to
depreciation expense in the current year which increased $1,067,030.

Budgetary Highlights

Charges for water services are the primary sources of revenue. Actual general fund revenue was
1% lower than budgeted. Expenses were higher than budget by 47% with higher than expected
depreciation expenses by 840% and lower than expected repairs, maintenance and supplies by 69%.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

At year-end, the TRI General Improvement District's investment in capital assets totaled
$105,605,182 representing an increase from the year ended June 30, 2018 of $103,651,594. The
increase is due to a restatement from prior year of $103,712,443, capital asset contribution in the
current year of $3,235,886 and additional current year purchases of equipment and facility
improvements of $756,656 and an offsetting decrease due to depreciation expense recognized.

The District has no outstanding debt obligations.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

The National economy, and in turn Nevada’s economy, has recovered and a positive trend continues
into fiscal year 2019 (FY19). The TRI General Improvement District’s projected revenue from user
fees are expected to increase approximately 24% to $1,825,000 due to a rate increase in November
2019. Expenses are also expected to increase approximately 26% to $1,806,860 due to the addition
of GID staff and the associated salaries and benefit expenses.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the TRI General Improvement
District’s finances for all those with an interest in the District’s finances. Questions concerning any of
the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to
the District Manager, TRI General Improvement District, 1705 Peru Dr Ste 104, McCarran, NV 89437.
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Kohn & Company..

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Trustees of the
TRI General Improvemeant District

Re n Financial ments

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of TRI General Improvement
District (the "District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves parforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or emmor. In making those risk assassments, the auditor
considers intemal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's intemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Wae believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.
Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects the business-type activities
of the District, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally acceptad in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted the management discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America require to be prasented to supplernant the basic financial statemants. Such missing information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing
information.

5310 Kietzke Lane, Suite 101, Reno, Nevada 89511 - 775-828-7300 - Fax: 775-828-7305



-x|vii-

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the District's basic financial statements. The budgstary
information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The budgetary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied In the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally acceptad in the United States of America. In our opinion, the budgetary Information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 21, 2018, on our
consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
pravisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scopea of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit parformed in accordance with Governmeni Auditing Standards in considering the District's intermal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

» owe ¢ (-D*-f"a"‘"a

Movember 21, 2018
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TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Accounts receivable
Prepaid insurance
Total currant assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets
Proparty and equipment, net of accumulaled depreciation of $1,110,808

Total assets

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

MET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net
Unrestricted
Designated for major repairs and replacements
Undesignated

Total net position

See accompanying notes

3

2,148,134
157,045
49,630
2,354,809

1,953,588

4,308,397

223,087

1,853,588
1.459.923

661,819

4,085,330
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TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-xlix-

OPERATING REVENUE

Chargas for water services

OPERATING EXPENSES

Accounting and legal
Automobile
Chemicals
Contracted labor and benefits
Depraciation
Engineering and fees
Insurance
Licenses and permits
Repairs, maintenance and supplies
QOutside technical utility services
Office
Telephone
Utilities

Total operating expenses

Operating income

NONOPERATING REVENUE

Land lease
Investmant income

Income before capital contributions

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Connection fees

Change in net position

TOTAL MET POSITION, July 1

TOTAL NET POSITION, June 30

See accompanying notes

4

H

$

1,460,208

137,157
7,501
39,820
57,095
107,426
122,722
44,864
13,192
453,528
179,727
30,465
1,319
238,360

1,431,176

38,030

3,000
5,083

46,113

102,848

149,061

3,936,269

4,085,330



TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employess and related taxes and benefits
Met cash flows from oparating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Investment income

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Connection fees
Acquisition of capital assets
Land lease
Net cash flows from capital and related financing activities

MNET CHANGE IN CASH
CASH, July 1
CASH, June 30

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operaling income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash flows from cperating activities
Depreciation
Change in current assets and liabilities
{Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable, net
Prapaid insurance
Accounts payable

Net cash flows from operating activities

SUMMARY OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Mone

S://Mainy
See accompanying notes

5

$ 1,485,523
{1,100,129)

gﬁ?.ﬂﬂﬁl
B,
5,083

102,948
(208,268)
3,000

211,062
1,937,072

§ 2148134

5 38,030
107,426

{3,683)
{5,882)
172,408

3 308,299
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TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNME 30, 2018

NOTE1 -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

The TRI General Improvement District (District) was formed in 2000. The District has been charged with the
responsibility of providing water and sewer services for the land owners of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center
located in Storey County, Nevada. The District is governed by a Board of Trustees that is elected by the
District taxpayers. In addition, the District is required to abide by regulations established by Storey County
and the State of Mevada.

The financial statemants have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles as applied to govemmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing govermental accounting and financial reporting princlplas.

The District has no component units that are required to be combined in the financial statements.
Measuraman c 5 Accouniin f P

The District's financial aclivities are accounted for in a proprietary fund, specifically, an enterprise fund. An
enterprise fund accounts for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to those found in
the private business sector, where the costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis are recovered primarily through user charges.

GASE Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncemeants, requires the Board to apply all applicable GASB
pronouncements and, unless they conflict with or contradict GASBE pronouncements all Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and
Accounting Research Bulleting issued on or before Movember 30, 1989. Accordingly, the District has not
applied FASB pronouncements issued afier that date.

The District maintains its accounting records on the accrual basis of accounting wherein revenuas are
recognized when earned and become measurable, and expenses are recognized when incurred. All assets
and liabilities associated with the operations are included on the statement of net position. Net position is
sagregated into invested in capital assets and unrestricted components.

Propristary funds distinguish operating revenue and expensas from nonoparating items. Operating revenue
and expensas generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection
with a proprielary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenue of the enterprise
fund is comprised of charges to customers for services. Operaling expenses for enterprise funds include the
cost of services, administrative expense, and depraciation on capital assets. All revenue and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenue and expenses.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The District adheres to the Local Government Budget Act incorporated within Statutes of the State of
MNevada. These Statutes provide for the preparation, filing, notice, public hearing, and adoption in
connection with the budgetary process for Nevada local governments. Budgets are adopted on a basis
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. Budget amendments must be approved by the
Board of Trustees. All annual appropriations lapse at year-end.

On or before April 15, the Board of Trustees files a tentative budget with the Nevada Depariment of
Taxation. Public hearings on the tentative budget are held and a final budget must be prepared and
adopted no later than June 1.
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TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents are defined as short-term highly liquid
invesiments, generally with original maturities of three months or less. The Disftrict does not have any
investmants that are considered to be cash aquivalents at June 30, 2018.

Cash is maintained in one commercial bank in Reno, Nevada, The funds are deposited in a commercial
bank that participates in the state collateral pool program and thereby secures all cash and cash equivalents
deposited with the bank. Therefore, the District does not need to have a deposit policy related to custodial
cradit risk,

Accounts Recaeivable

Accounts receivable is comprised of monthly water and sewer meter fees. The District has not established
an allowance for doubtful accounts as it believes all accounts are collectible at June 30, 2018,

Capital Assets

Property and equipment with a cost of $1,000 or more and a life greater than one year are capitalized and
are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method for all assaets over the estimated
useful lives of the assets, which range from five to forty years.

The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to expense as incurred. Significant renewals and
betterments are capitalized.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are
removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in income for the period.

Equity Classifications
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in two components:

* Invested in capital assets — consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.

e Unrestricted net position — consists of amounts designated for major repairs and replacements and
all other net position that do not meet the definition of “invested in capital assets.”

The District has obtained a reserve study that is updated perodically to ensure there are adequate
designated reserves on hand to meet future repair and replacement requirements. As of June 30, 2018, the
District's unaudited theoretical reserve balance is approximately $2,552,043, The District has $1,469,923
designated cash reserves at June 30, 2018,

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reporled in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Subseguent Events

Subsequent evants have been evaluated through November 21, 2018, which represents the date the
financial statements were available to be issued. Subsequent events after that date have not been
evaluated.
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TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 2 -

NOTE 3 -

NOTE 4 -

NOTE § -

COMPLIANCE WITH NEVADA REVISED STATUTES AND THE NEVADA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

The District conformed to all significant statutory constraints on its financial administration during the year.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The District's bank accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to
$250,000 in the aggregate. Excess balances are collateralized in the state collateral pool by Western

Alliance Bank.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity consists of the following for the year ended June 30, 2018:

June 30, June 30,
2017 Additions Disposals 2018
Capital assets, not being deprecilated:
Land $ 215314 § - $ - § 215314
Water rights 9,510 - - 9,510
Capital assets, being depreciated
Sewar treatment facility and improvements 1,690,560 187,962 - 1,878,522
Well houses 524,992 - - 524,992
Roadway 125,319 - - 125,319
Equipment 343,109 - - 343,100
Vehicles 44 750 20,306 - 65,056
Monument signs 10,000 - - 10,000
Total capital assets being depraciated 2.738,730 208,268 - 2,946,998
Less: accumulated depreciation
Sewaer treatment facility and improvemeants 541,171 66,369 - 607,540
Well houses 328 488 21,000 - 349488
Roadway 99,211 6,266 - 105477
Equipment 87,188 11,084 - 98,272
Vehicles 44,750 2,707 - 47 A5T
Monument signs 10,000 - = 10,000
Total accumulated depreciation 1,110,808 107 426 - 1,218,234
Total capital assets being depreclated, net 1,627,922 100,842 - 1,728,764
Net capital assets § 1852746 § 100842 3 - $§ 1953588

COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
There were no claims pending or unresolved disputes involving the District at June 30, 2018.

The District is exposed to varnious risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets,;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District maintains commercial
Insurance coverage covering each of these risks of loss. Management believes such coverage is sufficient
to preciude any significant uninsured losses to the District.

The District has entered into agreements for engineering and vendor services relating to various projects for
work to be performed in the next fiscal year totaling approximately $429,000 of which $201,000 is remaining
to be expended.
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TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 6 -

AGREEMENTS

An operating agreement was entered into with TRI Water and Sewer Company (Company) on March 7,
2001. As stated in the agreement, the District owns, leases or otherwise has title and control of all real
estate, water rights, and water and sewer improvements. However, the majority of the water rights are not
raflacted on the accompanying financial statements since they have been committed to existing or future
customers and the beneficial interest in the water rights lies with the Company who can designate, commit
or require reconveyance at any time. The agreement provides for the Company to operate and maintain
the water and sewer systems on behalf of the District. The agreement stipulates that the Company will be
paid all income received by the District from fees, charges and rates established by the rules, except for the
connection fees pald by customers that are considered reserve funds fo be utilized for repairs and
maintenance of the District facilites. It also stipulates that the Company is required to pay cash subsidies to
the District as needed.

10
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TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES,

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

OPERATING REVENUE
Charges for water services

OPERATING EXPENSES
Accounting and legal
Automobile
Chamicals
Engineering and faes
Insurance
Repairs, maintenance and supplies
QOutside technical utility services
Office and miscellaneous
Contracted labor and benefits
Utilities and telephone
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
NONOPERATING REVENUE
Connection fees

Investment income
Land lease

Total nonoperating revenue
Change in net position
TOTAL NET POSITION, July 1

TOTAL NET POSITION, Juna 30

- Wariance
Original Final Favorable

Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$ 1425000 3 1425000 3 14692068 § 44,206

148,000 148,000 137,157 10,843
5,200 5,200 7.501 (2,301)

40,500 40,500 39,820 680
65,000 65,000 122,722 (57.722)

52,000 52,000 44,864 7,136

567,000 567,000 466,720 100,280
148,000 148,000 179,727 (31,727)
25,000 25,000 30,465 (5,465)
57,000 57,000 57,085 (95)
226,500 226,500 237,679 {11.178)

- 125,000 107,426 17,674

1,334,200 1,459,200 1,431,176 28.024

90,800 (34,200) 38,030 72,230
250,000 250,000 102,948 (147,052)

3,900 3,900 5,083 1,183

- - 3,000 3,000
253,900 253,900 111,031 (142,869)
5 344700 § 219,700 149,061 § {?0.339!

3,936,269
5 __ 4085330

See accompanying noles
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trusteas of
TRI General Improvement District:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activiies of TRI Genaral Improvemant District, as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise TRI
General Improvement District's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 21, 2018,

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered TRI General Improvement District's
intemal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the District's intermal control,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees,
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and comect, misstatements on a timely
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detectad
and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described In the first paragraph of this section and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may axist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matlers

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether TRI General Improvement District’'s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts, However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective
of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the resulls
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control or on compliance. This
report is an integral part of an audit perfformed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Reno, Nevada l")m t Uh\?"(‘j‘-P

Movember 21, 2018

(3

Kohn & Companyut

L)
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Kohn & Company..

AUDITORS' COMMENTS

To the Board of Trustees of
TRI General Improvement District:

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the TRI General Improvement District (District) as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, nothing came to our attention that caused us
to believe that the Digrict falled to comply with the spaecific requirements of Nevada Revised Statutes cited below.
However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of noncompliance. Accordingly, had we
performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the District's noncompliance
with the requirements of Mevada Revised Statutes cited below, Insofar as they relate to accounting matters.

REM R STATUTE PLI

The required disclosure on cempliance with the Mevada Revised Statutes and the Mevada Administrative Code is
contained in Note 2 to the financial statements.

PROGRESS ON PRIOR YEAR STATUTE COMPLIANCE
The District monitored all significant constraints on its financial administration during the year ended June 30, 2017.
CURRENT YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS
Mo material weaknesses or significant deficiencies reported.
PRI R RECOMM ATI

Mo material weaknesses or significant deficiencies were noted.

NEVADA REVISED STATUTE 354.6241

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to belleve that the District had not complied in
all materal respects with NRS 354.6241, including:

{a) Use of funds established

{b) Use of generally accepted accounting principles

(c) Limitations on resérves

(d) Recording sources of revenue and transfers available

(@) Statutory and regulatory requirements applicable to tha fund
(f) Ending retained eaming amounts

Vol
Reno, Nevada e LBV-FWD‘U‘P

November 21, 2018

5310 Kietzke Lane, Suite 101, Reno, Nevada 89511 + 775-828-7300 . Fax: 775-828-7305
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Balance Sheet

As of 6/30/2020
TRI General Improvement District (GID)
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
1002-04-00 Cash - First Independent $ 754,421.48
1002-06-00 Cash- First Indep Money Market $ 1,919,065.19
1002-08-00 Cash - Checking S. Whalen $ 3,522.93
1204-00-00 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE $ 475,612.99
1206-00-00 Prepaid Insurance $ 53,417.32
1208-00-00 Prepaid Credit Card $ 438.23
Total CURRENT ASSETS: $ 3,206,478.14
FIXED ASSETS
1500-00-00 Land $ 215,314.28
1506-00-00 Furniture $ 3,999.00
1507-00-00 Computer Equipment $ 20,188.06
1508-00-00 Roadway Improvements $ 125,319.00
1508-00-00 Monument Signs $ 10,000.00
1510-00-02 Water rights $ 9,510.00
1540-00-00 Equipment - Screw Press $ 275,727.42
1550-00-00 Equipment - Loader $ 67,382.00
1550-00-02 Water meters $ 20,718.97
1550-02-02 Sewer Treatment Facility $  62,941,35298
1550-02-04 Improvements $ 847,862.00
1552-00-02 Well House #2 $ 307,924.55
1552-00-06 Well House #4 $ 235,862.43
1552-00-08 Well House # 6 $ 174,805.94
1552-00-10 Wells - PPA 3 2,457,750.00
1554-00-00 Water Rights - PPA $ 51,279,621.83
1559-99-99 Accumulated Depreciation $ -13,542,608.21
1570-00-00 Vehicle - 2019 Jeep Grand Cherokee $ 27,922.25
Total FIXED ASSETS: $ 105,478,752.50
Total ASSETS: $ 108,685,230.64
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
2200-00-16 Due to TRI Water & Sewer $ 1,500.00
2204-00-00 Meter deposits $ 1,200.00
Total CURRENT LIABILITIES: $ 2,700.00
Total LIABILITIES: $ 2,700.00
EQUITY
3000-00-00 Developers Contribution $ 5,271,453.24
3200-00-00 Retained Earnings-Current Year $ 884,758.14
3200-00-00 RETAINED EARNINGS - PRIOR $ 102,526,319.26
Total EQUITY: $ 108,682,530.64
Total LIABILITIES & EQUITY: $  108,685230.64
Run Date: 7/29/2020 10:23:34AM Page: 1

G/L Date: 7/28/2020
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Income Statement

For The 12 Periods Ended 6/30/2020
TRI General Improvement District (GID)

Year to Date % of Revenue
REVENUE
Hook up fees 175,520.00 6.03
Water Meter Collection 2,721,423.38 93.55
Verizon - Land Lease 12,175.00 0.42
Total REVENUE: 2,909,118.38 100.00
GROSS PROFIT: 2,909,118.38 100.00
EXPENSES
Computer Software/Support 2,300.00 0.08
Chemicals 106,006.35 364
Postage & Delivery 527.50 0.02
Licences Fees & Dues 1,237.02 0.04
Permit Fees 19,703.66 0.68
Utilities- electric 201,778.04 6.94
Utilities - phone fines 7,601.24 0.26
Trash expense 50,630.77 1.74
Water & Sewer Exp. 15,799.21 0.54
Mobile Phone 1,174.47 0.04
Office Expense 5,037.83 0.17
Automobile Expense 27,655.36 0.95
Meals & Entertainment 142.96 0.00
Bank Fees 111.28 0.00
Professional Fees/Contract Labor 388,780.13 13.36
COVID- 19 1,851.88 0.06
Repairs & Maintenance 254,377.98 8.74
Legal fees 116,063.72 3.99
Accounting fees 44,685.42 1.64
Transition Consultants 1,500.00 0.05
Insurance Expense 77,666.95 2.67
Insurance - Employee Health/Life 3,269.24 0.1
Engineering Fees - Admin 297,396.20 10.22
Payroll Service 1,687.50 0.06
Salaries & Wages 161,305.84 5.54
Payroll Taxes 5,886.42 0.20
PERS 42,095.81 1.45
Water Testing 23,697.90 0.81
Total EXPENSES: 1,860,060.68 63.94
NET INCOME FROM OPERATIONS: 1,049,057.70 36.06
OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSE
Interest Income 6,238.78 0.21
Depreciation -162,293.81 -5.58
Distribution Sale of Vehicles -8,244.53 -0.28
Total OTHER INCOME AND -164,299.56 -5.65
EARNINGS BEFORE INCOME TAX: 884,758.14 30.41
Net Income (Loss): 884,758.14 30.41
Run Date: 7/29/2020 10:23:37AM Page: 1

G/L Date: 7/28/2020
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